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This annual report focuses on the new organisational structure for our EMEA 
business with five business lines. Our goal: a clear orientation towards end 
users. Customer-centric thinking and acting. Achieving this goal in a manner 
that is conducive to growth will require a keen sense of a cooperation:  
among the new teams and across all sectors.

GrowTogether thus refers to our efforts at several levels. And not only in 
Europe. On our way to becoming a global company, we will be focusing on 
process and application orientation wherever we operate.

Grow
Together 

Business Line
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Jörg EckertBusiness Line
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Holger Wobito
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SIMONA GROUP

2020 2019 2018

Revenue €m 389.8 432.5 417.9

Year-on-year change % –9.9 3.5 6.0

Staff costs €m 87.0 85.7 78.8

Earnings before taxes (EBT) €m 30.5 28.0 32.3

Profit for the period €m 23.2 20.6 24.3

Net cash from operating activities €m 56.4 51.6 34.8

EBIT €m 33.6 29.4 33.2

EBIT % 8.6 6.8 8.0

EBITDA €m 51.8 46.8 48.4

EBITDA % 13.3 10.8 11.6

Total assets €m 448.5 430.2 400.9

Equity €m 206.6 216.3 220.7

Property, plant and equipment €m 140.8 138.7 129.1

Investments in property, plant and equipment €m 20.3 23.5 16.9

Employees (annual average) 1,456 1,430 1,387

on IFRS basis

SIMONA Key Financials
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* Calculated on Group basis

STOCK PERFORMANCE

2020 2019 2018

Earnings per share € 38.32 34.13 40.24

Dividend € 12.00 10.00 14.00

Dividend yield % 2.5 2.0 2.9

P/E ratio* 12.8 14.8 12.2

Year-end price € 490.00 505.00 490.00

REVENUE BY PRODUCT AREA (in €m)

389.8432.5417.9

2018 2019

78.6 %
Semi-Finished 
Products 
€306.5m

21.4 %
Pipes and 
Fittings
€83.3m

2020

EBIT (in €m)

33.6
33.2

29.4

2018 20202019

	 in per cent  
	 (EBIT margin)

6.8

8.6
8.0
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SHARE PRICE AND DIVIDEND SINCE IPO (in €)
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REVENUE BY REGION

Allocated acc. to place of registered office of revenue-generating 
business unit

7.5 %
Asia and Pacific
€29.2m
–5.5 %

26.6 %
Americas
€103.9m
–21.2 %

65.9 %
Europe 
€256.7m
–4.8 %

389,8
Mio. EUR

EQUITY (in €m)

206.6

2018 2019 2020

220.7 216.3
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Grow
Together 

Dear Shareholders,
The COVID-19 pandemic has also become a dominant 
force in the lives of SIMONIANS around the globe – both 
at a private and a professional level. We have done what 
we can to protect their health and provide support in an 
effort to maintain the high degree of commitment shown 
by our team. Low infection rates at all sites, together with 
the favourable results of our projects in 2020, confirm 
the validity of our approach. In this report, we would 
like to focus on the future and the strategic route to be 
taken as we move forward. Our bottom-line performance 
in 2020 was encouraging. Despite a significant decline 
in revenue, we managed to increase earnings before 
interest and taxes (EBIT). In addition, we achieved 
a number of milestones with regard to our strategic 
realignment in Europe. 

Group revenue generated by SIMONA AG was down 
substantially in all sales regions around the globe. The 
aircraft interiors market in the United States, which is 
of particular significance to our business, collapsed. In 
Europe and Asia, the downturn in business was less 
pronounced, especially as the Asian markets were quick 
to recover from the effects of the pandemic. In this 
context, a strong third quarter and an exceptional boost 
from business relating to transparent materials used 
in the field of hygiene management helped to limit the 
decline in revenue to 10 per cent at Group level.

At just under €390 million, Group revenue fell well short 
of the guidance range of €430–440 million presented in 
our last management report at the end of March 2020. 
Like many projections made elsewhere in the course of 
the financial year just ended, this outlook proved to be of 
little value. Against the backdrop of general uncertainty, 
we therefore decided against issuing any further fore
casts from this point on. Ultimately, however, SIMONA 
AG’s performance for the year as a whole was much 
better than anticipated earlier in the year.

Economies of scale and capacity utilisation play an 
important role in our business, and the decline in 
revenue by a “mere” 10 per cent provided us with a 
platform for profitable operations. Satisfactory levels of 
capacity utilisation, combined with a significant increase 
in the profitability of our European semi-finished products 
business, a high degree of cost discipline, low commodity 
prices and a positive contribution to earnings in the 
United States despite the slump in the lucrative aviation 
market, led to an EBIT margin of 8.6 per cent.

Valued Shareholders,
From a regional perspective, the Americas saw the largest 
decline in revenue. Global air traffic came to a virtual 
standstill – and investment in equipping new aircraft or 
modernising existing interiors ceased almost completely. 
This hit us hard, but we quickly changed course in pursuit 
of alternative business opportunities. We succeeded 
in stabilising volumes in the short term with a range 
of transparent products that enjoyed buoyant demand 
during the pandemic within the market for protective 
screens. At the same time, we were able to compensate 
for declines seen in the well-established area of industrial 
products, for example in the semiconductor and leisure 
industries. As a result, earnings in North America were 
also in positive territory in the period under review. 

In Asia, meanwhile, the chemical and semiconductor 
industries, which are of particular importance to our 
business, recovered faster than in other regions of the 
world. We also stepped up our sales efforts and focused 
on our fields of application. Business centred around 
pipes and fittings for industrial applications, in particular, 
developed well during the period under review, which 
translated into a solid bottom-line performance.

The market contraction seen in Europe also proved 
to be more modest than in the Americas. Within our 
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semi-finished products business, this was attributable 
to SIMONA’s broad diversification across several fields 
and a sales boost for transparent PETG sheets. As 
regards pipes and fittings, we benefited from sustained 
stability within the construction industry. We are very 
satisfied with the progress made at our plants as well as 
with our achievements with regard to logistics and the 
realignment of our business model. We implemented 
several capital expenditure projects and decided on 
major investments in machinery and equipment, the aim 
being to increase the efficiency and competitiveness of 
the plants and our logistics. A new Lean 6S approach 
was well received by the staff members involved, 
resulting in higher rates of efficiency and productivity.

We also established a new application- and process-
oriented organisational structure for our business 
activities in Europe. Our annual report includes further 
details about the goals we are pursuing within this area 
and how this will contribute to SIMONA’s growth strategy. 
These measures are already bearing fruit, as evidenced 
by a sharp increase in EBIT for our European business.

Last but not least, we succeeded in making two 
acquisitions during these challenging times. SIMONA 
Stadpipe in Norway adds to our applications-driven 
approach by unlocking the burgeoning global market for 
land-based fish farming systems. SIMONA PLASTECH in 
Turkey delivers extensive know-how and state-of-the-art 
extrusion technology as a basis for further improving the 
profitability of our products in the market for advertising 
and construction applications.

We are off to a good start in 2021. Industry is proving 
to be robust worldwide, with some regions boasting 
strong growth – particularly in Asia and the United 
States. SIMONA’s growth trajectory is underpinned 
by a Group revenue forecast of €400–415 million. 
The tense situation within the commodities market, 
however, gives cause for concern. Driven by bottle
necks relating to many primary products and more 
extensive demand for plastics worldwide, especially 
for packaging, the raw materials we use have 
become much more expensive. At the same time, 
the market is experiencing considerable supply-side 
shortages. This problem was exacerbated by an 
exceptionally severe hurricane season in 2020 and 
extreme winter storms in Texas. This situation is 
unlikely to ease in the coming months, and we are 
taking active steps in collaboration with our business 
partners to minimise the impact on our customers 
and SIMONA’s earnings.

Dear Shareholders,
SIMONA remains an exciting company for all its 
stakeholders. We are firmly committed to embracing 
an application- and process-oriented approach within 
our company and gradually expanding it as we move 
forward. To find out more, please refer to the articles 
dedicated to our new business lines. We hope you 
enjoy reading this year’s annual report.

Best regards,

Your Global Management Team at SIMONA AG

Matthias Schönberg
Chairman of the  
Management Board (CEO)

Dr. Jochen Hauck
Member of the  
Management Board (COO)

Michael Schmitz 
Member of the 
Management Board (CFO)

Adam Mellen
SIMONA AMERICA  
(CEO)

YK Wong
SIMONA ASIA 
(CEO)
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Grow
Together 

Europe is and remains a core market for SIMONA
Europe is the heart of our technology. This is where it beats – steadily, 
continuously. At five production sites and with strong potential for growth. But 
despite all this, SIMONA has been facing growing pressure from competitors 
over recent years – from new, often highly specialised suppliers. This is due to 
the increased fragmentation of business and low levels of growth in saturated 
markets. This is precisely why we have begun to make changes to our EMEA 
operations. In a nutshell, it is about ensuring we stay ahead of the game.

The new strategic orientation will help us to build our market share in 
established core markets and tap into the potential offered by new application 
areas by expanding our range of products and services and focusing more 
strongly on end customers and applications.

A new organisational structure for our EMEA business went live on 
1 January 2021. Why is this important for SIMONA? What are we 
hoping to achieve? And, more specifically, what does this mean for 
our customers, associates, investors and employees?

New perspectives – new prospects
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Product applications as a key element of the 
new structure
As regards SIMONA’s EMEA activities, the focus of the new business 
lines is on how our products are used. It is all about the customer. 
This is not to be seen as a replacement of our successful sales and 
technical organisation but rather a way of expanding it to include 
experts with a clear industry focus. They will concentrate on the 
application area and the customer’s requirements. Their in-depth 
knowledge of the market will allow them to offer the right product 
at the right time.

Detailed knowledge and a deeper understanding 
of the end user
Our new business line managers and their teams will delve more 
deeply into the minds of our end users. We manufacture semi-
finished products. They normally form part of a larger whole: 
a cathodic dip tank, an electroplating plant, a chemical plant for 
wafer production in the semiconductor industry, a passenger 
seat in an ICE train, a prosthesis, to name but a few.

Helena Lau 
Vice President 
Business EMEA 

Dr. Jochen Hauck 
Member of the  
Management Board (COO)
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Grow
Together 
Business EMEA

Of course, we are proud of the countless areas in which our 
products are used, but in our product-oriented structure it has 
always been a challenge to fully grasp the nature of the applications 
and ensure we do not miss out on important trends. Now we 
are planning to do it better. We are seeking more focus, more 
knowledge of the markets and a better understanding of the criteria 
for selecting materials. In other words, what matters now is seeing 
our contribution as part of the larger whole rather than restricting 
ourselves to one aspect.

Achieving the best possible results
Our teams from the Business Lines, Sales, Technical Service Centre 
and Product Management should all have a detailed understanding 
of the requirements of relevant markets. This kind of matrix 
organisation makes it possible to achieve the best-in-class results 
for the customer. This relies on the commitment of every one of us. 
Because every role is important.

Partnership is essential
Our aim is to continue or even intensify regional customer 
relations. Because SIMONA thrives on close, collaborative 
business relationships, some of which go back many years. End 
users, fabricators, retailers, engineering firms and everyone who 
purchases SIMONA products within the process chain will continue 
to be able to call on SIMONA’s superb service, either locally or with 
the support of specialists from our central competence centres. 
Trade continues to play a key role in our business model. Our focus 
on end users involves identifying and awakening new needs and – 
wherever possible – developing customers in conjunction with our 
trading partners.

Eliminate weaknesses, increase customer satisfaction
Such a major reorganisation inevitably involves a few teething 
problems. We are working hard on these and liaising with our 
customers to find long-term solutions.

Customer satisfaction has always been a priority, but now the focus 
will be even sharper. Our customers are not interested in the ins 
and outs of our product manufacturing processes. They are looking 
for products that are right for their specific applications. This is 
precisely what our new structure is designed to do.

But we are focusing on the journey as well as the destination. The 
individual stages have been clearly defined: use resources in a 
targeted way, ensure efficient production and optimised logistics 
processes, achieve maximum flexibility for our customers in the 
global market. Shifting our focus to applications allows us to gain 
a more in-depth understanding of our customers. Our staff are in a 
position to proactively drive innovation by staying abreast of trends 
and the needs of end users. This will pave the way for profitable 
growth.

Growing together worldwide on two levels
“GrowTogether” is the name of our programme for introducing the 
new structure. We are seeking to grow together in the company and 
grow together with our customers.

We will pursue the GrowTogether objectives in every region, not just 
in Europe. This is because many areas of application have huge 
potential for growth all over the world. Global OEMs expect global 
supply and support together with locally produced quality. This 
means that a focus on applications and end users will become a 
global requirement. We already achieve this in many segments and 
are now aiming to enhance this through the new EMEA structure.
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More efficiency, cost-effectiveness and reliability  
This is how SIMONA is ensuring it remains a dynamic, forward-
looking business. Despite all the environmental discussions, 
plastics still make a valuable contribution to meeting society’s 
challenges in the supply of drinking water, the transport of 
regenerative energies, digital transformation, sustainable mobility 
and health. We plan to give our shareholders a SIMONA that is 
more efficient, more responsive and even more reliable. A SIMONA 
that helps to find answers to these challenges while remaining a 
successful, profitable business.
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Holger Wobito
Business Line Manager
Infrastructure

Grow
Together 
Infrastructure
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Impress!  
System services

The market for infrastructure applications provided 
a guiding framework for restructuring SIMONA’s 
business lines. Several decades ago, the decision 
was made to cultivate this field of activity based on 
a clear focus on applications, closeness to the end 
customer and technical expertise throughout the 
entire customer care process.

The Infrastructure business line provides technical 
consulting and supplies thermoplastic pipeline 
systems tailored to individual requirements and 
applications. Its main target groups include investors 
and consulting engineers primarily in the drinking 

water and sewage industry, protective conduit 
systems for data and energy cables, and drainage 
systems for environmental protection in landfills 
and on roads and railways.

Clear USP 
With our certified application and project expertise, 
we put our partners in a stronger market position in 
the retail and the construction industry in a fiercely 
competitive market environment. We focus on system 
ranges while also being able to service niches and 
respond flexibly to individual requirements.

A clear focus on applications, closeness to the end customer, technical expertise 
throughout the entire customer care process – none of these are new ideas within the 
Infrastructure business line. In fact, they have proved their worth over several decades. 
What is new, however, is the decision to expand these strengths.

Reliable – 
our solutions for infrastructure

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



16     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 
Infrastructure

We stand out from the crowd thanks to the extensive technical 
support we provide in terms of designing and dimensioning pipes 
and what types to lay.

For us, being focused on applications and customers means to 
serve the varying needs of all parties involved in the process for an 
infrastructure project in the best possible way. This is built on several 
key pillars: top-quality technical service in every phase of the project; 
smart, cost-effective product ranges; helping end users with product 
processing on site; and a comprehensive after-sales service.

Strengthening digitalisation
The “Infrastructure 2.0” business line is capable of expanding these 
strengths and will succeed in doing so. Our main priority going 
forward is to expand our range of digital services and products, 
including selecting materials, intuitive and IT-based project enquiries 
for structural calculations, e-learning courses and many more 
services along the all-important customer journey. We want to grow 
“mySIMONA” into a platform for digital services.

Making the focus on fields of application even more 
profitable
Looking ahead, we want to profit even more from our fundamental 
focus on fields of application. Large-scale infrastructure projects 
often entice industrial companies to relocate to the area, providing 
an opportunity for the products offered by our Industry and Building 
business lines. The railways for which we supply drainage pipes 
are designed to handle the increased demand for trains, for whose 
railroad cars our Mobility business line can supply sheets for the 
interior fitout.

Turning new ideas into new products fast 
If we are to achieve our objectives, we will need to acquire and share 
knowledge of market trends, projects and interrelationships involving 
the applications that we serve. We will do our bit to support these 
efforts with a committed team covering all commercial and technical 
roles. One good example is our technical field service, which is 

Infrastructure

2.0
focused  

firmly on  
the future
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Growth areas:

n	 �The energy transition is increasing the need for 
buried power cables that transport renewable 
energy. SIMONA has developed cable pipe systems 
to protect them.

n	 �Demand for high-pressure gas pipe systems 
capable of transporting hydrogen will grow. 
Thermoplastic pipeline systems are well suited to 
this task.

n	 �Trenchless laying and rehabilitation techniques will 
see greater use as they reduce CO2 emissions and 
installation costs. SIMONA has an extensive range 
of rehabilitation products.

already in touch with investors, consulting engineers, dealers and 
construction firms on a daily basis. In other words, we address 
new market requirements swiftly and directly. These then result 
in a detailed activity list of products and services to be developed 
that provides us with ideas and inspiration for the business line’s 
future growth. Together with the specialists from our Technical 
Service Centre and the open-minded teams at our production 
plants, we want to turn these ideas into high-quality products 
quickly and efficiently. Although the requirements that customers 
place on specific solutions and our “technical creativity” often 
pose a challenge, our staff in the Plastics workshop already have 
a great deal of experience in this area. It is precisely this ability 
to deliver reliable solutions for the most demanding application-
related challenges that puts us in a unique position compared to 
our competitors.

Highly committed people produce highly impressive 
work
Maximum reliability and customised solutions are the order of the 
day, whether you need chemical expertise or the most cost-effective 
pipe system for a conventional or non-standard application. We 
offer an extensive product range comprising sheets, pipes and 
standardised and customised fittings for pipes, all complemented 
by top-class services. We provide advice and information on entire 
systems. As well as the hard facts about our product portfolio and 
services, it is also the people that make the difference. Selling a 
long-lasting investment such as a thermoplastic pipeline system 
first requires a lengthy and demanding consulting process that is 
not complete until the final order negotiations are under way. Our 
team of highly qualified, experienced specialists throw themselves 
into each and every project with dedication and commitment, and 
I am proud to work with and in this team.

Market segments

Rehabilitation n	 �Solutions for the water and  
sewage industry

Cable protection pipes n	 �Solutions for protecting sensitive  
data and energy cables

�Drainage n	 �Solutions for draining roads,  
railways and landfills
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Grow
Together 
Industry

The new Industry business line. What makes it special? How is it structured?  
Above all, how will the business line realise significant added value for SIMONA  
and its customers?

The foundations are absolutely solid: SIMONA 
has decades of experience in this area thanks to 
countless projects, expertise that has evolved over 
time and specialists with proven track records in 
every market segment of the industrial applications.

Furthermore, the Industry business line aims to 
ensure clients perceive SIMONA as a “customer-

oriented best-in-class” partner within two or three 
years. This presupposes optimisation across the 
board: products must be simple to utilise and 
perform strongly, while services must be proficient 
and practical. Given that we are talking about safety-
critical and environmentally relevant applications for 
the chemical process, semiconductor, mining and 
medical engineering sectors, this is essential.

In a class of their own:
solutions for industrial applications
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Jörg Eckert
Business Line Manager 
Industry  

Greater understanding for better results
To achieve our goals, the Industry business line will need to develop 
an even deeper understanding of industrial applications, market 
dynamics and technical requirements; in this way, it can emerge 
as a competent partner within customer ecosystems, one that is 
capable of driving growth for customers and SIMONA alike and 
thereby addressing key issues across all areas. One example here 
would be the transport and storage of aggressive media in the 
installations and factories of the chemicals industry.

Another would be designing plastics for wet chemical processes 
and wastewater treatment at semiconductor, battery and 
photovoltaic plants. In the area of planning for seawater 
desalination also, SIMONA seeks to provide clients with the 
best possible products and solutions − from pipe installation 
for reverse-osmosis systems to the treatment, transport and 
provisioning of drinking water.
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Grow
Together 
Industry

Generating added value 
by identifying 
trends earlier

Technical consulting: 
the key to  
further growth!

The three synergy-driving factors: customer support, 
advisory expertise, sector specialists

Clearly, all of these are based on competent 
technical consultancy. The same applies in the 
mining industry, where SIMONA puts forward 
highly resilient products for the conveyance of solid 
and abrasive substances, thereby extending the 
maintenance cycle of customers through superior 
products. Then there is SIMONA’s contribution to 
the medical engineering field: making orthoses and 
prostheses safer and kinder to the skin so that they 
are more comfortable for patients to wear.

More growth and greater market share for 
thermoplastic polymers
To achieve this goal, SIMONA is investing across the 
board. This involves everything from the intensive 
analysis of decision-making processes and supply 
chains in all market segments to the alignment 
of product solutions and services to customer 
workflows and requirements. SIMONA is also using 
its expertise in materials and process technology 
as a basis for bringing the company’s products and 
services to new industrial applications and regions.

Rather than merely follow the trend, the company is 
determined to be a driving force in the development 
of new products and services. With this in mind, 
an organisation has been set up with the aim of 
combining the strengths of our highly experienced 
and local customer support teams plus our advanced 
technical advisory expertise with the motivation 
levels of SIMONA specialists in the various market 
segments.

Ultimately, this generates synergy and produces 
one clear advantage: trends can be identified at 

an earlier stage. This is a sound basis on which to 
develop innovative products that create added value 
in partnership with engineers and product managers.

Across client supply chains, we keep various target 
groups in mind − from end users and general 
contractors to operators and project developers. It 
is also critical to bear in mind that technical plastics 
distribution remains a cornerstone of the SIMONA 
business model. We will continue to act as a valued 
partner to the trade, identifying and developing 
common potential with a view to expanding our 
customer base effectively.
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Industry business line at a glance: 

n	 �5 market segments: chemical process industry, 
semiconductor industry, mining industry, water 
treatment/pools, medical engineering

n	 �Market segment specialists with profound knowledge 
of market dynamics and technologies

n	 �High-performance polymers like PVDF, ECTFE and PFA
n	 �Comprehensive product portfolio of semi-finished 

products, pipes/fittings and assemblies
n	 �Universal plastic formulas, e.g. flame retardant, 

electrically conductive
n	 �Experienced, competent, customer-focused 

organisation
n	 �Excellent support from the Technical Service Centre, 

global sales organisation and Product Management
n	 �Single sourcing for customer projects
n	 �Long-term, intensive customer relationships

6.9 %
Growth in environ-

mental engineering 
year on year

Collaboration with SIMONA business lines 
Equally important to success is identifying and promoting 
the synergy that exists between SIMONA’s business 
lines. The benefits of cooperation with the Infrastructure 
business line are evident, for example, facilitating the early 
identification of large-scale construction and plant projects. 
This means that products for various trades – from civil 
engineering to production plants – can be pinpointed at 
an early stage. Close contacts with the Technical Service 
Centre and Product Management ensure two things: 
optimum technical support and a product range available 
on a just-in-time basis.
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Grow
Together 
Industry

Chemical process industry 
Semiconductor industry

n	 �Semi-finished products, pipes and fittings from SIMONA® PVC, PE, PP,  
PP-H AlphaPlus®, PVDF, ECTFE, FEP, PFA

n	 �Flame-resistant formulas, certified under FM 4910 and DIN / ISO 4102 B1
n	 �Conformity to food processing regulations under EU 10/2011 and FDA

Mining industry n	 �PE materials resistant to abrasive media such as SIMONA® PE 100 AP-Line and 
SIMONA® PE 1000 superlining

Water treatment/pools n	 �Pipes, fittings and semi-finished products of SIMONA® PE, PP-H AlphaPlus® and 
PVDF for installation in water treatment units, tanks and metering units

n	 �Semi-finished products for the construction of pools from SIMONA® PVC and PP-C
n	 �UV-stabilised pipes and fittings for reverse-osmosis technology in seawater 

desalination plants and water utilities

Medical engineering n	 �SIMOLIFE product range for the manufacture of prostheses and ortheses from the 
materials PP, PETG, PE, EVA

n	 �Certified to FDA and DIN EN ISO 10993-5/-10, physiologically safe according to the 
German Federal Institute for Risk Assessment (BfR)

Services n	 �Worldwide, customer-centric support from Technical Service Centre
n	 �SIMONA Academy training programme
n	 �Advice on material selection (temperature, chemical resistance)
n	 �Structural calculations using SmartTank, our own tank calculation software
n	 �Access to SIMCHEM database for chemical resistance with over 5,000 media listed
n	 �Design assistance

Market segments and products

US$  
575
billion  
global chip market  
in 2022
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Delivering consistently high quality
Working closely with the Technical Service Centre and the Research and 
Development unit, newly acquired application expertise is applied to develop 
innovative, technically superior products and manufacture these to the requisite, 
consistently high standards of quality. Another success factor is SIMONA’s 
global set-up. Proximity to customers and markets spells major advantages, 
especially in the water treatment and semiconductor industries. SIMONA does 
everything possible to guarantee this, with global production sites, a tight 
distribution network in many countries and market specialists in SIMONA’s three 
hemispheres of Europe, the Americas and Asia.

   Potential and opportunities

n	 �Water treatment: The increasing demand for clean drinking water presents growth 
opportunities in the installation of seawater desalination plants. According to UNICEF 
estimates, there are currently 3.6 billion people living in regions that experience 
extreme water shortages for at least one month in every year.

n	 �Semicon: dynamic digitalisation is leading to higher demand for semiconductors. 
The global chip market is expected to be worth US$ 575 billion in 2022. Driven by 
electromobility, the market for chips in automobiles could expand by as much as 
11.9 per cent annually.

n	 �Environmental technology: between now and 2025, the global market volume for 
environmental engineering and resource efficiency is expected to expand by 6.9 per 
cent a year to exceed €5,900 billion. Plastic solutions are poised to deliver a valuable 
contribution in the generation, transport and storage of energy.

Sources: PwC study on “Opportunities for the global semiconductor market”; Roland Berger GmbH, “GreenTech made in Germany 2018”

Critical success factors: 
fresh application expertise 
and a global presence
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Grow
Together 
Advertisement & Building Industry

The Advertisement & Building Industry business 
line has set itself some ambitious goals, which were 
clearly defined by the acquisition of Turkey’s market 
leader for PVC foam sheets: to become the European 
market leader in terms of quality, breadth of product 
range and market share.

Achieving this requires an extensive partner network. 
This has been put together over the past few 
decades. In other words, a firm basis that can be 
relied on and gradually expanded. This network 
encompasses the raw material supplier, our own 
formula development and compounding teams and 
our in-house sales structures and, most importantly, 
includes our prized partnerships with dealers across 
Europe.

Speed, availability and value for money 
are the order of the day
Serving the advertising and construction market 
segments efficiently calls for an extensive product 
range tailored to specific applications – plus, of 
course, reliable processes and consistent quality.

The organisational structure of the new business 
line with its team of focused, experienced specialists 
makes us the perfect sparring partner for customers 
and other interested parties. One example would be 
digital printing in the advertising market segment.

Competitive solutions for advertising  
and structural engineering

An extensive network of partners, a very promising acquisition and a highly 
specialised team combine to offer an ideal platform for leveraging potential 
and cultivating markets together.

The key to success is 
being closely aligned 
with the end user.

Making good progress: 
Some things have already 
been put together.
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Markus Götz
Business Line Manager
Advertisement &  
Building Industry
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In this business, you need to know the market 
trends inside out. Primarily, this means having 
the right technical expertise to suit the market: 
what technological innovations are the printer 
manufacturers coming up with? How do the 
sheets to be printed on react to them? What 
surface qualities are needed in order to achieve 
the best possible printing results? What shades 
of white are called for? This knowledge must 
be used to develop cost-effective products, not  
“over-engineered” solutions.

Faster innovation
Specialisation allows new solutions, product versions 
and modifications to be made market-ready more 
quickly – underpinned by an established portfolio 
with an excellent brand image.

These include, in particular, the very well-known and 
highly respected SIMOPOR product series as well 
as our unique COPLAST product with its specific 
versions offering different high-quality foam core 
and covering layers. SIMONA PLASTECH, the latest 
addition to the SIMONA family, will give us a major 
boost as we strive to achieve our ambitious goals.

Its highly specialised production site in Turkey, the 
extensive expertise of its team and its cutting-edge 
extrusion technology will, above all, make the entire 
portfolio better value for money.

This complete package is rounded off by the 
smooth-running services provided by the company 
as a whole, particularly by our skilled consultants 
for application engineering, as well as our tailored, 
customer-specific training and our efficient logistics, 
including via our partners.

Taking new products 
to market faster.

Grow
Together 
Advertisement & Building Industry
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In a commoditised market, everything depends on breaking new 
ground. Efficient structures, a compact team of specialists and 
a lean production setup allow us to offer cost-effective solutions. 
SIMONA PLASTECH is injecting added momentum into this 
approach with its state-of-the-art production plant, strong sales 
operation and many years’ experience in this market. This makes 
it ideal for giving SIMONA’s profile and standing in the market for 
advertising and building applications a major and long-lasting 
boost.

Extensive cooperation is key here: listening to one another, learning 
from one another and thus continuously improving and expanding 
the products and services offered to customers. We want to 
uncover untapped potential together with our partners and achieve 
profitable growth in the various segments. To do so, we will need 
to respect the experience and individual knowledge held by the 
different teams in the business line and harness this in order to 
get a handle on the market segments as a whole and make the 
right decisions.

Cost- 
effective 
solutions

Advertising n	 �PVC foam and PVC compact sheets for digital printing applications and constructing trade fair stands 
and displays.

n	 Customer-specific modifications and versions

Building n	 �PVC free-foam and integral foam sheets, co-extruded versions and customised PVC compact sheets
n	 �Product portfolio based on formulas developed in house to comply with the applicable standards 

and licences, customised solutions made from PVC and alternative materials
n	 �Markets of the future: wall and floor applications

Market segments and products
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Grow
Together 
Mobility

Dr. Timo Grieser
Business Line Manager 
Mobility



Annual Report 2020      29

Because when it comes to realising successful applications in the mobility segment, there are special 
conditions to be met. It is often not enough, for example, to simply offer the product that most closely 
matches the specific requirements. Rather, it is also a matter of working closely with the client to map 
out the critical characteristics, develop an efficient and sustainable solution, and then implement it 
worldwide. And this is the goal of our new Mobility business line.

Our mobility solutions are flexible 
on several levels

To meet customer requirements in every respect, you need to be one thing above all, 
and that’s flexible. That might at first sight seem relatively simple, but it’s not.
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Rail interiors:  
a new and  

lucrative market

Grow
Together 
Mobility

Products with recycled content
The thermoplastics segment for automotive 
applications is very price-driven and time-sensitive. 
In this extremely competitive market, SIMONA has 
already made a name for itself with OEMs and car 
makers with its unique product for the manufacture 
of plastic fuel tanks. During production, material 
waste from customer sheets is returned to the 
original manufacturing process as recycled plastic 
regrind.

Penetrating new markets
Our focus is on the interior finishing of trains and 
we have already developed a relevant product 
range – SIMORAIL – consisting of innovative, 
lightweight and recyclable thermoplastics. Our target 
groups are designers, railcar builders, component 
manufacturers and plastics processors. The segment 
is both complex and exacting, so the barriers to 
market entry are correspondingly high. There are 
new and more stringent fire protection standards like 
the EN 45545 to be met, for example, and custom 
designs and colour schemes are also essential. 
However, the effort involved is worthwhile due to the 
dynamic market growth and the option of substituting 
non-recyclable materials in the medium and long 
term. In addition, the characteristics of SIMORAIL 
products can be transferred to other mobility 
segments with just some minor adjustments. The 
thermoformed components are equally suitable for 
trucks, buses and even ships. There is also potential 
for the manufacture of hydrogen tanks.

Market potential rail interiors

n	 �The “Global Metro Rail Projects Report 2020” 
lists almost 500 rail projects worldwide with 
a total volume of more USD 920 billion.

n	 �The largest region for rail projects by far is 
the Asia-Pacific region, followed by Europe 
and America.

n	 �Around 200 projects worldwide are set to be 
realised by 2025.

n	 �The study estimates the market volume 
for rail vehicles to be between USD 138 to 
231 billion.

Approx.  200
rail projects planned 

worldwide by 2025
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Extending the product range
Using high-performance fibres like carbon and glass is 
yet another strategy for the future. By means of localised 
reinforcements, the characteristic features, and thus the 
range of uses, can be extended to allow customisation. 
To sum it up: we have many ideas combined with the 
clear strategy of exploiting the importance of mobility 
as a global growth area. This area of our business is 
driven by an international interdisciplinary team that 
tackles the worldwide marketing in the specified areas 
of application. Already essential in the automotive 
segment, global availability and compliance with 
national approvals and specifications are to become 
the standard for our mobility products as well – 
accompanied by transparent, open communication, local 
market access, strong technical support and the backing 
of our worldwide production network.

Automotive n	 ��SIMONA® PE multilayer sheets for manufacturing vehicle fuel tanks
n	 ��Milled weld-on caps made from SIMONA® PE multilayer sheets for vehicle 

fuel tanks 

Rail vehicles SIMORAIL product range for flame-retardant interior cladding for rail vehicles, e.g., 
for the manufacture of: 
n	 ��Seats
n	 ��Armrests
n	 ��Wall cladding
n	 ��Window panels
n	 ��Partitions
n	 ��Ceiling elements
n	 ��Shelves
The products from the SIMORAIL range meet the most stringent fire protection 
standards to EN 45545 and NFPA 130.

Aviation Semi-finished products in a wide range of designs and colours for the  
interior finishing of passenger aircraft

Market segments and products

New standard:  
mobility products,  
available worldwide,  
tailored precisely  
to national markets. 
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Healthy eating  
is resulting in 

more aquaculture

Our solutions for aquaculture  
are simply unique

The strategic course for global growth has been set to success with the 
acquisition of Stadpipe, a Norwegian company specialising in equipment 
for aquaculture facilities.

Grow
Together 
Aquaculture

This is a decisive step for more pronounced growth 
in the aquaculture market. Because the products 
of land-based fish farms will be in high demand 
in future, firstly due to population growth and the 
microplastics problem, and secondly, thanks to the 
sustained trend towards healthy eating and concerns 
about the overfishing of the world’s oceans.

Unique offering in the market
The market for land-based fish farms is not just 
relatively new. It is also a market that has not yet 
been divided up or highly regulated so far. This 
offers a great opportunity, since following the 
integration of Stadpipe, SIMONA is the only vendor 
within the market to offer equipment for fish farms 
that includes pipes, fittings and sheets. That is 
why our ambitious yet realisable goal is to make 

the Aquaculture business line into a profitable, 
strategically relevant and well-known part of the 
SIMONA family and the market for aquaculture. 
Our main target groups are technology suppliers 
and equipment vendors for RAS facilities and 
turnkey fish farms.

RAS systems
In the last few decades, the recirculating 
aquaculture system (RAS) has become increasingly 
established in the fish farming segment. Unlike net 
cage systems on the open sea, RAS methods offer 
numerous ecological and economic benefits despite 
the high investment costs. Water consumption is 
much lower, there is less strain on vulnerable eco-
systems, and productivity is much higher thanks to 
stocking density and feeding rate.
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Nils-Per Sjåstad 
Business Line Manager 
Aquaculture
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 50 %
of global fish 
supply from 
aquaculture

Grow
Together 
Aquaculture
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Source: Information website Aquakulturinfo – Leibniz Institute of Freshwater Ecology and Inshore Fisheries (IGB)

By sharing information with our business partners, we can 
be proactive rather than reactive when it comes to new builds 
or upgrades   

Expertise in fish farming facilities essential
The acquisition has combined two product ranges: that of SIMONA Stadpipe and the comprehensive 
SIMONA range. This will allow us to offer a wide range of standard and customised pipes, fittings and sheet 
material. The crucial factor for success in this market is all-round expertise. If you are familiar in detail with 
the processes involved in aquaculture facilities to be upgraded or built from scratch, you will have the basis 
necessary to offer the right products – the kind of products that make the difference and add value.

Fish consumption and aquaculture

n	 �From 1961 to 2017 the consumption of 
fish and seafood increased by 3.1% per 
annum on average, outpacing population 
growth (1.6%). 

n	 �Per capita consumption rose from 9 kg in 
1961 to 20.5 kg in 2018. 

n	 �China is by far the world’s largest producer 
of fish and seafood, accounting for almost 
58% of global production in 2018.

n	 �Other major producing countries are India, 
Indonesia, Vietnam, Bangladesh, Egypt 
and Norway.

Our aim is to put this expertise on a broad footing 
and reproduce it in the SIMONA Group through 
successful international projects. At the same time, 
we need to go wherever the demand emerges. 
That’s why it is extremely important to nurture our 
contacts to globally operating OEMs, to know where 
and when aquaculture facilities are going to be built 
or upgraded and to know who the decision-makers 
are. In this context, our valued business partners 
will continue to play a key role, because both parties 
benefit from this partnership thanks to information-
sharing and the mutual development of customer 
potential.

Proportion of aquaculture in total fish 
catch growing continuously
Fish can make a sustainable contribution to feeding 
the growing world population. In recent years, per 
capita consumption has increased constantly. 
Whereas the wild fish catch is stagnating, aquacul-
ture is continually increasing and already stands at 
50 per cent of the worldwide catch. 

By focusing on equipping land-based fish farming 
systems, SIMONA is contributing to the continued 
increase of the aquaculture catch. The company’s 
long-term prospect is to become a global player in 
this market.
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Grow
Together 
Business EMEA

36     Annual Report 2020

SIMONA is all about commitment. Our 
mission includes securing drinking 
water as a source of life and pursuing 
various projects for the common 
good. At the same time, we support 
employee initiatives and ensure a high 
rate of vocational training.

SIMONA is tapping into new areas of 
business through acquisitions and 
the establishment of global business 
segments. Embracing the motto 
“GrowTogether”, the SIMONA family 
is growing together worldwide.

SIMONA is trusted around the globe. 
No challenge is too big for us – in any 
segment. Offering tailor-made advisory 
services and customised solutions, we 
are looking to strengthen our brand 
worldwide.

>  Projects
from page 38

>  Sustainability and 
Social Commitment

from page 48

>  Miiestones
from page 42

Enhancing our key strengths
We have set ourselves some ambitious goals. And our action plan is already being 
rolled out. The GrowTogether process will take us to the next level: expanding our 
customer and product portfolio, in addition to unlocking growth opportunities.

Grow
Together
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The newly formed Management 
Board team has established clearly 
defined areas of responsibility and 
works efficiently with the Supervisory 
Board in pursuit of commercial 
success.

A share split has been suggested for 
the purpose of making SIMONA shares 
even more attractive. In proposing a 
higher dividend of €12 per share, we 
want our shareholders to participate 
in our company’s solid performance in 
the 2020 financial year.

We have clearly set out the company’s 
prospects, in addition to outlining 
promising developments and discussing 
macroeconomic obstacles. Furthermore, 
we have included details of the work 
performed by the various bodies and 
how they interact.

>  Stock 
Performance and 
Capital Markets 

from page 52

>  Governing Bodies 
at SIMONA AG       

from page 54

>  Report by the 
Supervisory Board 

from page 56
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Grow
Together 

Working at the highest level, 2,962 m above sea level
The Zugspitze is one of the most popular tourist destinations in Germany and Austria. The up to 
8,000 visitors a day present special challenges for water supply. Two drinking water tanks, each 
with a capacity of 50 m3, are needed below the visitor platforms. The water supply for the tanks 
comes from the town of Garmisch, located almost 2,000 m below. Extreme weather conditions 
with severe temperature fluctuations can cause problems at all times of year. The constant 
alternation between freezing and melting can cause the containers to deform and crack. This 
meant that when refurbishing the water supply system, a material was needed that would 
withstand these temperature fluctuations in the long term and tolerate any rock movement. 
SIMONA® PE 100 sheets meet all these conditions and are approved for elevated drinking 
water tanks. The rehabilitation project on the Zugspitze had to be completed quickly during 
normal operation and with no downtimes, as the mountain “never closes”. Only a reputable 
manufacturer with a lot of experience is capable of quickly completing the construction work, 
checking for leaks, disinfecting the tanks, and then putting them into operation. Acquatec 
Feil has already built water tanks using SIMONA sheets for the highest mountain shelter 
belonging to the German Alpine Club (DAV), the Brandenburg House in the Ötztal Alps. For 
the refurbishment on the Zugspitze, the sheets were cut on site and given a tongue-and-
groove system. A conductive coating was applied to every centimetre of the sheets to prevent 
electrostatic charges. In the tank, the sheets were adapted to the specific geometry of the rock 
face and welded. The Department of Health issued its operating permit without identifying any 
deficiencies. The highest water supply in Germany is now waiting for the next rush of visitors. 
Let them come, because not only do the tanks meet all prescribed hygiene regulations, they are 
also easy to clean thanks to the non-porous surface of the SIMONA sheets.

Pipes and fittings for the largest desalination plants in the Middle East
Especially in the desert nations of the Middle East, supplying drinking water is a major challenge, 
and desalination is an intelligent solution. It is therefore not surprising that two of the world’s 
largest desalination plants are located in Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates. They 
operate on the principle of reverse osmosis, a technology in which plastic pipes, fittings and 
semi-finished products play an important role. SIMONA offers a wide range of such products 
in PE 100, PP-H AlphaPlus® and PP-R, and has been able to convince numerous general 
contractors and operators of these facilities worldwide of the manifold benefits of its products. 
This also applied to the two facilities “Taweelah” in the UAE and “Rabigh 3” in Saudi Arabia. 
Thanks to their impressive production capacities, these plants turn 909,000 m³ and 600,000 
m³ of sea water into drinking water every day. The general contractor for the construction project 
was Abengoa, which is based in Spain, where the sub-assemblies were also prefabricated. 

Projects
Getting good projects up and running
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A particular challenge was the tight schedule, which absolutely needed to be adhered to at the 
height of the restrictions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. The specialists from the water 
treatment market segment and our local subsidiary SIMONA IBERICA consulted closely with the 
customer and were able to deliver on time the large number of injection moulded fittings in a 
wide range of sizes with diameters from 20 to 315.

This market segment offers further growth potential worldwide. Through customer training, 
webinars and technical support, SIMONA assists designers, fabricators, general contractors and 
end clients with its high level of technical expertise.

12 km of pipes and fittings for land-based fish farm
Salten Smolt AS, a member of the Salten Aqua Group in Norway, is a specialist in the production, 
marketing, and sale of high-quality salmon. Its production facilities are operated on land only 
using recycled seawater (RAS) and do not impact the sensitive ecosystem of the oceans. To 
meet the growing demand for Norwegian salmon worldwide, plans were firmed up in 2019 
for the construction of another land-based aquaculture facility. The expansion is intended to 
triple Salten Smolt’s production capacity to supply restaurants and other businesses all over 
the world. To meet this challenge, Salten Smolt has found an experienced partner in SIMONA 
Stadpipe, which has already been involved in the construction of some of the world’s largest 
land-based fish farms. In this context, SIMONA Stadpipe has specialised primarily in the design 
and production of pipes, fittings, prefabricated parts and tanks made of polyethylene. For this 
major project, SIMONA Stadpipe will supply a total 11,800 m of PE 100 pipes, fittings and 
special customised fittings from its plastics workshop and around 900 valves. The first salmon 
should be leaving the plant in the summer of 2022. The new farm can supply up to 10 million 
salmon a year.  

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



40     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 
Projects

Park of Poland
In 2020, the largest indoor aquatic park in Europe opened in Mszczonów in Poland, about 
50 km south-west of Warsaw. On a total area of 20 hectares, Suntago Water World can 
welcome more than 15,000 visitors, who will enjoy the three theme parks with 10 themed 
saunas, water slides, and 20 pools among 700 palm trees. The material to be used for the total 
water area of more than 3,500 m² in a pool capacity of almost 6,000 m³ and the 16 water 
slides had to meet stringent specifications, and a complex water treatment system was also 
required. The project was realised by plastics processing company TRANSCOM Sp. z o.o. using 
SIMONA products. Most of the installations were executed using SIMONA® PE 100 pipes and 
fittings, while tanks and filter systems for the pool technology were made from SIMONA® PP-H 
AlphaPlus® sheets.

Orientarium Zoo Łódź
The new Orientarium at Łódź Zoo will cover an area the size of ten football pitches. Within 
the scope of what will be one of the largest investment projects in the Polish zoo’s history, 
modern pavilions, walkways, and aviaries will be built alongside recreational and catering 
facilities. The project will enable exhibits to be linked to one another in a meaningful way and 
will allow animals to be kept in a diversified habitat together with other species. The animals 
will be able to move around as freely as possible and in near-natural conditions. The largest 
saltwater pool at the new facility has a volume of 2,500 m3 and is 6 m deep. Plastics processor 
TRANSCOM Sp. z o.o made the filters for the various pools from SIMONA® PP-H AlphaPlus® 
sheets, while SIMONA® PE 100 pipes and fittings were used for the construction of the water 
supply facilities.

PFA-GK sheets and welding rods for chemical plant in India
Gujarat Alkalies and Chemical Limited is one of the largest producers of caustic soda in India. 
Caustic soda solutions are used in the production of soaps and detergents, for treating drinking 
water, and in the foodstuff and paper industries. For a new chloromethane plant in Dahej, 
Gujarat, India, SIMONA supplied backed PAF-GK sheets for lining the processing systems 
and tanks. This decision was preceded by a comprehensive technical consultation. For the 
installation of our products, employees from the processors, Polyplast Chemi-Plants India Pvt. 
Ltd., Dolf Industries and Hi-Tech Applicator, were trained in the welding and gluing of PFA-GK 
sheets at our headquarters in Kirn, Germany in January 2020.
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FM 4910-rated sheet for wet benches 
Wafab is a leading manufacturer of wet benches used in the semiconductor market. The 
company needed a reliable supplier of materials for a broad range of parts on the wet bench 
- certified in accordance with the international FM 4910 standard. Building on its technical 
expertise and wide range of high-performance materials, SIMONA AMERICA Industries was 
able to provide Wafab with solutions they could rely on in respect of compliance, weldability, 
ease of fabrication and processing as well as long-lasting appearance. Wet bench systems work 
with highly aggressive chemicals. SIMONA® CRP-1 FM 4910-rated sheet is extruded from a 
proprietary formulation and provides higher chemical resistance. It offers improved weldability 
over other PVC semi-finished products. Versarod® welding rod developed by SIMONA was used 
for the purpose of assembling the bench. Its uniform white colour provides an exceptional 
cleanroom appearance.

SIMONA® PP-H for passivation line in the USA 
Hitchiner Manufacturing, a leader in the field of casting technology, needed to replace one of 
its passivation systems. Passivation is a process in which metals are provided with a protective 
coating. The existing line was made of steel and had major damage due to corrosion; its design 
failed to meet current standards in terms of safety and ergonomics. The new system had to be 
able to reproduce the same processes, be easy to operate and, above all, offer a high level of 
safety. Burt Process Equipment teamed up with SIMONA AMERICA Industries to take on this 
challenge. The new system was manufactured primarily from SIMONA® PP-H sheet. It combines 
high chemical resistance with good weldability. Due to the chemicals used in the passivation 
line, some of the components had to be engineered from materials even higher up on the 
plastics pyramid. This included PVDF, a partially fluorinated material with superior chemical 
resistance, manufactured by our preferred partner Arkema. In addition, a transparent PVC glass 
product was also used to serve as a cover.

The ExOne Company 3D printer
Demand for SIMONA Boltaron semi-finished products is particularly strong in the market 
for aircraft interiors. However, their property profile is also a compelling proposition for 
manufacturers of 3D printers. The ExOne Company is a prime example. The company opted 
for Boltaron® 4335 sheet products for the housing of its new mid-size 3D printer X1 25Pro®. 
Essential features: a high-quality surface, compliance with the UL 94 V-0 fire protection 
standard, superior thermoformability and narrow colour tolerances.
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Acquisition within the global aquaculture market
On 1 July 2020, SIMONA acquired a 75 per cent stake in Stadpipe AS in Norway. Since then, 
integration of the company within the SIMONA Group has proceeded in leaps and bounds. 
The acquisition represents a major step towards a stronger focus on applications, a strategic 
goal of SIMONA. Stadpipe holds a strong position in the market for planning, producing and 
installing pipeline systems for aquaculture. The company has around 50 employees at two 
sites in Norway; the majority of its clients are project developers and end users in the fields of 
aquaculture, oil and gas and industry. Its product range is mainly comprised of pipes, fittings, 
prefabricated components and polyethylene tanks, with the emphasis on the emerging market 
of onshore installations. Stadpipe therefore complements and supplements the product 
range of SIMONA. The company will continue to trade independently as SIMONA Stadpipe; in 
future, it will be the only supplier able to offer both sheets as well as pipes and fittings for the 
aquaculture area.

MT Plastik: Aiming to lead the market for PVC foam sheets 
The acquisition of a 70 per cent share in MT Plastik AS of Düzce in Turkey was completed as 
of closing on 1 February 2021. In future, the company will trade on the market as SIMONA 
PLASTECH. With this acquisition, SIMONA is setting out to lead the market for PVC foam sheets 
in terms of quality, breadth of product range and market share. SIMONA PLASTECH plans 
to expand its product portfolio and exploit growth potential in construction and advertising 
applications under the guise of the newly established Advertisement and Building Industry 
business line.

Milestones
Showcasing the potential of SIMONA.

Grow
Together 
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SIMORAIL: Maximum fire prevention for rolling stock
Mobility is one of SIMONA’s global business segments with strong growth potential. The 
business area also includes interior fittings for train, urban-suburban rail, underground and tram 
carriages. The requirements of this market are similar to those of the aviation industry, a field in 
which SIMONA has a wealth of expertise and experience through complying with stringent fire 
prevention and design needs and delivering the best thermoforming properties.

In this market, the new SIMORAIL product family will open up new possibilities for fittings in 
passenger carriages. The products combine ease of handling and the best thermoforming 
properties with a whole range of design options and maximum safety as regards fire prevention.

The SIMORAIL sheets are certified according to EN 45545, the standard developed on the basis 
of existing fire safety regulations for rail vehicles as issued by the International Union of Railways 
(UIC) and various European states. The standard defines fire safety requirements for materials 
deployed in rail vehicles across Europe. A number of products also conform to the specifications 
of commonly accepted North American fire safety standards.
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Kick-off in Asia
As we evolve into a global organisation, communicating shared values and our corporate 
strategy is becoming essential. At many sites around the world, launch events with a focus on 
communicating the company’s goals for the years ahead and inspiring and motivating staff to 
pursue them have become firmly established. In January 2020, when COVID-19 was just one of 
many viruses, a gathering of over 100 employees from SIMONA’s sites in Shanghai, Hong Kong, 
Singapore and Jiangmen (China) was still par for the course. The kick-off event also marked the 
launch of Project E (Expertise, Effort, Efficiency, Enthusiasm, Extraordinary and Endurance). 
Participants in team building activities and sporting challenges were encouraged to realise 
positive changes by considering alternative perspectives and adopting fresh ways of thinking. 
As part of Project E, SIMONA ASIA will undertake annual staff training programmes on the basis 
of these values.

Virtual kick-off for 2021
By December 2020, when the Global Management Team was presenting managers with their 
targets for 2021, the situation was very different: a face-to-face meeting with participants from 
more than 15 countries on three continents was unfortunately impossible. An entirely new 
format was called for, so a television studio was set up for members of the Management Board 
to link up live with CEOs in the USA and Asia. Participants recorded video statements detailing 
their experiences of 2020 and their expectations for 2021. The result was an entertaining 
programme with rewarding content. The balanced scorecard presented at the kick-off event 
for the entire SIMONA Group enabled the management team to compile its own BSCs while 
charting the course and motivating staff to face an exciting and challenging 2021.

Grow
Together 
Milestones
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Goodbye to Larry Schorr
At the virtual management kick-off, Larry Schorr announced his retirement following six years 
as CEO of the SIMONA AMERICA Group. Since selling his Ohio-based business Boltaron 
Performance Products to SIMONA in 2014, Larry Schorr has overseen our North American 
companies and successfully expanded our business in the USA. Throughout his time as CEO 
of SIMONA AMERICA, Larry effectively developed and expanded the company. Under his 
leadership, a new organisational structure was put in place, combining all North American 
entities within the newly founded SIMONA AMERICA Group. With decisive leadership and 
strategic vision, Larry Schorr elevated SIMONA AMERICA to a new level. SIMONA benefited from 
continuously high-yield growth in the USA as well as global growth in its aviation business as 
Larry Schorr built up a successful and highly motivated team. SIMONA would like to thank him 
most sincerely for his inspirational tenure as part of our global management team. Adam Mellen, 
formerly Chief Sales Officer for the SIMONA AMERICA Group, was confirmed as Larry Schorr’s 
successor on the management team during the virtual kick-off event. Adam Mellen brings 
20 years’ experience in the plastics industry to the role.

Conversion of administration building third floor complete
The opening of the new office, meeting and social spaces on the top floor in June 2020 
marked the completion of phase one of the conversion of the administration building at the 
Kirn headquarters. Equipped with a natural cooling system, the offices promise full flexibility 
and state-of-the-art functionality, while a lounge area encourages spontaneous meetings and 
provides somewhere to take a short break. Having been warmly received by employees, the 
concept will now form the basis for planned renovations on the other levels.
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SIMOGLAS
The COVID-19 pandemic has been a driving force behind the development of transparent 
materials used in the field of infection management in the United States. SIMOGLAS is an easy-
to-machine sheet range for free-standing or suspended protective screens. Thanks to its high 
chemical resistance, the crystal clear material is suitable for intensive cleaning cycles. Around 
the globe, SIMONA products in the form of such protective barriers have helped to ensure 
compliance with infection management standards. In Europe, the SIMOLUX range made of 
PETG has enjoyed a veritable boom.

 
 
 
 
SIMOGUARD
The aviation industry is one of the sectors most heavily affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Our subsidiary SIMONA Boltaron has also been impacted by adverse market conditions. 
While the industry as a whole is not likely to bounce back immediately, when it finally does 
its recovery is expected to be consistently strong. Plastics will then have to meet a number of 
new requirements when it comes to key product properties. SIMOGUARD comes with several 
benefits. The newly developed product contains an antimicrobial agent that reliably inhibits the 
growth of microorganisms that may otherwise cause product degradation, staining or odours 
over the course of an extended service life. It has been optimised for the intensive cleaning 
cycles and agents used in the aviation industry and meets key accreditation requirements. 
SIMOGUARD is fully recyclable and combines the benefits of a long service life with excellent 
thermoforming properties.

HDPE sheet for outdoor furniture with woodgrain appearance
Developed for the US market, the new Polygrain HDPE Woodgrain sheet forms an integral part of 
the product range for outdoor applications. The sheet is available in three contemporary colours 
that embrace current design trends within this market. As part of the development process, 
SIMONA AMERICA Industries collaborated with renowned British furniture designer Rob Scarlett. 
The PE sheet can be used to make garden furniture and cabinets that are popular in the United 
States. The sheet is also used in boat building as a decking material.

Grow
Together 
Milestones
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Thermoformable protective film
Customizing is one of the key strengths of SIMONA around the globe. Our subsidiary SIMONA 
PMC has come up with a genuine product innovation on the basis of customer specifications 
defined by a US manufacturer of whirlpools. A thin protective film is applied to an acrylic/ABS 
sheet during the extrusion process. A defining feature: the film is thermoformable. Applying this 
technology, customers are able to create the required shape in a particularly efficient manner. 
The film protects the sheet during thermoforming, finishing and shipping to the end user. It 
withstands the temperatures generated during thermoforming and has no adverse effect on 
the sheet’s surface gloss and appearance. Comprehensive expertise in the selection of the 
film material, the laminating system and process engineering was necessary to achieve  
mass-production readiness.
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Sustainability and Social Commitment 
Helping others, making a difference.

Helping the pandemic response:  
donations to schools, hospitals, local councils and sports clubs
During the pandemic, the retail and hospitality sectors and public amenities had to 
find fast, effective solutions to keep their customers and visitors safe. Transparent 
SIMOLUX sheets made of PETG proved ideal for making hygiene screens. From 
its base in Kirn, SIMONA quickly provided local retailers, schools, hospitals and 
retirement homes with these sheets free of charge and also helped to ensure that 
the mayoral election could be conducted in accordance with COVID-19 regulations. 
Other SIMONA locations were also quick to respond. At our pipes and fittings factory 
in Ringsheim we made it possible for the local shooting club to continue training by 
donating sheets for use as partitions.

Trinkwasserwald
Providing access to clean drinking water is a global challenge. Piping systems and 
sheets from SIMONA for water treatment, water transportation and drainage play 
their part in solving these problems. The Trinkwasserwald e. V. project is also helping 
by promoting careful woodland management to ensure lasting supplies of drinking 
water. We are delighted to provide long-term support to this project and move closer 
to our goal of achieving water neutrality for all SIMONA employees worldwide.

 
Maintaining the vocational training quota
Germany’s dual vocational education system, which combines in-company and college 
training, is the envy of many countries around the world. At SIMONA it plays a key role 
in the recruitment and development of young people. At SIMONA in Germany, nearly 
60 young people have completed their training in twelve commercial and technical 
occupations. 20 trainees began their training at the Kirn and Ringsheim sites in 
2020. Long-term thinking is also vital during a pandemic with its serious economic 
consequences. The number of trainees will stay at this high level in 2021.

Grow
Together 
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Award-winning trainees
In Germany, SIMONA offers training in twelve technical and commercial professions, eight of 
which are available to trainees at our pipe and fittings plant in Ringsheim (Baden-Württemberg). 
Two of these trainees are among the 14 award-winners who took their theory examination at 
the vocational college in Emmendingen in 2020. Enjo Magalhaes de Almeida achieved a grade 
of 1.5 in his examination as a process mechanic for plastics and rubber technology and Jan 
Kunzer achieved a grade of 1.4 as a mechatronics technician. The examination was particularly 
challenging this year due to the constraints of the COVID-19 pandemic.

A Company like a Friend in the COVID age
SIMONA staff all over the world enjoy a close bond. In 2020, many of them had to work from 
home – at times more than 90% of administrative staff were working remotely. Everyone 
missed the smiling faces of their colleagues and the ability to talk to them in person. The team 
at SIMONA AMERICA Industries made the best of it by meeting up for virtual lunch breaks 
every Monday and Friday! This is just one example of how – even in a pandemic – SIMONA is 
“A Company like a Friend”.

 
Ressl-Kros run in the Czech Republic
Around the globe, SIMONA employees have been coming together to keep fit and train and 
compete in groups. SIMONA in the Czech Republic is no exception. With a choice of 5- or 10-km 
routes, the Ressl-Kros Run (named after a local mountain) attracted many entrants, including 
a number of SIMONA employees and their families. It was just for fun, but SIMONA staff put in 
a strong performance with one top 3 and several top 5 placings over the two distances.
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ADOPT-A-HIGHWAY
Social responsibility was also important for our US subsidiaries, particularly during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. In Archbald, Pennsylvania, the SIMONA AMERICA Industries team 
has adopted a 1.5-km stretch of highway, and a team of volunteers goes out to pick up 
litter twice a year.

UNITED WAY
In Findlay Ohio, the team at SIMONA PMC is involved in the local chapter of United Way, 
an organisation that advances the common good in communities around the world. 
Regular fundraising events had to be cancelled due to COVID-19, so SIMONA PMC 
organised an internal competition and donated all the proceeds to United Way.

 

NURSE’S WEEK
SIMONA Boltaron teamed up with a local newspaper for Nurse’s Week. The project 
supports local medical personnel working on the front line during the pandemic.

Grow
Together 
Sustainability and Social Commitment
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Stock market in 2020
In terms of stock market performance, 2020 ended as it had begun: with highs 
in share prices both for Germany’s blue chip index, the DAX, and for the key 
indices on Wall Street. In between, however, investors experienced one of the 
most extreme twelve-month periods of trading ever seen in recent years.

At the beginning of the year, the DAX scaled new heights and approached the 
peak of 14,000 points. In March, however, the global spread of COVID-19 caused 
a dramatic slump to below 8,300 points over a period of just three weeks.

This was followed by a dynamic surge that many stock market experts had not 
thought possible. Apart from minor interruptions, this upward trend lasted until 
the end of the year. Buoyed by the Brexit trade agreement and the signing of a 
coronavirus aid programme in the United States, the DAX climbed to a new high 
of around 13,700 points at the end of the year. The stock market rally continued 
at the beginning of 2021, propelling the DAX to new all-time highs of over 14,000 
points at times.

SIMONA stock in 2020
SIMONA shares performed well at the beginning of the year, rising from their 
opening price of €505 to €540 by mid-February. In line with the COVID-19-
induced crash in stock markets, the company’s share price subsequently fell 
to an annual low of €342. In the course of the surprisingly rapid recovery of 
global stock markets and supported by favourable financial results, the stock 
at times breached the €500 mark in the period leading up to mid-2020, which 
was followed by an inconsistent trend over the course of the remaining year. At 
the end of the year, the share price closed at €490, 3 per cent below the price at 
the beginning of the year. At the beginning of March 2021, SIMONA shares were 
trading at €540, more than 10 per cent above their opening price for the year.

In order to increase the stock’s trading volume and make SIMONA shares more 
attractive to investors, a share split in the ratio of 1:10 will be proposed to the 
virtual annual meeting of shareholders on 2 June 2021. The company’s share 
capital is to be redivided in a ratio of 1:10 without issuing new shares, thus 
increasing the number of shares tenfold. Subject to the approval of the annual 
general meeting, each shareholder will receive nine additional shares for each 

SIMONA STOCK 2020

WKN 723940

ISIN DE0007239402

Type of security Domestic stock 

Par share value No-par-value shares

Issued capital €15.5m

Stock exchange
Frankfurt am Main  
(General Standard), Berlin

Price at beginning  
of the year 

€505.00

Price at end of the year €490.00

Annual high €540.00

Annual low €342.00

Price swing 2020 –3.0 per cent

Stock Performance and Capital Markets
Preserving and enhancing value.

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE SIMONA GROUP

2020 2019 2018

EBIT €m 33.6 29.4 33.2

EBIT % 8.6 6.8 8.0

EBITDA €m 51.8 46.8 48.4

EBITDA % 13.3 10.8 11.6

Total assets €m 448.5 430.2 400.9

Equity €m 206.6 216.3 220.7

on IFRS basis

Grow
Together 

STOCK PERFORMANCE

2020 2019 2018

Earnings  
per share € 38.32 34.13 40.24

Dividend € 12.00 10.00 14.00

Dividend yield % 2.5 2.0 2.9

P/E ratio* 12.8 14.8 12.2

Year-end price € 490.00 505.00 490.00

*Calculated on Group basis



Annual Report 2020      53

share held in SIMONA AG at the reporting date. The shareholder structure and voting rights remain unchanged. Only the notional 
interest in the share capital per share will be divided into ten parts. Further details will be provided in the proposed resolution to 
be published at the annual general meeting.

Dividend
A dividend proposal of €12 per share will be submitted to the annual general meeting of shareholders. SIMONA is thus increasing 
its dividend by €2 compared to the previous year. In submitting this proposal, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board 
want to take into account the Group’s solid earnings performance in the 2020 financial year and provide shareholders with an 
adequate return on their investment. At the same time, this proposal reflects SIMONA’s liquidity-preserving corporate policy during 
the ongoing pandemic.

Contact: Investor Relations, +49(0)6752 14-383, ir@simona.de, www.simona.de/ir

STOCK PERFORMANCE (in €)

575.00

550.00

525.00

500.00

475.00

450.00

425.00

400.00

375.00

2.
01

.

3
.0

2.

2.
0

3
.

1
.0

4.

4.
0

5.

2.
0

6
.

2.
07

.

3
.0

8
.

1
.0

9.

1
.1

0.

2.
11

.

1
.1

2.

3
0.

1
2.

20212020

490.00
(1 year: –3,0%)

	 Closing price at end of month

SHARE PRICE AND DIVIDEND SINCE IPO  (in €)

D
iv

id
en

d 
pe

r s
ha

re

Sh
ar

e 
pr

ic
e

14.00 700

13.00 650

12.00 600

11.00 550

10.00 500

9.00 450

8.00 400

7.00 350

6.00 300

5.00 250

4.00 200

3.00 150

2.00 100

1.00 50

	 	 Year-end share price

	 	 Dividend

1
9

93

1
9

9
4

1
9

95

1
9

9
6

1
9

97

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
9

20
0

0

20
01

20
02

20
0

3

20
0

4

20
0

5

20
0

6

20
07

20
0

8

20
0

9

20
10

20
11

20
1

2

20
1

3

20
14

20
1

5

20
16

20
17

 

20
1

8 

20
1

9

2
0

2
0

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



54     Annual Report 2020

Members of the Management Board

Matthias Schönberg
(since 15 August 2019)
CEO
Chief Executive Officer 
 
Areas of responsibility

	� North America region
	� Asia & Pacific region
	� Strategic Corporate Development
	� Company Acquisitions  
(Mergers & Acquisitions)

	� HR & Legal
	� Investor Relations
	� Marketing & Communication

Michael Schmitz
(since 15 August 2019)
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Areas of responsibility

	� Finance
	� Controlling
	� Taxes
	� Purchasing
	� IT & Organisation
	� Quality Management
	� Real Estate/Construction
	� Energy Management

Dr. Jochen Hauck
(since 1 January 2019)
Chief Operating Officer 
 
 
Areas of responsibility

	� EMEA region (Europe/Middle East/
Africa), South America and India

	� Global Process Management
	� Research and Development
	� Applications Technology/ 
Technical Service Centre

	� Global Process Development
	� Central Logistics
	� HSE (Health, Safety, Environment)

Governing Bodies at SIMONA AG

Grow
Together 
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Members of the Supervisory Board

Committees of the Supervisory Board

Audit Committee Personnel and Nomination Committee  
(Nomination Committee since 27 Aug. 2020)

Dr. Rolf Goessler
Bad Dürkheim, 
Diplom-Kaufmann 
Chairman

Martin Bücher
Biberach,  
Chairman of the Executive Board  
of Kreissparkasse Biberach

Roland Frobel
Isernhagen, 
Tax Consultant,  
Deputy Chairman

Andy Hohlreiter
Becherbach,  
Chairman of the Works Council  
Employee Representative

Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber
Stuttgart, 
Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH, 
Nufringen

Markus Stein
Mittelreidenbach,  
Deputy Chairman of the Works Council 
Employee Representative

	� Roland Frobel, Chairman
	� Dr. Rolf Goessler
	� Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber

	� Dr. Rolf Goessler, Chairman
	� Roland Frobel
	� Dr. sc. techn. Roland Reber
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The COVID-19 crisis also left its mark on the SIMONA Group in the 2020 financial year. The 
impact of the crisis-induced downturn in demand varied across the respective sales regions. At a 
global level, revenue declined by around 10 per cent to €390 million within the SIMONA Group. 
Thanks to significant improvements in profit margins and successful streamlining measures 
within the Group, SIMONA nevertheless managed to increase EBIT to €33.6 million. The EBIT 
margin rose from 6.8 per cent to 8.6 per cent. 

The most severe downturn was seen at SIMONA Boltaron in the United States. There, business 
centred around the aviation industry literally collapsed from the second quarter onwards. 
However, these shortfalls were offset by initial improvements in bottom-line results due to key 
projects aimed at increasing efficiency and process orientation in the semi-finished products 
business in Europe. This was underpinned by a high degree of flexibility shown by our employees 
with regard to capacity management at the company’s headquarters in Kirn and, above all, by 
the reduction of raw material costs. 

We are confident that our recent acquisitions in the USA, Norway and Turkey will strengthen our 
position even more for the future. With this in mind, we consider the proposal to increase the 
dividend again to €12 per share appropriate, despite the fact that future developments remain 
unpredictable due to the COVID-19 crisis.

Cooperation with the Management Board
Over the course of the 2020 financial year, the Supervisory Board discharged its duties under 
statutory provisions, the company’s articles of association and terms of reference, advised the 
Management Board on a regular basis and evaluated and monitored management’s activities 
in respect of legality, appropriateness and regularity. It also conducted an assessment of the 
company’s risk management and compliance procedures and came to the conclusion that the 
system implemented meets the requirements to the fullest extent. The Management Board and 
Supervisory Board engaged in dialogue concerning the strategic direction of the company and 
regularly discussed the status of execution with regard to strategic initiatives. The Supervisory 
Board was directly involved in all decision-making processes of fundamental importance to the 
company. The Management Board informed the Supervisory Board as part of regular written 
and verbal reports, furnished in a timely and comprehensive manner. At the same time, the 

Report by the Supervisory Board – 2020 Financial Year

Dr. Rolf Goessler 
Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board
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Management Board outlined any deviations between specified targets and the actual course 
of business, elucidated them in full and explained any countermeasures taken to rectify the 
situation. The content and scope of reports furnished by the Management Board met the 
requirements set out by the Supervisory Board. In addition to the above-mentioned reports, the 
Supervisory Board asked the Management Board to provide supplementary information relating 
to certain issues.

In particular, the Management Board was available at Supervisory Board meetings for the 
purpose of discussing specific points and answering any questions put to it by the Supervisory 
Board. Transactions requiring the Supervisory Board’s consent were discussed and examined in 
depth in cooperation with the Management Board. Where required, the Supervisory Board also 
convened without the Management Board being present.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board was also kept fully informed by the CEO about current 
matters and circumstances in between meetings convened by the Supervisory Board and its 
committees. In the case of significant events in respect of the situation and performance of 
the company, this information was provided immediately. Additionally, the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board conducted one-to-one meetings with the other members of the Management 
Board for the purpose of discussing specific issues relating to their remit.

In accordance with the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code (GCGC), the 
Supervisory Board uses a self-evaluation questionnaire to regularly assess how effectively it and 
its committees as a whole perform their duties (efficiency review). The results are discussed 
on an anonymous basis at a meeting, including any potential for improvement. The last self-
evaluation took place in 2019 and resulted in grades ranging from good to excellent in the 
individual categories that were subject to review.

The members of the Supervisory Board organise training and further training measures on 
their own initiative, with SIMONA AG supporting the members of the Supervisory Board in an 
appropriate manner where this is necessary. This is a requirement under the provisions of the 
new GCGC. In this context, no joint measures were implemented for the Supervisory Board in 
2020.
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Supervisory Board meetings
The Supervisory Board convened four scheduled meetings over the course of 2020. They were 
held as face-to-face meetings, while observing relevant hygiene and physical distancing rules. 
Each member of the Supervisory Board attended all meetings in person.

At the meeting on 23 April 2020, the consolidated financial statements and the annual 
financial statements of the AG (parent company) were adopted and approved. The proposal 
by the Management Board for the appropriation of the unappropriated surplus generated 
in the 2019 financial year, as amended due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, with 
a dividend proposal to the Annual General Meeting reduced to €10, was discussed and 
approved. Furthermore, the report by the Supervisory Board for the 2019 financial year was 
adopted alongside the result of the audit conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board also 
approved the Non-Financial Statement pursuant to Section 289b and Section 315b HGB and 
the Corporate Governance Statements in accordance with Section 289f HGB and Section 315d 
HGB as well as the agenda for the virtual Annual General Meeting in 2020. The Supervisory 
Board also discussed the current business performance and the outlook for the 2020 financial 
year as a whole. It informed itself about the status of the strategy and M&A projects. Other items 
on the agenda included the status of succession planning at various management levels.

At the meeting on 4 June 2020, the Supervisory Board informed itself about the current 
business trend and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic as well as measures to limit the 
impact on bottom-line performance. In addition, the purchase of interests in the Turkish PVC 
foam sheet manufacturer MT Plastik, which was still in the planning stage at the time, was on 
the agenda. At this meeting, the Supervisory Board was also informed about the status of plant 
optimisation at the headquarters in Kirn as well as other strategic projects. It also discussed 
improvements to the balanced scorecard target agreement and control system.

At the meeting on 27 August 2020, the Supervisory Board dealt with the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic on business activities in Europe, the USA and Asia. In addition, it was given a status 
update on strategic projects and was informed about the integration of the acquiree SIMONA 
Stadpipe as well as the status of the M&A project in Turkey.

The meeting on 2 December 2020 also focused on business performance and the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic in the individual regions. In addition, the Supervisory Board discussed and 
approved the budget for 2021. It informed itself about M&A projects and the reorganisation of 
the management structure in North America due to the departure of the CEO there. Furthermore, 
the Supervisory Board adopted the financial calendar for 2021 and decided to propose a share 
split at a ratio of 1:10 to the Annual General Meeting in 2021.
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Committee work
The Audit Committee and the Personnel and Nomination Committee are responsible for 
supporting the Supervisory Board. Both committees regularly provide the Supervisory Board with 
extensive information relating to their activities. 

The Audit Committee is responsible primarily for issues relating to the supervision of the 
accounting process, the efficacy of the internal control system and the internal auditing system, 
year-end auditing, with a particular focus on the independence of the auditor, the additional 
services provided by the independent auditor, the determination of auditing focal points and 
arrangements relating to fees as well as compliance and acquisitions.

The principal duties of the Personnel and Nomination Committee are centred around 
compensation as well as the conclusion, amendment and termination of Management Board 
members’ employment contracts. In addition, its task is to nominate suitable candidates 
to the Supervisory Board for its proposals to the Annual General Meeting for the election of 
Supervisory Board members.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee convened on four occasions. All committee members attended the 
meetings in person. The possible impact of the COVID-19 crisis on liquidity and M&A projects 
was dealt with extensively, especially at the first meetings of the year. The discussions were also 
devoted to considerations on strengthening the Semi-Finished Products business line, the global 
search for further M&A candidates and the critical appraisal of existing commitments. Meetings 
with the auditors served to prepare the adoption of the annual financial statements and the 
focal points of the audit for the following year.

Personnel and Nomination Committee
The Personnel and Nomination Committee met on four occasions. All committee members 
attended the meetings in person. Deliberations were mainly centred on the leadership structure 
of the SIMONA Group, with a strong emphasis on specific changes within the Management 
Board, as well as long-term succession planning. At several meetings and discussions, the 
Nomination Committee drew up a model for the future composition of the Supervisory Board. 
Based on this model, the search for a successor for the chair of the Supervisory Board after the 
2021 general meeting was conducted with the support of external consultants. As a result, the 
Supervisory Board will propose a successor for election at this Annual General Meeting.
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Dealing with conflicts of interest
All members of the Supervisory Board are obliged to disclose conflicts of interest as soon as 
they occur. As in the previous years, there were no conflicts of interest during the 2020 financial 
year. Following our review, we ascertained that all members of our board are independent within 
the meaning of the German Corporate Governance Code. In this context, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Statement issued pursuant to Section 289f HGB and Section 315d HGB.

Annual financial and consolidated financial statements
The accounts of SIMONA AG for the 2020 financial year were audited by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main. The 
firm was elected as auditor at the Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2020. Before proposing 
PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH as auditor to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board had obtained confirmation from PricewaterhouseCoopers 
GmbH that there were no circumstances which might prejudice its independence as an auditor. 
The auditor conducted an audit and furnished an unqualified audit opinion with regard to the 
financial statements and management report of SIMONA AG and the consolidated financial 
statements and Group management report, which was combined with the management 
report of SIMONA AG, as well as the explanatory report by the Management Board in respect 
of disclosures under Section 289a and 315a HGB in conjunction with the accounting records. 
The financial statements mentioned above, the audit reports and the Management Board’s 
proposal for the appropriation of the unappropriated surplus were submitted to all Audit 
Committee and Supervisory Board members in good time. At the Supervisory Board meeting 
on 14 April 2021, the independent auditor furnished detailed information about all material 
conclusions of the audit and answered all questions put forward by the Supervisory Board 
in a detailed and comprehensive manner. The Supervisory Board independently examined 
the financial statements and management report of SIMONA AG as well as the consolidated 
financial statements and the Group management report, which has been combined with the 
management report of SIMONA AG, as prepared by the Management Board, in addition to the 
explanatory report by the Management Board in respect of disclosures required under Section 
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289a and Section 315a HGB, the audit reports issued by the independent auditor and the 
proposal put forward by the Management Board with regard to the appropriation of profit. 
The Supervisory Board raised no objections upon conclusion of this final examination. The 
Supervisory Board concurs with the findings of the audit conducted by the independent auditor 
and approved the company’s financial statements, which are thereby adopted pursuant to 
Section 172 sentence 1 AktG, as well as the consolidated financial statements at its meeting 
on 14 April 2021. It also approved the report by the Supervisory Board. Furthermore, the 
Supervisory Board concurs with the Management Board’s proposal for the appropriation of 
profit. The Supervisory Board conducted a thorough review of the Non-Financial Statement 
issued by the company in accordance with Section 289b and Section 315b HGB; it discussed 
it at its audit meeting on 14 April 2021 and adopted it accordingly. No voluntary review by 
the independent auditors was conducted in respect of the Non-Financial Statement, as the 
Supervisory Board possesses the requisite expertise in this matter. 

Due to the COVID-19 crisis, our employees around the globe were exposed to considerable 
stress. In addition to the general restrictions, this was especially true with regard to the 
exceptional challenges at the workplace due to home office deployment and lack of personal 
contact with customers, suppliers and other business partners. We would like to express 
our special thanks to all of them, especially for their exemplary efforts aimed at preventing 
direct COVID-19 infections at our plants.

Kirn, 14 April 2021

The Supervisory Board 
Dr. Rolf Goessler, Chairman
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Combined Management Report  
for the 2020 Financial Year

This management report combines the Group management 
report and the separate management report of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn (referred to also as SIMONA AG, 
SIMONA or company) (Section 315(3) in conjunction with 
Section 298(3) of the German Commercial Code – HGB). 
This combined management report has been published instead 
of a Group management report in the annual report of the 
SIMONA Group. It includes details relating to the course of 
business, including performance, as well as the position and 
expected development of the Group and SIMONA AG. 
Information pertaining to SIMONA AG has been included in the 
business review that can be found in a separate section with 
details presented in accordance with provisions set out in the 
German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).

>  Business review
from page 67

>  Fundamental  
information 

about the group
from page 64
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>  Report on 
opportunities  

and risks
from page 79

>  Report on  
expected 

developments
from page 83

>  Other information 
from page 85

>  Non-financial 
statement pursuant 

to section 289b 
and section 315b 

HGB
from page 88

Combined  
Management Report  

for the  

2020 
Financial Year
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1. Fundamental information 
about the group

1.1 The business model

The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range of 
semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as profiles. 
The materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene 
(PP), polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), 
polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene 
(E-CTFE), perfluoroalkoxy (PFA), thermoplastic olefins (TPO), 
acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) and various specialist 
materials. The production methods applied within this area 
range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC 
manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its own plastics workshop 
for the production of customised fittings.

Key sales markets
Semi-finished products are deployed mainly within the area 
of chemical tank and equipment construction, mechanical 
engineering, the transport industry, the construction sector, 
the exhibition and display sector as well as the automotive and 
aerospace industry. Pipes and fittings are used primarily for 
drinking-water supply, sewage disposal and industrial piping 
systems, including the chemical process industry, as well as in 
the field of aquaculture.

The SIMONA Group markets its products worldwide. Categorised 
geographically according to the regions
  Europe,
  Americas, and
  Asia and Pacific,
the business segments comprise the product areas
  Semi-Finished Products, and
  Pipes and Fittings.

Production and sales locations
Sales activities at Group level are conducted by SIMONA AG and 
subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, Italy, France, Spain, Poland, 

the Czech Republic, Russia, Hong Kong, China, India, Norway and 
the United States, both directly and via trading partners. Beyond 
this, SIMONA AG operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland. 
It contributes around 3 per cent to Group sales revenue. The 
parent company, SIMONA AG, has its registered office in 55606 
Kirn (Germany). In the period under review, the SIMONA Group 
operated three manufacturing facilities in Germany and six plants 
located abroad. Semi-finished products (sheets, rods, welding rods) 
are manufactured at two plants in Kirn (Rhineland-Palatinate), 
while pipes, fittings and customised parts are produced at a 
facility in Ringsheim (Baden-Württemberg). The plant in Litvinov 
(Czech Republic) produces pipes and sheets, while the site in 
Jiangmen (China) manufactures sheets. The facility operated by 
SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC in Archbald (Pennsylvania, USA) 
mainly produces sheet products. SIMONA Boltaron Inc. produces 
thermoplastic sheet products at its plant in Newcomerstown 
(Ohio, USA), which are primarily used for aircraft interiors and in 
the building sector. Additionally, SIMONA PMC, LLC manufactures 
sheet products at its facility in Findlay (Ohio, USA). Made primarily 
from thermoplastic olefins (TPO) and acrylonitrile butadiene 
styrene (ABS), they are used in thermoforming applications. 
SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet (Norway), plans, produces and 
installs piping systems for aquaculture applications.

Management and supervision at SIMONA AG
The members of the Management Board in the financial year under 
review were Dr. Jochen Hauck, Matthias Schönberg (Chairman/
CEO) and Michael Schmitz. SIMONA has established a Global 
Management Team (GMT) that consists of the Management Board 
of SIMONA AG as well as the CEOs of SIMONA in the United States, 
Larry Schorr (until 31 December 2020) and Adam Mellen (as from 
1 January 2021), and Asia, Y.K. Wong. The GMT is intended to 
facilitate a regular global exchange relating to strategy, in addition 
to managing global projects and promoting the internationalisation 
of the company.

The Supervisory Board included the following members in 
the financial year under review: Dr. Rolf Goessler (Chairman), 
Roland Frobel (Deputy Chairman), Dr. Roland Reber and Martin 
Bücher as well as Andy Hohlreiter and Markus Stein as employee 
representatives.
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1.2 Objectives and strategies

The SIMONA Group conducted an in-depth analysis of its strategic 
positioning in 2020, which included redefining the direction to 
be taken. Its ambitions within this area have been summarised 
under the heading „GrowTogether“. The primary goal remains the 
generation of profitable growth, which is to be achieved organically 
and through company acquisitions. In this context, the focus is on 
thermoplastic sheets, pipes and fittings, which SIMONA supplies 
to industries undergoing global growth. Group revenue is to be 
increased further, with the EBIT margin standing at between 6 and 
8 per cent. SIMONA is looking to become the company with the 
highest degree of end-consumer orientation within its industry. The 
HR motto „A company Like a Friend“ underscores the aspiration 
of a close and trusting relationship with all stakeholders. This is 
promoted by well-trained employees, open communication and a 
culture of feedback. 

SIMONA has introduced strategic initiatives in pursuit of these 
goals.

  �Process orientation: with the aim of achieving excellence 
relating to all processes, the latter are to be further refined, 
documented and continuously improved. SIMONA will introduce 
consistent process orientation through intensive staff training 
and development as well as an open culture of communication 
and feedback.

  �Application orientation: SIMONA will focus on core markets 
and align its structural and process organisation with the 
requirements of end customers. This provides the foundation for 
an in-depth understanding of the fields of application relating 
to the various products. New areas of application are to be 
cultivated selectively according to this principle.

  �Agile partner to industry: SIMONA wants to think in a market- 
and applications-driven way, while acting in a product-based 
manner. A close dialogue with end customers and a thorough 
understanding of the challenges they face are essential, 
regardless of the sales channel of the products in question.

  �Global profitability: each and every region is to make a 
consistently profitable contribution to the company‘s success.

  �Sustainable added value for society and the environment: the 
intelligent and resource-efficient use of plastics, for example, 
can help to reduce energy consumption and emissions, 
facilitate water treatment or ensure the transport of energy from 
renewable sources.

SIMONA pursued these goals consistently over the course of 2020, 
adjusting them to some extent in response to market distortions 
caused by the COVID-19 crisis. In Europe, a new application- and 
process-oriented business structure for the EMEA region was 
drawn up and introduced as from 1 January 2021. This involved 
discontinuing the company‘s former divisional separation into the 
product areas of Semi-Finished Products and Pipes and Fittings 
in favour of an application-oriented structure centred around 
business lines. The principal goals are to raise the company‘s 
competitiveness through improved efficiency, closer dialogue with 
end users and better customer service, in addition to pressing 
ahead with efforts to enter new fields of application and develop 
new products. SIMONA has introduced five business lines: Industry, 
Infrastructure, Advertisement & Building Industry, Mobility and 
Aquaculture. The Aquaculture business line includes the Norwegian 
company Stadpipe AS, which was acquired effective from 1 July 
2020 and is expected to make a decisive contribution to achieving 
the company‘s growth targets within the global aquaculture market. 
The acquisition of the Turkish manufacturer of PVC foam sheets 
MT Plastik AS, Düzce/Turkey effective from 1 February 2021 is a 
strategic decision that will strengthen the market position of the 
Advertisement & Building Industry business line in Europe. SIMONA 
thus aims to extend its premier market position with regard to 
quality, breadth of product range and market share.

Other important elements of the new organisational structure 
are an organisational separation of customer support and order 
management in Customer Service and end-to-end process 
orientation throughout the company, which will improve delivery 
capability and enable faster response times. Furthermore, the 
areas of logistics and production in Europe were analysed as part 
of other strategic sub-projects. Investments in automation, lean 
management and plant optimisation and control are aimed at 
raising efficiency levels and thus competitiveness. 
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Following the severe COVID-19-induced slump in business relating 
to sheets for aircraft interiors, the strategy adopted by SIMONA 
Boltaron, a subsidiary based in the Americas region, was realigned 
towards tapping into new fields of application with comparable 
product requirements, as the aircraft business is not expected to 
return to its pre-crisis level until 2025 at the earliest. 

1.3 Internal control system 

SIMONA uses the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) as a strategic 
management and monitoring instrument. Within this context, the 
Management Board is responsible for the BSC-related corporate 
goals, as well as being accountable for regularly reviewing the 
efficacy of the BSC process as part of an overall assessment of the 
management system and initiating adjustments to the BSC process 
and the BSC-related corporate goals. The BSC cascades down to 
the company‘s other management levels. The BSC process was 
reviewed in 2019. The regions covering the United States and Asia 
were systematically included in the newly established BSC process. 
Measures were introduced to ensure faster target agreement and 
better controlling with regard to target achievement. In 2020, 
these measures led to the target agreement process for the 2021 
financial year being completed one month faster.

The analysis and assessment of earnings performance by SIMONA 
are conducted primarily with the help of sales revenue as well as 
the two financial indicators EBIT and EBITDA. EBIT represents the 
operating result before interest and taxes as well as income from 
investments. EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
and amortisation as well as investment income) represents an 
approximation for cash flow from operating activities, as non-cash 
depreciation/write-downs of property, plant and equipment as well 
as amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets are added to the 
EBIT figure.

Additionally, the return on operating assets is reviewed annually 
within the Group as part of the forecasting process and serves as 
an important criterion when it comes to managing the investment 
budget. ROCE, which stands for return on capital employed, is used 
as a profitability indicator (capital employed is calculated as follows: 

intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, financial assets, 
inventories and trade receivables less trade payables).

The principal non-financial indicators employed by the company 
include customer satisfaction, number of staff and their 
qualifications as well as quality management.

1.4 Research and development 

Research and development is subdivided into the areas of 
Formula Development, New Products & Applications and Process 
Development. Innovation Circles apply the Stage-Gate process to 
evaluate and prioritise new product ideas, before pursuing market 
roll-out. The indicator used in this area is the share of recent 
products (no older than three years) in total sales revenue, which 
was increased slightly over the course of 2020.

As regards process and material development, the focus was 
on raising efficiency levels and introducing lean structures and 
shop floor management as part of the strategic realignment in 
Europe. To this end, a comprehensive programme of investment 
and measures was launched. In addition to targeting innovative 
components for measurement and control technology, investments 
were also made in state-of-the-art nozzle technology that is aimed 
at reducing changeover times. The roll-out of surface inspection 
systems continued in 2020. As regards partially fluorinated 
materials, production capabilities relating to PVDF were extended 
to include sheet thicknesses of up to 25 mm. At a global level, the 
subsidiaries in the United States and Asia were given support with 
the development and industrial-scale production of transparent 
sheet material to meet COVID-19-related demand.

At the pipe and fittings plant in Ringsheim (Baden-Württemberg), 
investments were made in expanding the injection-moulding 
portfolio and raising efficiency levels with the help of multiple 
moulds.  A new, state-of-the-art injection-moulding machine for the 
production of loose flanges was installed in 2020. Featuring a 3D 
bin picking system, the line enables automated loading of the steel 
rings, which reduces manual work. 
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Investments were made at the three US production sites to 
improve quality and output. At the plant in Archbald, automatic 
thickness measurement and visual QM systems were introduced 
on a production line for laminated sheets.

At the Jiangmen plant in China, production capacity for PVC 
sheet extrusion was expanded to meet heightened demand for 
transparent materials in the semiconductor and electroplating 
industries. Additionally, capacities for the production of polyolefin 
welding rods were increased and investments were made with 
regard to the surface design and foam technology of polyolefin 
sheets. 

Within the area of semi-finished products, a product range for 
rail vehicles was developed that meets the strict fire regulations 
of the EN 45545 standard. The range was rolled out under the 
SIMORAIL brand name. The SIMONA® PP-H AlphaPlus® product 
line for applications primarily within the chemical process industry 
was further optimised in the period under review. Both a PVC 
product and a PVC-free variant for use in hygienic areas were 
developed for the wall protection panel market. 

The company‘s focus within the area of pipes and fittings was on 
strengthening its abilities as an innovator. Product and application 
development was restructured and upstaffed. A range of cable 
protection pipes with higher temperature resistance and low-
friction interior layers was developed for the transport of renewable 
energies in particular. SIMOFUSE, the joining technology developed 
by SIMONA, can now be used to manufacture modules in large 
dimensional ranges. The product range for sewer rehabilitation 
was expanded, especially with regard to ovoid pipes.  

As in the previous year, expenses attributable to research 
and development within the Group amounted to €4.4 million. 
Expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment.

2. Business review 

2.1 Macroeconomic and sector-specific environment 

The COVID-19 pandemic plunged the global economy – already 
flagging in 2019 – into the worst recession since the 2008/2009 
financial crisis. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecast 
a decline in global economic growth of 3.5 per cent – after growth 
of 2.8 per cent in the previous year. In this context, economic 
performance varied across the SIMONA Group‘s three reporting 
regions.

Based on initial estimates, the gross domestic product (GDP) 
within the eurozone fell by 6.8 per cent in 2020. Economic 
output in Germany declined by 5.0 per cent. The pandemic had 
a visible impact on all sectors of the economy, with the exception 
of the construction industry, which saw a slight upturn. Capital 
expenditure on machinery and equipment, an aspect that is of 
particular importance to SIMONA‘s business activities, declined by 
as much as 12.5 per cent. In Spain (–11.1 per cent), France (–9.0 
per cent) and Italy (–9.2 per cent) the downturn in GDP was even 
more pronounced than in Germany.

Despite the highest number of infections worldwide, the US 
economy weathered the pandemic relatively well. Here, economic 
output fell by 3.5 per cent in 2020 as a whole. This was attributable 
to relatively stable investments in machinery equipment, coupled 
with a consistent level of private consumption.

The downturn in economic activity was also less pronounced in 
the Asia-Pacific region. In fact, China actually managed to achieve 
growth in 2020 – the only major economy in the world to do so in 
the period under review. Its GDP increased by 2.3 per cent. China 
emerged from the pandemic faster than many other countries, 
benefiting in particular from buoyant demand for medical and 
computer equipment. Growth was also underpinned by the rapid 
recovery of its domestic economy. 
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Revenue generated by the plastics processing industry in Germany 
fell by 5.6 per cent to €61.5 billion in 2020. At 6.1 per cent, foreign 
sales declined at a more pronounced rate than domestic sales 
at 5.5 per cent. As regards the individual categories of plastics 
processing, the segment comprising technical components suffered 
the most significant declines, mainly due to the poor performance 
of the automotive industry, while the construction segment came 
close to emulating its prior-year performance. 

The chemical industry in Germany also had to contend with a 
significant downturn in the year under review. Revenue generated 
by Germany‘s third largest industry fell by 6 per cent. At 6.5 per 
cent, foreign business contracted at a faster rate than its domestic 
counterpart (–5.5 per cent), the impact being felt in almost all 
export markets. The chemical and pharmaceutical industry in Asia, 
the world‘s largest chemical market, proved resilient to the crisis. 
By the end of the year, many Asian countries had returned to – or 
even exceeded – their pre-crisis levels. In China, annual production 
within the chemical and pharmaceutical industry in 2020 was 
actually higher than in the preceding year.

Europe‘s mechanical engineering industry was hit particularly hard 
by the economic crisis that followed in the wake of the COVID-19 
pandemic. In 2020, production output in Germany‘s mechanical 
and plant engineering sector fell by 12.1 per cent year on year in 
real terms, according to preliminary data issued by the Federal 
Statistical Office. In Germany, order intake declined by 11 per cent 
compared to the previous year. In the United States, meanwhile, 
production output shrank by 9 per cent. China, by contrast, saw 
production output expand by almost 6 per cent.  

In Germany, the construction industry was one of the few economic 
sectors to achieve growth in 2020. The two industry associations 
Bauindustrie and Deutsches Bauhauptgewerbe anticipate revenue 
growth of 1.5 per cent for the principal construction sector. This 
growth was driven by public construction projects, while commercial 
construction declined by 0.7 per cent due to the lower propensity 
among companies to invest. 

The global market for aircraft interiors was severely impacted by the 
virtual collapse of international air traffic. Market experts predict a 
decline in revenue of more than 50 per cent in 2020. 

2.2 Course of business – SIMONA Group 

Sales revenue totalled €389.8 million in the 2020 financial year 
(previous year: €432.5 million), which corresponds to a decline in 
revenue by 9.9 per cent. In regional terms, the Americas recorded 
the most severe downturn in revenue in the period under review. 
While Europe saw a moderate decline in revenue, Asia generated 
revenue that was comparable to the prior-year figure. Competition 
remained intense in all regions and product groups. SIMONA fell 
short of its revenue forecast of €430 to 440 million made in the 
previous year‘s Group management report for the 2020 financial 
year, due in particular to the COVID-19 crisis.

Group earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) totalled €33.6 
million, up on the figure of €29.4 million reported in the previous 
financial year. The EBIT margin stood at 8.6 per cent (previous year: 
6.8 per cent). The Group therefore managed to exceed its projected 
EBIT margin of between 6 and 8 per cent. EBITDA rose from €46.8 
million a year ago to €51.8 million at the end of the reporting 
period. This translates into an EBITDA margin of 13.3 per cent 
(previous year: 10.8 per cent), which is in excess of the projected 
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EBITDA margin of 9 to 11 per cent. The improvement in the EBIT 
margin was mainly attributable to lower material costs and selling 
expenses, despite lower revenue.

At 11.0 per cent, Group ROCE was above target (8 to 10 per cent) 
and also up on the prior-year figure of 9.6 per cent.

Europe
The region comprising Europe saw sales revenue decline by 4.8 
per cent to €256.7 million in total (previous year: €269.7 million). 
In Central Europe, business relating to semi-finished products 
declined disproportionately, compared to a slight downturn for 
pipes and fittings. In Eastern Europe, both areas of business 
contracted to an equal extent, while Western Europe was mainly 
affected within the product group of pipes and fittings. Contrary to 
the trend of previous years, the share of total revenue accounted 
for by Europe increased from 62.4 to 65.9 per cent, in particular 
due to the slump in revenue from sales in the region covering the 
Americas. EBIT within the segment covering Europe more than 
doubled, up from €9.8 million in the previous year to €22.7 million 
in the period under review.

Americas
The region comprising the Americas saw sales revenue fall by a 
significant 21.2 per cent in total, taking the figure to €103.9 million 
(previous year: €131.9 million). This was due primarily to the slump 
in business centred around aircraft interior fittings. As a result, the 
share of total revenues attributable to this region fell from 30.5 per 
cent to 26.6 per cent. In the Americas segment, EBIT was halved 
from €19.0 million in the previous year to €8.5 million in the period 
under review.

Asia and Pacific
The region covering Asia and Pacific generated revenue of €29.2 
million (previous year: €30.9 million). After a sluggish first half 
due to the pandemic, revenue increased significantly again in 
the second six months, particularly as a result of business in the 
automotive sector. Business within the area of pipes and fittings 
was more buoyant than in the previous year. The share of total 
revenues attributable to this region rose from 7.1 per cent to 7.5 
per cent. The Asia and Pacific segment recorded EBIT of €2.8 
million (previous year: €0.4 million). This includes a one-off effect 
due to the parent company‘s waiver of existing receivables in the 
amount of EUR 2.1 million, an item consolidated in the context of 
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE BY REGION

Allocated acc. to place of registered office of revenue-generating business unit
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Sales revenue by product area
The area comprising semi-finished products generated revenue of 
€306.5 million in the period under review (previous year: €344.1 
million). The overall decline in revenue by 10.9 per cent is mainly 
due to the slump in aviation business in the United States as well 
as a worldwide downturn in revenue in the wake of the coronavirus 
pandemic.  

In the product area comprising pipes and fittings sales revenue fell 
by 5.7 per cent to €83.3 million in the financial year under review 
(previous year: €88.4 million). The downturn in revenue is due to 
COVID-19 as well as a contraction in project business. 

Orders
Order backlog within the Group stood at €45.1 million as at 31 
December 2020 (previous year: €47.2 million); of this total, a figure 
of €20.9 million (previous year: €22.6 million) is attributable to 
SIMONA AG.

2.3 Financial performance 

Group EBIT (earnings before taxes, interest and investment income) 
rose by 14.1 per cent, up from €29.4 million to €33.6 million. 

At 8.6 per cent, the EBIT margin was up on the figure of 6.8 per 
cent recorded in the previous financial year. The improvement in 
Group EBIT is mainly due to lower material and other expenses 
and higher other income. This more than compensated for the 
decline in revenue. The reduction in the cost of materials is largely 
attributable to lower procurement costs for raw materials. Other 
expenses were scaled back, in particular due to lower selling 
expenses in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic. Against the 
backdrop of slightly higher depreciation/amortisation, this led to an 
improvement in EBITDA (earnings before taxes, interest, investment 
income and depreciation/amortisation) to €51.8 million (previous 
year: €46.8 million). This corresponds to an EBITDA margin of 
13.3 per cent (previous year: 10.8 per cent), The return on capital 
employed (ROCE) increased from 9.6 per cent in the previous year 
to 11.0 per cent due to higher earnings.

Overall, gross profit (revenue, other income, change in inventories 
of finished goods and work in progress less cost of materials) 
improved by 0.4 percentage points year on year in the period under 
review to €209.3 million (previous year: €208.5 million). The gross 
profit margin rose to 53.7 per cent (previous year: 48.2 per cent). 
The improvement in the gross profit margin is mainly due to lower 
procurement costs for raw materials and additives. 

A decrease in inventories of €–2.6 million was accounted for in the 
income statement (previous year: €–2.1 million).

Other income totalled €8.8 million (previous year: €4.6 million). 
The year-on-year increase is attributable primarily to the reversal of 
provisions and gains from currency translation.

Commodity prices fell during the first half of 2020, before trending 
higher again in the course of the fourth quarter. The cost of 
materials amounted to €186.6 million in the financial year under 
review (previous year: €226.5 million). The cost of energy included 
in the cost of materials was down by approximately €0.7 million 
compared to the previous year. This reflects the decline in output as 
well as the reduction in electricity procurement costs.

Staff costs stood at €87.0 million (previous year: €85.7 million), 
up 1.5 per cent on last year‘s figure. The year-on-year change was 
mainly attributable to collective wage increases and the addition 
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of new staff as part of the acquisition of SIMONA Stadpipe AS in 
Norway. The reduction in personnel in the United States due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic in particular had a counteracting effect.

Depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets under lease arrangements and intangible assets, 
including write-downs, amounted to €18.3 million (previous year: 
€17.4 million). This includes depreciation of right-of-use assets 
under lease arrangements totalling €0.9 million.

Other expenses fell year on year, down by 7.2 per cent to €70.5 
million (previous year: €76.0 million). The year-on-year change was 
due primarily to lower expenses relating to sales (€–5.9 million). 
This was offset in part by higher operating costs (€+0.7 million) and 
an increase in legal and consulting costs (€+0.8 million).

Taxes on income fell slightly from €7.4 million a year ago to €7.3 
million at the end of the reporting period. The Group tax rate was 
24.0 per cent in the period under review, down from 26.5 per cent 
in the previous year. The year-on-year change is attributable in 
particular to lower advance tax payments due to reduced earnings 
projections for the 2020 financial year at the start of the COVID-19 
pandemic.

The individual sales companies operating within the segment 
encompassing Europe recorded positive earnings in the period 
under review. In particular, the earnings contributions made by the 
subsidiaries in Eastern Europe and the United Kingdom were higher 
year on year. Earnings generated by the production company in the 
Czech Republic were also up on the prior-year figure. The cost of 
materials was €128.3 million (previous year: €151.8 million), i.e. 
this item fell at a more pronounced rate compared to the decline 
in revenue. Both raw material and energy costs decreased in the 
period under review. At €60.5 million, staff costs were up 5.7 per 
cent on the previous year, mainly due to the first-time inclusion 
of SIMONA Stadpipe AS. Other expenses totalled €51.3 million 
(previous year: €50.5 million).

EBIT generated in the Americas segment were down significantly 
due to the severe slump in the aviation business. The cost of 
materials amounting to €47.6 million (previous year: €60.7 million) 
fell mainly in line with the reduction in sales volumes. Staff 

costs stood at €23.2 million (previous year: €24.8 million). 
At €19.2 million, other expenses were down by €–4.0 million 
compared to the previous year, primarily as a result of lower selling 
expenses.

Earnings within the Asia and Pacific segment stood at €2.8 million 
(previous year: €0.4 million). This includes a one-off effect due to 
the waiver of existing receivables in the amount of EUR 2.1 million, 
an item consolidated in the context of the preparation of the con
solidated financial statements. Both staff costs and other expenses 
were lower than in the previous year. With the exception of the sub-
sidiary in India, the sales companies in the Asia and Pacific segment 
recorded increases in earnings compared to the previous year.

2.4. Financial position
 
Total Group assets as at 31 December 2020 were €448.5 million, 
up on the prior-year figure (€430.2 million). 

Changes to assets
Intangible assets totalled €40.4 million (previous year: €38.0 
million) and mainly consisted of goodwill from the US acquisitions 
as well as the corporate acquisition in Norway.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to €140.8 million 
(previous year: €138.7 million). Group capital expenditure on 
property, plant and equipment amounted to €20.3 million (previous 
year: €23.5 million). Depreciation and write-downs of property, 
plant and equipment stood at €15.4 million (previous year: €14.7 
million).

Right-of-use assets relating to leases amounted to €1.8 million 
(previous year: €2.0 million).

The increase in deferred tax assets is mainly attributable to higher 
provisions for pensions.

Inventories totalled €84.9 million (previous year: €89.7 million). 
Inventories of raw materials, consumables and supplies totalled 
€31.5 million (previous year: €34.0 million). Finished goods and 
merchandise fell from €54.7 million to €52.4 million due to the 
direction taken by revenues.
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Reflecting the decline in revenue, trade receivables were down by 
€3.5 million year on year to €56.2 million.

Non-current and current other assets and tax assets totalled €8.6 
million (previous year: €10.4 million).

Other financial assets amounted to €1.3 million (previous year: 
€2.0 million).

As regards the change in cash and cash equivalents, please refer to 
the Notes relating to cash flows and cash and cash equivalents.

Changes to equity and liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, non-current liabilities were up 
year on year, while equity was below the previous year‘s level.

Group equity amounted to €206.6 million at the end of the 
financial year (previous year: €216.3 million), down €9.7 million on 
the previous year. This figure includes annual profit of €23.2 million 
for 2020 and the dividend payment of €6.0 million in the 2020 
financial year. Group equity was diluted by €11.0 million, without 
affecting profit or loss, as a result of the remeasurement of pension 
provisions. This was due to a significant reduction in the IFRS 
actuarial interest rate.

The initial recognition of the purchase option for the outstanding 
interests in SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Norway, resulted in a reduction 
in equity of €8.2 million. As regards the purchase agreement for 
interests in SIMONA Stadpipe AS, a shareholder agreement was 
concluded in 2020 with the former shareholder, who continues to 
hold 25.07 per cent of the interests in SIMONA Stadpipe AS. The 
shareholder agreement includes the right to a put/call option in 
respect of the purchase of the remaining interests.

The equity ratio for the Group fell from 50 per cent to 46 per cent at 
the end of the reporting period.

Current and non-current provisions for pensions were substantially 
higher at €157.6 million (previous year: €137.9 million). Due to the 

further reduction in the IFRS interest rate to 0.50 per cent (previous 
year: 0.91 per cent), pension provisions were up markedly year on 
year.

At €17.4 million, trade payables were lower than in the previous 
financial year (€18.7 million).

Current and non-current other financial liabilities totalled €10.2 
million (previous year: €2.4 million). This figure includes non-current 
liabilities from the above-mentioned option in the amount of €8.2 
million relating to the acquisition of SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Norway, 
in 2020.

Other liabilities amount to €18.9 million (previous year: €18.9 
million) and mainly include management and staff bonus 
payments, deferrals/accruals for invoices and credit notes yet to be 
received as well as public funds received by the US companies.

In total, non-current (€4.1 million) and current (€1.7 million) other 
provisions were comparable to the figures recorded in the previous 
financial year.
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Investments
Group capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 
amounted to €20.3 million (previous year: €23.5 million). This 
mainly relates to investments in technical equipment as well as 
operating and office equipment at the production sites in Germany, 
the United States and Asia. In total, net investments in property, 
plant and equipment amounted to €5.1 million at Group level 
(previous year: €8.8 million). Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the capital expenditure budget was reviewed and scaled back to 
investments considered appropriate in the short term from the 
perspective of liquidity management. The remaining investments 
planned by the Group were put on hold.

2.5. Financial management and cash flows 

Principles and aims of financial management
Safeguarding the financial strength of the SIMONA Group is the 
primary goal of financial management. In this context, the most 
important aspect is to meet, to a sufficient degree, the Group‘s 
financial requirements relating to its operational business and its 
investing activities. Financial management is centrally organised 
within the parent company. To a large extent, SIMONA covers 
the liquidity required worldwide within the Group by means of 
intragroup funding via loans or similar arrangements. In addition, 
the Group has firmly agreed lines of credit. Excess cash resources 
are invested in the money or capital markets, either in euro or a 
foreign currency, by applying an approach that is optimised in terms 
of both risk and returns.

Financing analysis
Non-current financial liabilities relate to KfW loans and fell by €3.4 
million to €8.4 million due to scheduled repayments. Current 
financial liabilities were unchanged at €3.4 million at the end of the 
reporting period and encompass the short-term proportion of KfW 
loans.

As in the previous year, no derivative financial instruments were 
recognised as at the end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period the Group had undrawn lines of 
credit totalling €28.6 million (previous year: €19.0 million).

Cash flows
In the period under review the inflow of cash from operating 
activities (gross cash flow) was €56.4 million (previous year: €51.6 
million). The increase in cash inflow was attributable in particular 
to higher earnings as well as reduced advance tax payments due to 
lower earnings projections for the 2020 financial year at the start 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. The outflow of funds from investing 
activities amounted to €26.6 million. Of this total, investments 
in property, plant and equipment accounted for €20.3 million 
and the acquisition of subsidiaries €6.5 million. Net cash used in 
financing activities was €10.6 million (previous year: €12.9 million) 
and mainly consisted of the outflow in connection with dividend 
payments and the scheduled repayment of KfW loans.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group‘s cash and cash equivalents totalling €85.3 million 
(previous year: €68.4 million) mainly consist of short-term bank 
deposits. The increase by €17.0 million (previous year: €15.9 
million) was mainly due to the higher cash inflow from operating 
activities. This was offset to some extent by higher outflows from 
investing activities. These changes are presented in detail in the 
statement of cash flows.

Financial obligations
Current obligations included €7.9 million (previous year: €9.4 
million) for contracts already awarded in connection with 
investment projects and €17.2 million (previous year: €13.2 million) 
in respect of purchase orders for raw materials. The increase in 
obligations from raw material orders results from early orders to 
secure raw materials in response to higher prices.

Net finance cost
Based on finance income of €1.5 million and finance cost of €4.7 
million, net finance cost amounted to €–3.3 million in the period 
under review (previous year: €–1.7 million). This includes the result 
from currency translation, which was €–1.9 million in the period 
under review (previous year: €0.6 million). The loss from currency 
translation is due in particular to the direction taken by the US 
dollar.
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2.6 Course of business – SIMONA AG 

SIMONA AG‘s revenue declined in the wake of the COVID-19 
pandemic. The decline of 7 per cent was more pronounced in the 
area of semi-finished products than in the area of pipes and fittings 
(–5 per cent).

Sales revenue totalled €271.3 million (previous year: €289.0 
million). This corresponds to a decline in revenue by 6.1 per cent. 

Germany
Sales revenue in Germany fell by 6.4 per cent to €109.3 million 
(previous year: €116.7 million). This was due in particular to 
the sharper decline in business within the area of semi-finished 
products than in the area of pipes and fittings as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

Rest of Europe and Africa
The region comprising the Rest of Europe and Africa saw sales 
revenue decline by –5.5 per cent to €142.1 million, down from 
€150.4 million in the previous year.

Americas
Revenue from sales in the region encompassing the Americas fell 
to €6.3 million (previous year: €7.4 million).

Asia and Pacific
The Asia & Pacific region recorded a reduction in revenue, down by 
5.0 per cent to €13.7 million.

Sales revenue by product area
In the area comprising semi-finished products sales revenue 
decreased by 7.3 per cent to €169.2 million (previous year: 
€182.4 million). Revenue from the product group comprising 
pipes and fittings fell by 5.1 per cent, down from €86.3 million to 
€81.9 million. The area relating to services and other business 
recorded revenue of €20.2 million (previous year: €20.4 million).

Earnings performance
SIMONA AG recorded higher earnings compared to the previous 
year. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), calculated on the 

basis of IFRS, totalled €14.9 million (previous year: €3.6 million), 
while the EBIT margin stood at 5.8 per cent (previous year: 1.3 per 
cent). The target EBIT margin had been set at 1.0 to 2.0 per cent. 
EBITDA, calculated on the basis of IFRS, tripled from €5.4 million 
in the previous year to €16.8 million in the period under review. 
The EBITDA margin stood at 6.6 per cent, compared to 2.0 per 
cent for the same period a year ago (target of 1.5 to 2.5 per cent). 
At 20.0 per cent, ROCE (based on IFRS) was up on the prior-year 
figure of 3.1 per cent (target 2.0 to 4.0 per cent).

The increase in EBIT and EBITDA is mainly due to a marked 
improvement in gross profit, stable staff costs and a significant 
reduction in other operating expenses. Overall, business 
performance with regard to earnings was very encouraging in the 
2020 financial year, despite the decline in revenue.

Reconciliation from IFRS to HGB of EBIT generated by SIMONA AG 
is mainly as follows:  

in €m 2020 2019

EBIT under IFRS 14.9 3.6

Change in inventories 0.2 1.3

Cost of materials 1.3 –0.7

Staff costs (pensions) 3.5 3.2

Depreciation/amortisation/write-downs of intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment 0.2 0.1

Other operating expenses –2.5 0.1

Other changes 1.2 2.9

EBIT under HGB 18.8 10.5

 
2.7 Review of financial position, performance and 
cash flows of SIMONA AG (HGB) 

Earnings performance 
Gross profit (sales revenue less cost of materials) amounted to 
€79.6 million, up by a substantial 21.5 per cent year on year. 
The gross profit margin rose from 22.7 per cent a year ago to 
29.3 per cent. The cost of materials fell by a total of 14.2 per cent 
compared to the previous year, due to price-related factors as well 
as lower volumes as a result of the decline in revenue. 
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Other operating income totalled €2.8 million (previous year: 
€4.7 million). This figure includes gains of €0.8 million (previous 
year: €2.7 million) from currency translation.

Personnel expense amounted to €24.9 million, which was 
down slightly by 1.2 per cent on the prior-year figure. While staff 
costs were slightly lower year on year, social security and post-
employment benefit costs rose by €0.3 million. 

Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs attributable to 
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment totalled €1.7 
million. 

Other operating expenses rose from €32.7 million a year ago 
to €37.0 million in the period under review, an increase of 13.1 
per cent. Due to the movement of the US dollar, expenses from 
currency translation in particular increased significantly to €3.3 
million (previous year: €0.2 million). In the period under review, 
this item included expenses from the waiver of receivables from 
services rendered in previous financial years concerning the 
production company in China – in the amount of €2.1 million.  
In addition, legal and consulting costs increased, while selling 
expenses were lower.

Interest and similar expenses totalled €3.8 million (previous year: 
€4.4 million) and consisted primarily of expenses relating to the 
unwinding of the discount, i.e. interest cost, of pension provisions 
(€3.5 million, previous year: €4.0 million). 

The increase in income tax expenses corresponds to the increase 
in earnings.

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), calculated on the 
basis of HGB, totalled €18.8 million in the period under review 
(previous year: €10.5 million), as a result of which the EBIT 
margin stood at 6.9 per cent (previous year: 3.6 per cent). EBITDA 
amounted to €20.5 million (previous year: €12.2 million). The 
EBITDA margin stood at 7.5 per cent, compared to 4.2 per cent 
for the same period a year ago. Profit after taxes amounted to 
€15.3 million (previous year: €9.8 million). Despite the decline in 
revenue, earnings performance in the financial year under review 

was mainly characterised by an improved gross profit margin, 
higher other operating expenses and an increase in income tax 
expenses.

Financial position 
Total assets attributable to SIMONA AG rose by €2.9 million to 
€278.0 million.

Non-current assets amounted to €150.9 million (previous year: 
€144.2 million), the increase mainly being attributable to the 
acquisition of interests in two subsidiaries in Norway. 

Property, plant and equipment amounted to €9.8 million (previous 
year: €8.2 million). 

Interests in affiliated companies rose by €7.2 million. This includes 
the purchase of 74.93 per cent of the interests in SIMONA 
Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway, as well as 100 per cent of the 
interests in SIMONA Stadpipe Eiendom AS, Stadlandet, Norway.

Loans to affiliated companies, amounting to €29.7 million (previous 
year: €31.6 million), relate to subsidiaries in the Americas and Asia. 
The subsidiaries in the United States repaid loans of €–2.2 million 
in the reporting period. 

Inventories were slightly up on the prior-year figure (€23.8 
million), rising to €24.7 million. They include raw materials, 
consumables and supplies (€0.5 million) as well as finished goods 
and merchandise (€24.2 million). Inventories of finished goods 
and merchandise rose by €1.0 million compared to the previous 
financial year. 

Trade receivables decreased by €1.1 million to €20.7 million. At 
€25.5 million, receivables from affiliated companies – comprising 
loans and goods deliveries – were down by €19.5 million year on 
year. The decline is due in particular to fewer goods deliveries as 
well as the payment of a share of the profit from previous years in 
respect of the property and production companies.

Other assets totalled €2.0 million (previous year: €4.8 million).
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In total, receivables and other assets amounted to €49.1 million at 
the end of the year (previous year: €72.0 million). 

Cash and cash equivalents rose from €34.8 million a year ago 
to €52.9 million at the end of the reporting period, an increase 
of €18.1 million. This increase is primarily due to net cash from 
operating activities and, in the opposite direction, to the repayment 
of KfW loans, outflows for the acquisition of two subsidiaries in 
Norway and the dividend payment. 

Cash flows
SIMONA AG‘s equity rose by €9.3 million year on year to €196.3 
million. At 71 per cent, the equity ratio was higher than in the 
previous year (68 per cent). Alongside the increase in equity, which 
was mainly due to earnings, this was primarily attributable to the 
year-on-year reduction in borrowings.

SIMONA AG pursues a policy of consistent dividend payments 
based on the performance of Group profit calculated in accordance 
with IFRS and an average dividend ratio that is stable over the long 
term. As in the past, the dividend payout is to be funded from free 
cash flow. 

Provisions amounted to €50.5 million (previous year: €46.6 
million). In total, allocations to provisions for pensions were 
increased by €1.5 million compared to the previous year and 
stood at €41.1 million at the end of the reporting period. The 
discount rate fell to 2.30 per cent (previous year: 2.71 per cent). 
Other provisions totalled €4.6 million (previous year: €5.4 million). 
Tax provisions increased to €4.8 million due to higher earnings 
(previous year: €1.7 million).

Total liabilities fell by €10.2 million to €31.2 million. 

Bank borrowings totalled €11.9 million (previous year: €15.3 
million) and were attributable to long-term KfW loans. Under the 
terms of the contract, a total of €3.4 million was repaid during 
the financial year under review. At the end of the period under 
review, as in the previous year, no funds had been drawn from the 
short-term global credit facility. At the end of the reporting period, 
SIMONA AG had undrawn borrowing facilities of €26.0 million. 

The KfW loans are subject to fixed interest rates, with quarterly 
debt repayments scheduled under the terms of the agreement. 
The funds are used to finance long-term innovation programmes 
in Germany. The global credit facility is subject to interest on the 
basis of EONIA (Euro OverNight Index Average) plus a fixed premium 
calculated on an arm‘s length basis; these borrowings can be 
denominated in euros or a foreign currency. 

Trade payables totalled €2.4 million (previous year: €3.0 million). 

Liabilities towards affiliated companies amounted to €14.1 million 
(previous year: €19.9 million) and relate mainly to goods deliveries 
from the German production companies as well as the subsidiary 
in the Czech Republic. The decline was attributable primarily to a 
reduction in goods deliveries.

Investments 
Capital expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment at 
SIMONA AG amounted to €2.9 million in the period under review 
(previous year: €2.4 million). These are mainly investments 
directed at the modernisation of logistics in Kirn as well as capital 
expenditure on operating and office equipment at the sites in 
Germany. In total, net investments in property, plant and equipment 
(additions less write-downs) amounted to €1.6 million (previous 
year: €1.0 million). 

Obligations from investment projects already initiated amounted to 
€0.4 million; they are financed from operating cash flow.

Analysis of liquidity 
Cash and cash equivalents held by SIMONA AG at the end of 
the reporting period totalled €52.9 million (previous year: €34.8 
million), comprising bank deposits denominated in euro and foreign 
currencies. The increase by €18.1 million is mainly due to cash 
inflows from operating activities and cash outflows from financing 
activities (repayment of KfW loans and the dividend payment) as 
well as cash outflows from the acquisition of two subsidiaries in 
Norway. 
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2.8 Non-financial indicators 

Customer satisfaction
SIMONA measures customer satisfaction as part of pan-European 
surveys. In addition, surveys of customers and target groups are 
conducted on an ad hoc basis in key markets outside Europe. 

The last extensive customer satisfaction survey in Europe was 
conducted in 2020. Overall, customer satisfaction improved further 
from a high base to 87.9 per cent (2017: 86.1 per cent). The rate 
of recommendation also increased to 89.3 per cent (2017: 87.4 
per cent). Compared to the last survey, satisfaction levels were 
higher in respect of all product and service categories. The most 
significant improvements were achieved with regard to the training 
programme, the website and the handling of complaints. In the 
last survey conducted in 2017 customers had seen the greatest 
potential for improvement in these areas. SIMONA has been 
working consistently on these offerings and services. This illustrates 
the importance of the customer survey as a basis for improvements 
in the Group‘s product and service offering. At the same time, it 
shows the measures introduced have helped to raise customer 
satisfaction levels.

Employees 
As at 31 December 2020, the SIMONA Group employed 1,433 
people (previous year: 1,421). Despite the acquisition of the 
Norwegian company SIMONA Stadpipe AS (42 employees), the 
number of employees increased only slightly compared to the 
previous year, as some of the vacancies attributable to less 
favourable market conditions were not filled again. In addition, 
SIMONA Boltaron had to reduce its headcount due to the 
pandemic-induced slump in the aviation business.

The headcount at German entities within the SIMONA Group 
(SIMONA AG and the two production companies in Kirn and 
Ringsheim) was slightly down on the prior-year figure at 799 at the 
end of the year (31 Dec. 2019: 805). 

The number of vocational trainees was again maintained at 
the high level of 54 in 2020. These youngsters were enrolled in 

vocational programmes relating to one of twelve technical and 
commercial training courses offered by SIMONA. As in the previous 
year, in 2020 nine young people were enrolled in an integrated/
dual work-study degree course supported by SIMONA or sponsored 
training to become a state-certified technician or to receive a 
Bachelor‘s degree.

All SIMONA sites around the world were affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic in 2020 and had to combat the spread of the virus with 
a range of organisational measures that often changed as the 
pandemic evolved. At a global level, SIMONA only recorded a small 
number of infections in 2020. Despite the downturn in orders 
experienced over some of the period, benefits associated with 
short-time work were only claimed to a minor extent for a period of 
ten days. The technical and organisational requirements for home-
office work were quickly met during the first lockdown in March. At 
the end of December, up to 95 per cent of administrative staff were 
working from home.

In addition to the many pandemic-related challenges faced by the 
SIMONA team in 2020, the year under review was also marked 
by a process of transition for employees – at all levels. The plant 
operating at SIMONA‘s headquarters in Kirn saw the launch of a 
comprehensive shop floor management project aimed at facilitating 
the efficient control of machinery with the help of key indicators; 
this also involves equipping the machines with measuring devices. 
The Group‘s EMEA business was realigned according to business 
lines, the objective being to offer customers more applications-
driven solutions in the future. 

The two divisions Semi-finished Products and Pipes and Fittings 
were merged and integrated into the business line structure. New 
processes relating to the supply chain (SCM), the product life 
cycle (PLM) and customer relationship management (CRM) were 
developed and employees were trained accordingly within these 
areas. The other focal points of staff training in 2020 were primarily 
the development of project management know-how and targeted 
personal training and coaching in line with annual staff appraisals. 
Due to the physical distancing measures implemented in response 
to the pandemic, a large proportion of company training had to take 
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place online. Training with regard to lean operations was initiated 
for industrial staff in the period under review. Due to the pandemic, 
however, this programme has not yet been rolled out across the 
board. 

The third generation of the Talent Promotion Circle (TPC) completed 
its third year of courses, focusing on strategy as well as project 
and change management. In this case, online platforms and digital 
media were the sole tools used to complete the requisite modules. 
The SIMONA TPC prepares high potentials for professional 
and managerial roles as part of a modular, three-year training 
programme. This year‘s programme includes employees from 
Europe, the USA and Asia. The aim is to develop the intercultural 
skills of those taking part in the programme, in addition to focusing 
on specialist topics. At the same time, the young professionals are 
given the opportunity to establish an international network. 

The conversion of the third floor of the administration building at 
the company‘s headquarters in Kirn was completed and occupied 
in spring. The modern, open and functional design of the new 
workplaces has been well received by staff members. In the 
future, the other floors of the administration building are also to be 
modernised in line with this design concept. 

Quality
The goal of SIMONA‘s quality management system is to maintain 
and optimise product and process quality on a continual and 
sustainable basis. In this context, meeting the requirements of DIN 
EN ISO 9001 and the Pressure Equipment Directive 97/23/EC is 
an essential prerequisite, and full compliance with these standards 
was confirmed by independent recertification audits conducted in 
2020. SIMONA conducted interdisciplinary quality circle meetings 
and product audits in the period under review, as well as taking 
part in various sampling and approval procedures for existing and 
newly launched projects relating to the automotive supply industry. 
As was the case in previous years, the Pipes and Fittings business 
line saw a number of specific product accreditations in response 
to customer and market requirements. This resulted in several 
audits as part of which we were able to prove to external auditors 

the efficacy of the SIMONA management system as well as the 
exceptionally high quality of our products and processes.

Information technology 
The Information Technology department has drawn up a 
roadmap relating to the Group‘s global IT strategy in the 
period up to 2025. The main goals of this strategy include the 
modernisation and further refinement of SIMONA‘s existing IT 
landscape and IT organisation. This includes providing optimum 
support for the changing requirements of SIMONA‘s business, 
the global realignment of the IT organisation and the use of 
new, digital enabling technologies (e.g. cloud computing). The 
future IT landscape supports „end-to-end“ processes through 
integrated software solutions. The migration to SAP S/4HANA, 
which is expected to be completed by 2025, also includes the 
establishment of a global finance and reporting platform.

Within SIMONA‘s IT infrastructure, extensive adjustments were 
made to the network in 2020 in order to meet the requirements 
of home-office work in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic. In 
addition, the equipment had to be adapted to the more far-reaching 
security standards associated with remote working. Another focal 
point was the integration of the SIMONA Stadpipe acquiree in 
Norway into the SIMONA IT infrastructure. In the area of IT security, 
additional components were installed to detect phishing content. 
This includes „link protection“ when opening links of external 
e-mails as well as additional filter mechanisms.

As regards IT application development, the focus was on 
implementing measures required in connection with the company‘s 
strategic projects, especially IT support for the new target operating 
model and optimising logistics. Among other things, the newly 
established business lines were mapped accordingly within the 
SAP environment and IT components were replaced at the central 
warehouse in Kirn. In addition, preparations were made for the 
upgrade of the warehouse management software.
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3. Report on opportunities  
and risks

The global economic slump in 2020 led to a significant decline in 
investment activity within the industries served by SIMONA. This 
applies in particular to the aviation industry, the chemical industry 
and the mechanical engineering sector. In contrast, business 
relating to applications in the area of structural engineering 
benefited from new requirements introduced in response to the 
pandemic. 

In the short and medium term, the trend relating to opportunities 
and risks is strongly dependent on the restrictions implemented 
in response to COVID-19 and the associated performance of the 
economy. 

The aviation business, in particular, may be exposed to significant 
additional risk as a result of the COVID-19 crisis. Due to the 
(temporary) discontinuation of services by air freight airlines, 
delays and further shortages may occur in the area of logistics. The 
commodity markets pose one of the most significant risks for 2021. 
This relates to both the passing on of commodity price increases 
in an intensely competitive environment and the availability of raw 
materials. 

The debate on the environmental impact of plastics, particularly in 
Europe, may have a negative impact not only on business but also 
on the recruitment of skilled personnel. The discussion surrounding 
CO2 emissions from aircraft could have a detrimental effect on the 
market for aircraft interiors in the long term.

Against this backdrop of uncertainty from an economic and 
structural perspective, the use of plastics offers opportunities as a 
cost-effective alternative to replace heavier materials, for example 
in mobility applications, thus reducing CO2 emissions or enabling 
the treatment of drinking water or the transport of renewable 
energies over long distances. These areas of application call for 
highly functional plastics with customised properties. SIMONA‘s 

strategy is aimed at continuously evolving product characteristics 
from a technological perspective by leveraging its in-house R&D 
capabilities, in addition to extending its portfolio of materials. 

In Europe, strategic projects are being implemented for the 
purpose of increasing efficiency and competitiveness and thus 
expanding the opportunities for growth. Effective from 1 January 
2021, SIMONA introduced a new organisational structure for its 
business activities in Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA). 
This involves discontinuing the company‘s former divisional 
separation into the product areas of semi-finished products and 
pipes and fittings in favour of an application-oriented structure 
centred around business lines. The principal goals are to raise the 
company‘s competitiveness through improved efficiency, closer 
dialogue with end users and better customer service, in addition 
to pressing ahead with efforts to enter new fields of application. 
The new business line structure is designed to further deepen 
SIMONA‘s understanding of end user requirements, identify trends 
and accelerate the development of new products. Other important 
elements of the new organisational structure are an organisational 
separation of customer support and order management in 
Customer Service and end-to-end process orientation throughout 
the company, which will improve delivery capability and enable 
faster response times. 

The acquisition of the Turkish manufacturer of PVC foam sheets 
MT Plastik AS, Düzce/Turkey, effective from 1 February 2021 will 
deliver more far-reaching opportunities for profitable growth in the 
market for digital printing and building applications. The acquisition 
of SIMONA Stadpipe AS in Norway offers growth opportunities 
within the globally expanding market for fish farms.

In the United States, the subsidiary SIMONA Boltaron boasts a 
tailor-made product range that meets exacting design standards 
relating to aircraft interiors. This expertise can also be applied to 
other fields of application.  At the same time, however, the direction 
taken by the company‘s aviation business is heavily dependent on 
the further course of the COVID-19 pandemic. SIMONA also sees 
good potential in the market for thermoforming applications as 
well as for outdoor furniture made of plastic and the boatbuilding 
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sector. Newly developed products with antibacterial settings also 
offer opportunities within the increasingly important market centred 
around infection control. In the medium term, the USA also offers 
opportunities within the area of pipes and fittings.

In the region covering Asia-Pacific, SIMONA sees good opportunities 
with regard to key technologies centred around environmental 
management, semiconductors and chemical processes.

Overall, SIMONA is of the opinion that the potential for 
opportunities remains at a good level. Compared to the 
previous year, the opportunities for SIMONA‘s business remain 
fundamentally unchanged. However, the COVID-19 pandemic will 
have an adverse effect on the first half of 2021 at the very least. 
The effects of this cannot be reliably predicted at present. 

Risk management system 
In view of their global business activities, both SIMONA AG and the 
SIMONA Group are exposed to a wide range of risks. In this context, 
risk is defined as an event, an action and/or the failure to act with 
the potential for adverse effects on the company. Risk strategy is 
an integral part of the corporate strategy of SIMONA and coexists 
alongside the business strategy. The risk culture of SIMONA is 
characterised by risk awareness in respect of decision-making 
processes and embraces the principles of diligent action based on 
prudence. In identifying opportunities at an early stage and applying 
diligence with regard to the exposure to corporate or business 
risks, SIMONA endeavours to safeguard its existence as a going 
concern and protect its enterprise value. Risk controlling is aimed 
at avoiding, mitigating or transferring risks. All remaining risks are 
managed accordingly by SIMONA. Risks are communicated as 
part of half-yearly risk reports to the Management Board and the 
Supervisory Board. 

The risk management system includes the full range of guidelines 
and measures required to identify risk and to manage risk 
associated with commercial operations. The policies, the structural 
and procedural organisation as well as the processes of the 
internal control and risk management system operated in respect 
of financial reporting have been incorporated in guidelines and 

organisational instructions. They are revised regularly to account for 
the latest external and internal developments. 

As regards financial reporting and the accounting process, we 
consider those elements to be of significance to the internal 
control and risk management system that may potentially influence 
financial reporting and the overall assessment of the separate 
and consolidated financial statements, including the management 
report. These elements are as follows: 
  �Measures that safeguard the appropriate IT-based preparation of 

items and data of relevance to financial reporting 
  �Monitoring of commodity price trends for accounting-related 

control of procurement and sales prices within the context of 
price management 

On the basis of a risk map, the risk management system of SIMONA 
controls the following material risks associated with the Group. 
The management of opportunities and risks is centred around 
the aspects of effect and probability of occurrence. Significant 
individual risks are considered to be those displaying a medium 
risk profile with an expected value in excess of €5.0 million when 
viewed over the medium term. The expected value is computed as 
the product of the effect/impact and the probability of occurrence; 
it is used solely for prioritising and focusing risk reporting on issues 
of material importance. A probability of occurrence of over 50 
per cent is considered high, while one of less than 50 per cent is 
deemed low. 

SIMONA considers the following individual risks to be material: 
  �Macroeconomic and sales market risks 
  �Business strategy risks 
  �Financial risks 
  �Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing 
  �Investment risks 
  �Risks attributable to information technology 

Macroeconomic and sales market risks 
The risks associated with the general business environment 
and the sector in which the company operates relate mainly to 
the economic performance of customer segments served by 
SIMONA. They also include political conflicts and the availability 
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of raw materials. Among the primary sector-specific risks are the 
substitution of plastics with other materials, new developments 
within the competitive environment, the loss of key customers and 
changes to customer requirements. A diversified product portfolio, 
thorough monitoring of markets and structured procurement 
management provide the basis for risk mitigation. Benefiting from 
global production at multiple sites, including plants in the United 
States, China and the Czech Republic as well as newly acquired 
companies in Norway and Turkey, SIMONA is able to ensure a high 
degree of flexibility. At the same time, the Group can meet customer 
requirements in close proximity to their sites of operation and in a 
market-driven manner. 

According to the IMF outlook, the COVID-19 pandemic will lead to a 
decline in global economic growth of around 3.5 per cent in 2020. 
Given the difficulties in assessing the effects of the pandemic, all 
forecasts relating to global economic performance are associated 
with a significant level of uncertainty. 

The Group continues to be exposed to significant geopolitical risks. 
At a global level, ongoing debate surrounding plastics and the 
environment continues to pose risks. Within the segment covering 
Europe, measures aimed at combating the pandemic as well as 
the impact of Brexit are to be seen as key risks relating to the 
business environment and industry. In the Americas, meanwhile, 
risk exposure is also being influenced by anti-pandemic measures 
as well as by the future economic and political stance assumed by 
the United States and movements in the US dollar exchange rate. 
In the Asia and Pacific segment, meanwhile, the principal risks 
are attributable to future political relations and the direction taken 
by the trade dispute between the USA and China. As regards the 
aspect of changes to sales markets, the decline in revenue in the 
medium term is projected at approx. €5.0 to 10.0 million, with a 
probability of occurrence of under 50 per cent. 

Business strategy risks 
In particular, they include the risk of misjudging future market 
developments and are estimated to result in revenue shortfalls of 
around EUR 5.0 to 10.0 million. Measures aimed at risk prevention 
mainly include close monitoring of the market and competitive 

environment as well as regular strategy meetings with key accounts 
and between the company‘s senior management and sales 
organisation. The probability of adverse effects occurring from 
exposure to business strategy risks is at present not considered to 
be material. 

Financial risks 
These encompass, above all, currency risks, market price risks, 
exposure to variability in cash flows and default risks including risks 
associated with voidability of insolvency, product liability risks, risks 
of a change in interest rates and risks associated with the company 
pension scheme. 

The principal aim of risk management is to mitigate risks 
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions. 
Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict individual risks as 
required by means of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative hedging instruments. 

Dependence on the euro within the Group was scaled back further 
through the corporate acquisitions in recent years as well as the 
expansion of production and the company‘s market position in the 
United States. At the same time, however, currency risk relating to 
US dollar transactions remains high for SIMONA. In the medium 
term, the probability of occurrence of a dilutive or accretive effect 
on earnings equivalent to €3.0 to 6.0 million is estimated at over 
50 per cent.

The risk of bad debts and insolvencies is markedly higher due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. In this context, thorough assessments of 
credit ratings and continuous monitoring within this area help to 
mitigate risk as a whole as well as risk associated with individually 
identifiable items. At €0.7 million, as in the previous year the 
potential risk roughly corresponds to the value of receivables of 
SIMONA AG in the Europe segment that are more than 60 days 
overdue. As regards transactions in Russia, a specific directive for 
the conclusion of business agreements relating to this country 
is in place for the purpose of limiting associated risks. Default-
related risk associated with specific customers is limited by credit 
insurance and the cut-off of deliveries in the case of outstanding 
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payments. In addition, there are the risks with regard to voidability 
of insolvency, which are covered by appropriate insurance. The 
carrying amounts of inventories are assessed on a regular basis, 
and adjustments in the form of allowances are made for specific 
unsaleable products. 

Interest rate risks are currently not considered to be significant. 
Interest payable in connection with KfW loans is based on fixed 
interest rates. Therefore, there are no risks associated with interest 
rate changes in this area. The overdraft facilities of SIMONA AG, 
with their floating interest rates, are not being utilised at present. 

The risks associated with occupational pension schemes are 
considered to be significant and the probability of their occurrence 
is deemed to be high. Risks that are difficult to gauge in the 
long term, such as future levels of pay and pensions as well as 
risks relating to higher life expectancy, have been categorised as 
material. The risks from pension obligations that may result from 
a change in the aforementioned parameters of +/–0.5 per cent 
cumulatively amount to approximately €30.0 to 45.0 million. They 
also include risks or encumbrances that are difficult to predict with 
regard to liquidity and equity, risks associated with investments 
and volatility of plan assets as well as fluctuating costs in respect 
of contributions to the German Pensionssicherungsverein. The 
volatility of plan assets is estimated at around €3.0 to 10.0 
million, which is attributable primarily to the share performance 
of SIMONA AG stock in recent years. The COVID-19 pandemic 
led to considerable price fluctuations on the stock markets in the 
period under review. Plan assets were lower at the end of the year. 
SIMONA AG shares were down €1.4 million year on year at the end 
of the reporting period. 

Risks attributable to procurement and purchasing 
As was the case in previous years, these risks are related primarily 
to potential disruptions or outages with regard to suppliers of 
raw materials and additives as well as volatile commodity price 
trends within the markets for raw materials. The direction taken 
by input commodities (naphtha, propylene and ethylene) that 
are of relevance to raw materials used by the company does not 
necessarily coincide with the price trend for crude oil. The prices 
of raw materials, especially commodities, fell continuously during 

the year under review. In this context, market prices in 2020 were 
driven by the effects of restrained demand and supply due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

At the beginning of the 2021 financial year, meanwhile, the 
procurement market as a whole is dominated by the unstable 
supply of raw materials and significant supply-side bottlenecks.  
Europe has seen a number of force majeure incidents, plant 
disruptions as well as production cutbacks and maintenance 
shutdowns, primarily for standard thermoplastics such as 
polyethylene, polypropylene and PVC as well as their input 
commodities. The winter storm in Texas had a severe impact, 
causing significant damage to refineries and petrochemical plants. 
This is expected to lead to substantial supply-side shortages in the 
United States over  the coming months. It will also have an impact 
on exports from the US. We anticipate that prices will continue to 
rise and that the supply-side situation will remain challenging in the 
second quarter of 2021. Prices and availability are not expected to 
return to more normal levels before the third quarter.

A 10 per cent increase in raw material prices that cannot be 
passed on to the sales market would result in an increase in raw 
material costs – and thus a strain on earnings – of around €3.5 
million. The probability of occurrence is currently estimated at over 
50 per cent. 

Investment risks 
Investment risks mainly include the risk of misinvestment in 
machinery and in foreign investments. Potential investment 
risks are currently estimated at around €10.0 million, while the  
probability of occurrence is projected to be under 50 per cent. 

Risks attributable to information technology 
Ongoing monitoring and optimisation of existing information 
technology are essential to the safety and reliability of business 
processes. With this in mind, refinements to measures already 
implemented within the area of information security are considered 
particularly important. The primary risks involved relate to the 
availability, reliability and efficiency of information technology 
systems, including a failure of the IT infrastructure, loss of data 
and attacks on IT systems. SIMONA addresses risks relating to 
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information technology through its in-house IT department as well 
as by commissioning specialised companies and making regular 
investments in the latest hardware and software. SIMONA responds 
to growing demands placed on system protection as part of its 
safety management programme. This mainly includes investments 
in the latest firewall and antivirus systems as well as other software 
systems. A significant loss in revenue caused by a temporary 
system failure is estimated at around €10.0 million. The probability 
of occurrence of external attacks on IT systems, in particular, has 
increased further. 

At the end of the 2020 financial year, we are of the opinion that the 
overall risk situation for the Group has deteriorated compared to 
that of the previous year. In particular, it should be noted that the 
COVID-19 pandemic may have a significant impact that cannot be 
reliably predicted at present. At the time of preparing this report, 
there were no identifiable risks that might jeopardise the existence 
of the SIMONA Group and SIMONA AG as a going concern. 

Internal control system (ICS) relating to financial 
reporting – Report pursuant to Section 289(4) and 
Section 315(4) HGB 
The internal control system relating to financial reporting, which 
implements specific controls with regard to the financial reporting 
process, is aimed at providing reasonable assurance that annual 
financial statements and consolidated financial statements can 
be prepared in accordance with statutory requirements despite 
possible risks. 

The ICS encompasses accounting-related processes and controls 
that are of significance to the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements. In this context, the SIMONA Group observes 
the relevant publications issued by the German Institute of Public 
Auditors (Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW). There were no 
significant changes to the accounting-related ICS in the period 
between the end of the reporting period and the preparation of the 
management report. 

Bookkeeping and financial statement preparation are performed 
primarily at a decentralised level in accordance with local 
standards. The consolidated financial statements are prepared 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS). In this context, SIMONA applies a uniform system of 
accounts within the Group and an accounting manual. The parent 
company assists the respective entities with regard to issues 
relating to financial reporting and coordinates the process of 
Group financial reporting at a centralised level. All entities included 
within the consolidated group have been integrated within this 
system by means of clearly defined management and reporting 
structures. The inclusion of subsidiaries is managed with the 
help of standardised reporting packages and a consolidation 
system certified in accordance with IDW PS 880. Consolidation is 
performed as a multi-stage process at the level of subsidiaries, 
segments and the Group. External management and financial 
reporting is prepared using a new software module that is directly 
linked to the consolidation system and was implemented in the 
2020 financial year.

The plausibility of numerical data is safeguarded at all levels 
by means of system-specific and automated validation and 
through manual controls. Clearly defined areas of responsibility 
and access policies in respect of IT systems of relevance to the 
preparation of financial statements form an integral part of this 
process. Fundamental control policies applicable to the annual and 
consolidated financial statements include the separation of duties, 
the principle of four eyes and approval and release procedures 
for the process of financial statement preparation. Overall 
responsibility for the accounting-related internal control systems 
rests with the Management Board. 

4. Report on expected 
developments

Economic conditions 
As the repercussions of the pandemic are difficult to gauge, all 
projections relating to global economic performance are subject to 
considerable uncertainty. In January, the International Monetary 
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Fund (IMF) revised its growth forecast for 2021 upwards slightly 
to 5.5 per cent. This was in response to the commencement 
of vaccination campaigns and the prospect of government 
programmes aimed at stimulating the economy. However, the 
emergence of virus mutations as well as problems relating to 
vaccine production and distribution pose concerns for this more 
favourable outlook.    

As regards the eurozone, the IMF has forecast growth of 4.2 per 
cent for 2021. The German economy is expected to grow by 3.1 
per cent. The projected growth rates for France (+5.5 per cent) and 
Spain (+5.9 per cent) are higher. With growth of just 3.0 per cent, 
Italy is the weakest performer among the established economies in 
the euro area. Economic output in the UK is expected to increase 
by 4.5 per cent. The world‘s largest economy, the United States, 
is expected to grow by 5.1 per cent, two percentage points up on 
the figure presented in the October outlook. According to the IMF‘s 
economists, China‘s economy will expand by a significant 8.1 per 
cent.

The general mood among companies operating within Germany‘s 
chemical industry improved towards the end of 2020. For 2021, 
the industry federation VCI (“Verband der Chemischen Industrie 
in Deutschland e. V.”) therefore predicts revenue growth of 2.5 
per cent for the chemical-pharmaceutical sector. The chemical-
pharmaceutical industry is forecast to grow from pre-crisis levels 
in most Asian economies in 2021, led by China and India. The 
industry association VDMA (“Verband deutscher Maschinen- und 
Anlagenbau”) expects production output to expand by 4 per cent 
in 2021 and sees opportunities arising from the technological 
transition prompted by the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the 
forecast for export-driven industries comes with considerable 
uncertainties regarding the performance of the global economy.  

The principal federations representing the German construction 
industry expect revenue to stagnate in 2021 in nominal terms. 
Public-sector construction is expected to continue to grow slightly, 
while the commercial building industry is likely to decline by 2.0 per 
cent. 

The global market for aircraft interiors is predicted to decline further 
in 2021. A return to pre-crisis levels is not expected before 2025.

Sector-specific conditions 
According to a member survey by the industry association GKV, 52 
per cent of respondents expect revenues to increase in the 2021 
financial year. The share of companies anticipating a downturn 
in revenue is also relatively high at 33 per cent. This reflects the 
considerable degree of uncertainty surrounding the future impact 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Companies‘ expectations with regard to 
profits are even more pessimistic. Here, a majority of 49 per cent 
expects a decline in bottom-line results. The significant increase in 
commodity prices and supply-side shortages within this area are 
likely to be contributing factors. 

Future performance of the Group 
SIMONA anticipates that Group revenue for the 2021 financial year 
will be between €400 and 415 million, while the EBIT margin is 
expected to be between 6 and 8 per cent and the EBITDA margin 
between 10 to 12 per cent. At Group level, the return on capital 
employed (ROCE) in 2021 is expected to be between 7 and 8 per 
cent. 

The revenue forecast takes into account the Group‘s growth 
strategy centred around a sharpened focus on the market together 
with the prospect of economic recovery following the more 
widespread roll-out of COVID-19 vaccination programmes and the 
subsequent lifting of restrictions. However, as yet, it is impossible to 
provide a conclusive assessment of the significant distortions seen 
within the commodity market as an indirect effect of the COVID-19 
pandemic in the first and second quarters of 2021. Indeed, the 
outlook may be impacted by this factor.

The Group‘s ability to achieve its bottom-line performance target 
will mainly depend on the direction taken by commodity prices, 
which will in turn have an influence on the gross profit margin. 
Overall economic performance may be adversely affected by the 
rapid increase in commodity prices and disruptions to raw material 
availability. Moreover, profit margin performance will be heavily 
dependent on whether the increase in prices can actually be 
implemented throughout the entire value chain. The direct effects 
of the COVID-19 pandemic on the general economy continue to be 
mixed. The impact on the industrial sector is becoming increasingly 
smaller, while the caravan and interiors sectors are seeing more 
buoyant demand. By contrast, the aviation sector is still suffering 
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from the decline in air traffic and is not expected to return to pre-
COVID-19 levels until 2025 at the earliest.

Non-financial indicators 

Customer satisfaction 
SIMONA is confident that it can maintain customer satisfaction 
at the present level thanks to the strengthening of its technical 
capabilities as well as its focus on new market segments and the 
core market of industrial products. 

Quality 
As part of the company‘s quality management measures, SIMONA 
has set itself the same ambitious targets for product quality as 
in the previous year and assumes that it will be able to reach this 
level. 

Employees 
The number of employees within the SIMONA Group is likely to 
remain stable in 2021. Based on the apprenticeship contracts 
already concluded, the headcount of vocational trainees is 
expected to be similar to that seen in the preceding year. 

Future performance of SIMONA AG
SIMONA anticipates that revenue for the 2021 financial year will be 
between €255 and 265 million, while the EBIT margin is expected 
to be between 3.5 and 5.5 per cent and the EBITDA margin 
between 4.5 to 6.5 per cent. The return on capital employed (ROCE) 
in 2021 is expected to be between 5 and 6 per cent. The forecast 
takes into account the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic to date as 
well as its projected impact – as described in the Group report on 
expected developments. 

Germany, as a sales region, is expected to see a recovery in its 
domestic economy, as the effects of the pandemic become less 
pronounced and growth picks up in general. We also anticipate this 
for the other regions, i.e. Rest of Europe and Africa, Americas and 
Asia and Pacific. As in the Group, the direction taken by earnings 
will depend more on the future trajectory of commodity prices 
than on the ongoing effects and restrictions associated with the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

5. Other information

5.1 Corporate governance statement 

The corporate governance statement pursuant to Section 289f of 
the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB) has 
been published by SIMONA AG on its corporate website at www.
simona.de. 

5.2 Compensation report 

Management Board compensation
The Supervisory Board, based on the recommendations of the 
Personnel Committee, is responsible for determining the overall 
compensation of the respective Management Board members. 
It also regularly reviews the compensation system relating to 
the Management Board. The Personnel Committee consists of 
the Supervisory Board Chairman Dr. Rolf Goessler as well as 
the Supervisory Board members Roland Frobel and Dr. Roland 
Reber. Compensation for the members of the Management 
Board of SIMONA AG is calculated on the basis of the size of the 
company, its commercial and financial position, as well as the level 
and structure of compensation granted to Management Board 
members of similar enterprises. In addition, the duties and the 
contribution of the respective members of the Management Board 
are taken into account. 

Management Board compensation is performance-based. It is 
comprised of a fixed level of remuneration as well as a variable 
component. The fixed component of compensation is paid 
as a salary on a monthly basis. The variable component of 
compensation is reviewed annually, while the fixed component 
is assessed once every two years. In addition, both components 
are subject to thorough analyses in intervals of two to three 
years, based on a comparison with compensation figures 
applicable to executive staff of similar enterprises. The variable 
component of Management Board compensation is based on 
earnings performance within the Group and a long-term incentive 
programme. As regards the performance periods 2019 to 2021, 
average Group NOPAT (net operating profit after tax) is used as the 
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key performance indicator, calculated on the basis of a three-year 
performance period. The first performance period encompasses 
the financial years 2019 to 2021, the second performance 
period comprises the financial years 2020 to 2022 and the third 
performance period covers the financial years from 2021 to 2023. 
Payment occurs subsequent to the adoption of the consolidated 
financial statements for the final year of the respective performance 
period. In the financial year under review Management Board 
compensation included the following components:  

COMPOSITION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION

in € ’000 2020 2019

Fixed compensation

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 926 1,140

Variable compensation

Annual bonus 622 959

Long-term incentive programme

Period 2017–2019, payment 2020 – 502

Period 2018–2020, payment 2020/2021 119 330

Period 2019–2021, payment 2020 – 126

Total compensation 1,667 3,057

 
On 10 June 2016, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
of SIMONA AG agreed by a majority of three-quarters to disclose 
Management Board compensation in an aggregated format, 
divided into fixed and performance-related components, rather 
than disclosing each amount by name. The resolution is valid up 
to and including the 2020 financial year. Therefore, no individual, 
i.e. itemised, disclosures are made under Section 285 no. 9 a) 
sentence 5 to 8 and Section 314(1) no. 6 a) sentence 5 to 8 of the 
German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).

The company‘s Articles of Association contain no provisions 
that are non-compliant with those set out in the German Stock 
Corporation Act as regards the conditions applicable to the 
appointment or removal of Management Board members as well 
as amendments to the company‘s Articles of Association. In view of 
this, readers are asked to refer to the relevant statutory provisions 
set out in Sections 84, 85, 133 and 179 of the German Stock 
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) for further details. 

Remuneration for the former members of the Management Board 
amounts to €466 thousand (previous year: €304 thousand). 
Pension provisions for active and former members of the 
Management Board, as governed by the German Commercial 
Code, were recognised to the full extent and amounted to €13,383 
thousand as at the end of the financial year under review (previous 
year: €12,651 thousand). IFRS-based pension provisions for active 
and former members of the Management Board were recognised 
to the full extent and amounted to €18,443 thousand as at the end 
of the reporting period after netting with the plan assets (previous 
year: €17,393 thousand). 

The members of the Management Board also receive fringe 
benefits in the form of non-cash remuneration, which mainly 
consists of a company car, telephone and insurance policies. 
Members of the Management Board received neither loans or 
share options nor other share-based compensation from the 
company. 

Supervisory Board compensation
Supervisory Board compensation is calculated according to the 
size of the company, as well as the duties and responsibilities of 
the Supervisory Board members. The Chairman and the Deputy 
Chairman as well as members involved in Committees receive 
supplementary compensation. 

Members of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG receive a 
standard fixed level of compensation amounting to €13,000. The 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives an amount equivalent 
to double the standard level of compensation; the Deputy 
Chairman receives an amount equivalent to one and a half times 
the standard level of compensation. Supervisory Board members 
who are engaged in Committee work receive supplementary fixed 
compensation of €7,000. All expenses associated directly with a 
position on the Supervisory Board, as well as sales tax payable on 
such compensation, are reimbursed. 

In addition to fixed compensation, the General Meeting of 
Shareholders shall be authorised to pass a resolution on a variable 
component of compensation, payment of which shall be dependent 
on whether specific corporate performance indicators have been 
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met or exceeded. At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
on 5 June 2020 no such resolution for variable compensation 
components was passed for the 2020 financial year. 

Supervisory Board compensation for the financial year under review 
amounted to €158 thousand (previous year: €156 thousand), 
of which €140 thousand (previous year: €140 thousand) was 
attributable to SIMONA AG. Members of the Supervisory Board 
received neither loans or share options nor other share-based 
compensation from the company. 

5.3 Disclosures pursuant to Section 289a and 
Section 315a HGB and explanatory report 

As at the end of the reporting period, the share capital of SIMONA 
AG remained unchanged at €15,500,000, divided into 600,000 no-
par-value bearer shares („Stückaktien“ governed by German law). 
The shares are traded in the General Standard of the German stock 
exchange in Frankfurt as well as on the Berlin securities exchange. 
There are no different categories of share or shares furnished with 
special rights. Each share is equipped with one vote at the General 
Meeting of Shareholders. In view of the fact that a shareholder‘s 
right to a certificate of ownership interests has been precluded 
under the company‘s Articles of Association, the share capital of 
our company is represented only in the form of a global certificate, 
which has been deposited with Clearstream Banking AG, Frankfurt 
am Main. Therefore, our shareholders will in future only have 
an interest as co-owners in the collective holdings of the no-par-
value shares in our company, as held by Clearstream Banking AG, 
according to their interest in the company‘s share capital. 

On 2 December 2020, the Management Board and the Supervisory 
Board decided to propose a share split in the ratio of 1:10 to the 
Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2021. The company‘s share 
capital is to be redivided in a ratio of 1:10 without issuing new 
shares, thus increasing the number of shares tenfold (stock split). 
Subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting, each 
shareholder will receive nine additional shares for each share held 
in SIMONA AG at the reporting date. The shareholder structure and 
voting rights remain unchanged. Only the notional interest in the 
share capital per share will be divided into ten parts.

31.19 per cent of the interests are held by Dr. Wolfgang und Anita 
Bürkle Stiftung (Kirn), 15.04 per cent by Kreissparkasse Biberach 
(Biberach), 11.64 per cent by Dirk Möller (Kirn), 11.42 per cent 
by Rossmann Beteiligungs GmbH (Burgwedel), 11.25 per cent 
by Regine Tegtmeyer (Nebel) and 10.00 per cent by SIMONA 
Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH (Kirn). 
The remaining 9.46 per cent of shares in the company were in 
free float. 

No shareholdings were reported by the members of the 
Management Board as at 5 June 2020. The members of the 
Supervisory Board reported holdings of 1,300 shares as at the 
attendance date of the Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2020, 
which corresponds to 0.22 per cent of share capital of SIMONA AG. 

To the extent that employees hold an interest in the company‘s 
capital, these employees themselves directly exercise the rights of 
control associated with their shareholdings. The appointment and 
the removal of members of the Management Board are governed 
by the statutory provisions set out in Sections 84 and 85 of the 
German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) as well as by 
Section 9 of the Articles of Association of SIMONA AG. Under these 
provisions, the Management Board of the company consists of at 
least two members. The appointment of deputy members of the 
Management Board is permitted. The Management Board shall 
generally have a Chairperson appointed by the Supervisory Board. 

The Supervisory Board may delegate decisions on the conclusion, 
amendment and termination of Management Board employment 
contracts to a Supervisory Board committee. Any amendments to 
the Articles of Association must be made in accordance with the 
statutory provisions set out in Section 179 et seq. of the German 
Stock Corporation Act. 

According to Section 6 of the Articles of Association, the company 
is entitled to issue share certificates that embody one share (single 
certificate) or multiple shares (global certificates). 

At present there are no significant agreements containing a change 
of control provision that would apply in the event of a takeover bid. 
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At present there are no agreements with members of the 
Management Board or with employees relating to compensation 
payments in the event of a change of control. 

6. Non-financial statement 
pursuant to section 289b 
and section 315b HGB

 
Brief description of business model 
The SIMONA Group develops, manufactures and markets a range of 
semi-finished thermoplastics, pipes and fittings as well as profiles. 
The materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene 
(PP), polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), 
polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF), ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene 
(E-CTFE), perfluoroalkoxy (PFA), thermoplastic olefins (TPO), 
acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) and various specialist 
materials. The production methods applied within this area 
range from extrusion, pressing and injection moulding to CNC 
manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its own plastics workshop 
for the production of customised fittings. 

Semi-finished products are deployed mainly within the area 
of chemical tank and equipment construction, mechanical 
engineering, the transport industry, the construction sector, 
the exhibition and display sector as well as the automotive and 
aerospace industry. Pipes and fittings are used primarily for 
drinking-water supply, sewage disposal and industrial piping 
systems, including the chemical process industry. 

As a company, SIMONA is aware of its responsibilities towards 
people and the environment. Environmental, social and energy 
issues are key factors for SIMONA. 

Environmental issues 
Sustainability and the management of plastics are the two 
environmental issues that SIMONA will be pursuing in greater 
detail over the coming years. The federal government has adopted 
the Climate Protection Programme 2030. As one of the leading 
industrial nations, Germany bears a special responsibility for 
global climate change. The reduction of greenhouse gases is to be 
achieved in a sustainable and socially balanced manner, taking 
into account far-reaching measures. The EU Commission is drawing 
up a plastics strategy and the German Bundestag has passed a 
packaging law – both are aimed at pushing the sustainable use 
of plastics. SIMONA is committed to meeting future requirements 
by means of a certified environmental management system in 
accordance with DIN EN ISO 14001. This international standard for 
environmental management systems is designed to give certified 
companies a framework for protecting the environment and 
responding to changing circumstances in compliance with socio-
economic requirements. The systematic approach promoted by 
the standard furnishes information that fosters success in the long 
term and opens up opportunities that contribute to sustainable 
development.

SIMONA has adopted an environmental management system at its 
sites in Kirn and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the Czech 
Republic and ensures compliance with its requirements through 
surveillance and recertification audits. In 2019, SIMONA joined 
the „Zero Pellet Loss“ initiative organised by Industrieverband 
Halbzeuge und Konsumprodukte aus Kunststoff e.V. (pro-K). „Zero 
Pellet Loss“ is part of a global initiative launched by the plastics 
industry. Plastic associations around the world are participating in 
this initiative under the names „Zero Pellet Loss“ and „Operation 
Clean Sweep“ to prevent the loss of plastic pellets along the entire 
supply chain. Through its membership, SIMONA also participates 
in projects aimed at preventing marine litter. A prerequisite for 
participation was that SIMONA should create the necessary 
technical and organisational conditions at its facilities to prevent 
pellet spillage. The package of measures also includes staff training 
and regular monitoring of effectiveness.
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Material risks associated with SIMONA‘s business activities that 
could be very likely to have a serious negative impact on the 
environment relate to the contamination of the soil, air or bodies of 
water as a result of accidents, fires or the discharge of production 
waste. SIMONA manages its fire risk through preventive fire 
protection measures: regular maintenance for its extinguishers, 
inspections conducted with the insurer and fire service, a 
dedicated set of fire protection regulations and annual staff 
briefings. Accident-related risk is managed with regular checks and 
maintenance of plant and equipment, structural measures such as 
retention basins, collecting pans and sealed floors and by storing 
hazardous substances in compliance with the law. SIMONA follows 
fixed emergency plans in the event of an accident, carries out 
weekly, semi-annual and annual maintenance and tests the leak-
tightness of its oil separators every five years. Test and inspection 
intervals are complied with and emissions are measured regularly.

SIMONA disposes of waste that cannot be returned to the 
production cycle in accordance with the provisions of the German 
Circular Economy Act (Kreislaufwirtschaftsgesetz). Waste is mainly 
recycled in-house or passed on to external recycling firms. All waste 
disposal companies used have been certified and are authorised 
in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions. Staff receive 
regular training on preventing, recycling and disposing of waste. 
Reducing waste as a percentage of production volume is one of the 
company’s key objectives.

SIMONA manages risks associated with the environmental 
footprint of the raw materials it uses by carefully selecting resource 
suppliers based on the certifications they have obtained (origin, 
observing blacklists), substituting hazardous substances right 
from the research and development stage and complying with 
applicable legislation governing the use of hazardous substances. 
SIMONA provides its customers with regular updates on the correct 
ways to use, recycle and dispose of its products and the waste 
that is generated when these products are processed further. 
Product characteristics, key data and safe storage and processing 
instructions are listed in material and safety data sheets for each 
product, which are available online.

Additionally, durable SIMONA products help to deliver effective 
solutions in response to market challenges, e.g. with regard to 
environmental engineering and utilities. SIMONA is an active 
member of VinylPlus, an organisation that focuses on improving 
sustainability within the PVC supply chain. In addition, the company 
is a co-initiator and holder of the PVC quality mark issued by 
Industrieverband Halbzeuge und Konsumprodukte aus Kunststoff 
e. V. (pro-K). Those entitled to use the mark have committed 
themselves to specific quality standards, in addition to delivering 
the best possible manufacturing expertise and a premium-quality 
service.

Energy issues 
A certified energy management system in accordance with the 
requirements of ISO 50001:2018 forms part of the company‘s 
central policies. This international standard for the energy 
management system is designed to help certified companies to 
develop systems and processes to become more energy-efficient. 
Adopting a systematic approach in order to introduce, implement, 
maintain and improve an energy management system is intended 
to enable companies to continuously improve their performance as 
regards energy management, energy efficiency and energy saving. 
The standard sets out requirements governing the supply, use and 
consumption of energy, including measurement, documentation 
and reporting as well as practical design and procurement rules for 
facilities, systems, processes and personnel that consume energy. 

SIMONA has adopted an energy management system at its sites in 
Kirn and Ringsheim in Germany and Litvinov in the Czech Republic 
and ensures compliance with its requirements through surveillance 
and recertification audits. The last successful recertification took 
place in 2020 and is valid until 2 December 2023.

Material risks associated with SIMONA‘s business activities that 
could be very likely to have a serious negative impact on energy 
issues relate to the consumption of resources and the production 
of emissions. SIMONA manages these risks with measures 
designed to improve energy efficiency and reduce emissions. 
The company assesses its energy consumption and efficiency by 
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means of energy performance indicators (ENPIs), which compare 
consumption data with the relevant production volumes. Key 
objectives in the field of energy management are increasing energy 
efficiency and cutting consumption. 

Personnel matters 
The company‘s employees are a key pillar of its success. This is an 
integral part of the company culture embraced by us and is thus 
also enshrined at several levels in our Code of Conduct, which 
applies equally to employees, line managers and senior executives 
at all SIMONA companies. 

For instance, the company has made health and safety at work a 
priority and has introduced a „Vision Zero“ (referring to the number 
of occupational accidents) action plan. This is a multi-year concept 
for the sustainable reduction of occupational accidents, consisting 
of an extensive range of individual measures. The execution of 
these measures was also defined as a target in the Balanced 
Scorecard for the European sites. The collection of data relating to 
accidents at work in accordance with an internationally harmonised 
definition has been carried out on an international basis since 
2020. All occupational accidents are logged in reports by the 
health and safety officers appointed by the company before their 
causes are analysed and preventive action is determined based on 
this analysis. SIMONA AG has also set up a healthcare team geared 
towards keeping staff healthy through various campaigns (e.g. free 
supply of fruit, allowance for gym membership, Health Days). An 
interdisciplinary task force was established to manage hygiene and 
infection control activities during the COVID-19 pandemic.

A keen supporter of diversity and equal opportunities for all its 
employees, SIMONA had, upon introduction of statutory regulations 
governing such target figures, set itself the target in 2015 of 
appointing female executives to 20 per cent of positions at the level 
below the SIMONA AG Management Board. As this target was met 
at the first scheduled date of review, a new target of 25 per cent 
was set in 2018. 

SIMONA AG invests in bringing on suitable young talent and 
regularly participates in joint projects with schools and universities 
(school mentoring schemes, MINT programme). As well as 
training, applicants who fit the criteria can look forward to a 
dual-degree course, subsidised training to fit around their existing 
work commitments (part-time degree) or a placement at one of 
the foreign sites run by our subsidiaries. SIMONA AG maintains 
partnerships with the universities in Ludwigshafen, Darmstadt and 
Mainz in order to offer these part-time degrees. 

SIMONA regularly seeks its employees‘ opinions in anonymous 
staff surveys and uses the results to devise tangible measures to 
improve staff satisfaction. To a large extent, the SIMONA companies 
located in Germany have already implemented performance 
appraisals. As regards the commercial functions at the Kirn site, 
they are, in part, already organised on the basis of a skills matrix. 
This set-up allows every employee to be shown the requirements of 
their position and the extent to which they themselves are meeting 
these requirements. Training needs are determined based on 
these annual PDRs. Feedback from training courses attended is 
evaluated systematically. 

In 2021, SIMONA will roll out at an international level the project 
management training concept initiated last year, in addition to 
conducting training sessions to develop candidates identified as 
part of succession planning for key positions.  

Within the SIMONA companies, the flow of information to staff 
is guaranteed by the SIMONA intranet, a noticeboard system, 
departmental get-togethers and regular shift training.

SIMONA recognises the right of all its employees to be represented 
on, in and by trade unions and to form staff committees. There are 
long-established employee representatives at the German sites: at 
the Kirn site the workforce is also represented by the IGBCE. 
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Material risks to which we could be exposed by neglecting 
personnel matters relate to a loss of staff – and thus their expertise 
and potential trade secrets – to the competition. A „brain drain“ of 
this kind can also mean a fall in quality, which could have financial 
implications in the form of higher warranty claims and the loss 
of customers. Last but not least, high rates of sickness absence 
have a negative impact on site productivity. We are also facing 
the challenges of demographic change, which for us brings risks 
associated with capacity and an ageing population as well as the 
issue of how to recruit young members of staff. 

SIMONA has not yet assessed to what extent it complies with 
the underlying International Labour Organisation agreements as 
regards its measures and policies on personnel matters.

Human rights 
SIMONA is committed to upholding internationally recognised 
human rights and, in its Code of Conduct, has imposed a binding 
obligation on itself and its staff to safeguard these rights. In 
so doing, we are supporting international diversity, advocating 
equal opportunities and demanding mutual respect from our 
employees. Factors that are a potential source of discrimination 
such as gender, background, religion or sexual orientation 
are not considered when the company makes decisions. We 
wholeheartedly reject any form of forced or child labour and 
expect our business partners to do the same. We are continuously 
developing our approach. Breaches of the basic principles laid 
down in our Code of Conduct can be reported to the Compliance 
Officer and will be punished severely. 

Combating bribery and corruption 
Without exception or restriction, SIMONA undertakes not to give any 
illegal gratuities to its staff, advisors, commercial representatives, 
agents or similar third parties or to receive any such gratuities. 
SIMONA has issued policies for avoiding bribery and corruption 
in respect of various areas and everyday situations with which 
its employees could be confronted. Breaches will be punished 
severely. 

Under some circumstances, breaches of the ban and related 
policies can be serious offences that can cause the company 
financial damage as well as significant damage to its reputation. 
They will also give many of our contractual partners grounds 
to terminate their cooperation. Finally, they can also lead to 
the company being excluded from bidding for public tenders in 
Germany and abroad.

Spotting risks early is a key criterion in preventing compliance 
breaches. The specific compliance risks to which SIMONA is 
exposed are determined, analysed and updated systematically 
in an annual process. Appropriate preventive measures are 
formulated and introduced as and when new risks emerge. 

Checks as to whether the subsidiaries are complying with the 
regulations on preventing bribery and corruption are performed by 
means of regular site audits, including inspecting accounts and 
cash holdings. 

SIMONA has appointed a Compliance Officer to ensure the effective 
implementation of its compliance system. SIMONA allows both staff 
and external third parties to report breaches of the ban on bribery 
and corruption to the Compliance Officer anonymously. 

Rather than following or being based on any national or 
international standards, the company‘s system for combating 
bribery and corruption is structured in line with the individual 
requirements and risk situation within the organisation. 
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Social matters 
As a company, SIMONA bears responsibility for the development 
and appeal of the cities and communities where it is based and 
takes social matters into account. It is committed to supporting 
social, cultural and aid projects at its various sites across the 
world. The due diligence processes implemented as part of this 
philosophy lay down responsibilities and workflows for selecting the 
institutions, projects and initiatives to be supported and how much 
support each is to receive. At the Kirn site, support is also provided 
by the Dr. Wolfgang und Anita Bürkle Stiftung, SIMONA AG‘s major 
shareholder. The foundation focuses on promoting education and 
healthcare, endangered species and animals in general, art and 
culture, development aid funding and charitable causes relating to 
social welfare facilities. 

Forward-looking statements and forecasts
This combined management report contains forward-looking 
statements that are based on the current expectations, 
presumptions and forecasts of the Management Board of SIMONA 
AG as well as on information currently available to the Management 
Board. These forward-looking statements shall not be interpreted 
as a guarantee that the future events and results to which they 
refer will actually materialise. Rather, future circumstances and 
results depend on a multitude of factors. These include various 
risks and imponderables, as well as being based on assumptions 
that may conceivably prove to be incorrect. SIMONA AG shall not 
be obliged to adjust or update the forward-looking statements 
made in this report. 
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Responsibility Statement
We hereby declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the combined 
management report includes a fair review of the development 
and performance of the business and the position of the SIMONA 
Group and SIMONA AG, together with a description of the principal 
opportunities and risks associated with the expected development 
of the Group and SIMONA AG.

 

Kirn, 31 March 2021 
 
SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft 
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg	 Dr. Jochen Hauck� Michael Schmitz
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Group Income Statement of SIMONA AG

in € ’000 Notes 01/01 – 31/12/2020 01/01 – 31/12/2019

Revenue [7] 389,751 432,494

Other income [8] 8,800 4,602

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress –2,601 –2,055

Cost of materials [9] 186,604 226,534

Staff costs [10] 86,994 85,705

Amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets and depreciation/write-downs of property, 
plant and equipment as well as right-of-use assets under leases [17, 18, 19] 18,259 17,377

Other expenses [12] 70,516 75,998

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 33,574 29,428

Finance income [13] 1,452 1,023

Finance cost [13] 4,720 2,721

Result from investments accounted for using the equity method [20] 172 261

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 30,478 27,991

Income taxes [14] 7,321 7,404

Profit for the period 23,157 20,587

Of which attributable to:

Owners of the parent company 22,990 20,477

Non-controlling interests 168 110

EARNINGS PER SHARE

in €

– �basic, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to ordinary  
shareholders of the parent company [15] 38.32 34.13

– �diluted, calculated on the basis of profit for the period attributable to ordinary  
shareholders of the parent company [15] 38.32 34.13
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income of SIMONA AG

in € ’000 Notes 01/01 – 31/12/2020 01/01 – 31/12/2019

Profit for the period 23,157 20,587

 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations [27, 28] –15,512 –27,145  

Deferred taxes on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations [14] 4,463 8,013  

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences relating to currency translation  [25, 31] –10,998 2,382

Deferred taxes from currency translation [14] 610 –132  

Other comprehensive income recognised directly in equity –21,437 –16,881 

Total comprehensive income 1,720 3,705 

   Total comprehensive income attributable to:

   Owners of the parent company 1,553 3,595  

   Non-controlling interests 168 110 
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Group Statement of Financial Position of SIMONA AG
ASSETS

in € ’000 Notes 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Intangible assets [17] 40,409 38,007

Property, plant and equipment [18] 140,808 138,719

Financial assets [34] 340 340

Investments accounted for using the equity method [20] 1,119 1,143

Right-of-use assets under leases [19] 1,780 2,026

Deferred tax assets [14] 27,768 19,776

Non-current assets 212,223 200,011

Inventories [21] 84,893 89,655

Trade receivables [22] 56,158 59,702

Other assets [23] 5,750 5,749

Income tax assets [23] 2,805 4,607

Other financial assets [34] 1,298 2,036

Cash and cash equivalents [24, 31] 85,349 68,399

Current assets 236,253 230,148

Total assets 448,476 430,159
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

in € ’000 Notes 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Issued capital 15,500 15,500

Capital reserves 15,274 15,274

Revenue reserves 172,401 173,846

Other reserves 818 11,206

203,993 215,826

Non-controlling interests 2,612 464

Equity [25] 206,604 216,290

Financial liabilities [26] 8,430 11,855

Provisions for pensions [27, 28] 155,814 136,150

Other provisions [29] 4,061 4,484

Liabilities under leases [19] 1,051 1,230

Other financial liabilities [26] 8,659 644 

Deferred tax liabilities  [14] 10,872 9,876

Non-current liabilities  188,887 164,239

Financial liabilities  [26] 3,425 3,425

Provisions for pensions [27] 1,773 1,788

Other provisions  [29] 1,723 1,091

Trade payables  17,426 18,738

Income tax liabilities  7,035 2,497

Liabilities under leases  [19] 752 812

Other financial liabilities  [26] 1,989 2,412

Other liabilities  [30] 18,862 18,868

Current liabilities 52,985 49,631

 
Total equity and liabilities 448,476 430,159
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Group Statement of Cash Flows of SIMONA AG

in € ’000 Notes 01/01 – 31/12/2020 01/01 – 31/12/2019

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 30,478 27,991  

Income taxes paid –2,978 –7,823 

Finance income and cost (excl. interest expense relating to pensions) [13] –72 291 

Amortisation/write-downs of intangible assets and depreciation/write-downs of property,  
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets under leases [17,18,19] 18,259 17,377  

Other non-cash expenses and income 2,225 2,341 

Result from disposal of non-current assets 438 77 

Change in inventories [21] 2,844 2,342 

Change in trade receivables [22] 4,013 5,068  

Change in other assets [23] 874 –622 

Change in pension provisions [27, 28] 2,012 1,589  

Change in liabilities and other provisions [29, 30] –1,707 3,017  

Net cash from operating activities 56,386 51,648

 
Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and equipment [17, 18] –20,433 –23,620 

Acquisition of subsidiaries and other business units less net cash acquired –6,466 0 

Proceeds from the disposal of non-current assets 119 266 

Financial investments and payments relating to the short-term financial management of  
cash investments [34] 0 2 

Interest received 189 135  

Net cash used in investing activities –26,592 –23,218 

Repayment of financial liabilities [26] –3,425 –3,425  

Repayment of lease liabilities [19] –828 –801

Payment of prior-year dividend [16] –6,000 –8,400 

Payment of prior-year dividend to non-controlling interests –53 –40 

Interest paid –252 –249  

Net cash used in financing activities –10,558 –12,915 

 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on liquidity [31] –2,286 401

Change in cash and cash equivalents 16,950 15 ,916

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January [24, 31] 68,399 52,483 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December [24, 31] 85,349 68,399  

Change in cash and cash equivalents 16,950 15,916 
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity of SIMONA AG

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NON-
CONTROLLING 
INTERESTS

TOTAL  
EQUITY

Issued 
capital

Capital
reserves

Revenue
reserves

Other 
reserves

Total

in € ’000

Currency 
translation 
differences

Notes [25] [25] [25] [25]

Balance at 01/01/2019 15,500 15,274 180,583 8,956 220,313 390 220,703

Amount recognised directly 
in equity as part of the 
Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 0 0 –19,132 2,250 –16,881 0 –16,881

Profit for the period 0 0 20,477 0 20,477 110 20,587

Total comprehensive 
income for the period 0 0 1,345 2,250 3,595 110 3,705

Dividend payment [16] 0 0 –8,400 0 –8,400 –40 –8,440

Other changes 0 0 318 0 318 5 323

Balance at 31/12/2019 15,500 15,274 173,846 11,206 215,826 464 216,290

Balance at 01/01/2020 15,500 15,274 173,846 11,206 215,826 464 216,290

Amount recognised directly 
in equity as part of the 
Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 0 0 –11,049 –10,388 –21,437 0 –21,437

Profit for the period 0 0 22,990 0 22,990 168 23,157

Total comprehensive 
income for the period 0 0 11,941 –10,388 1,553 168 1,720

Dividend payment [16] 0 0 –6,000 0 –6,000 –54 –6,054 

Changes in the scope  
of consolidation [35] 0 0 –8,196 0 –8,196 1,930 –6,266

Other changes 0 0 811 0 811 104 915

Balance at 31/12/2020 15,500 15,274 172,401 818 203,993 2,612 206,604
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[1] Company information
SIMONA AG is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) founded in 
Germany – registered office at Teichweg 16, 55606 Kirn, Germany. 
Its shares are traded within the General Standard of the Frankfurt 
and Berlin stock exchanges. The company has been entered in the 
Commercial Register at the District Court of Bad Kreuznach (HRB 
1390). The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2020 were released by the 
Management Board on the basis of a resolution of 29 March 2021 
for the purpose of forwarding them to the Supervisory Board.

The activities of the SIMONA Group mainly include the production 
and sale of semi-finished products in the form of sheets, rods, 
welding rods and profiles as well as pipes and pipe fittings made 
of thermoplastics. The Group‘s business activities also involve 
planning, producing and installing piping systems used in the 
aquaculture industry.

The semi-finished products are manufactured at the plant in Kirn 
(Germany) as well as in Archbald, Newcomerstown and Findlay 
(USA) and in Jiangmen (China). Pipes and fittings are produced 
at the plant in Ringsheim (Germany). The plant in Litvinov (Czech 
Republic) manufactures semi-finished products, pipes and fittings. 
The products are marketed under the joint SIMONA brand as well 
as a range of separate brands. 

SIMONA AG operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland, and is 
the ultimate controlling parent of the Group.

Additionally, the following subsidiaries, are responsible primarily for 
handling sales and distribution activities:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of SIMONA AG

Company Registered office, country

SIMONA UK Ltd. Stafford, United Kingdom

SIMONA S.A.S. Domont, France

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L. Barcelona, Spain

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Wrocław, Poland

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Kwidzyn, Poland

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o. Litvinov, Czech Republic 

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED Hong Kong, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. Shanghai, China

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS 
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd. Jiangmen, China

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC Archbald, USA

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. Newcomerstown, USA

SIMONA PMC, LLC Findlay, USA

OOO SIMONA RUS Moskau, Russian Federation

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED Mumbai, India

SIMONA Stadpipe AS Stadlandet, Norway
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[2] Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the 
historical cost principle, unless otherwise specified under [5] 
Summary of significant accounting policies. The consolidated 
financial statements are prepared in euro. Unless otherwise stated, 
all amounts are rounded to € ‚000. For computational reasons, 
the tables presented in this document may include rounding 
differences equivalent to +/- one unit (€, %, etc.).

Statement of compliance with IFRS
The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG and the 
entities included in the consolidated group for the period ended 
31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) applicable at 
the end of the reporting period, as adopted by the European Union, 
and the provisions of commercial law to be applied additionally 
pursuant to Section 315e(1) of the German Commercial Code 
(Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).

The term “IFRS” comprises all International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS) 
to be applied on a mandatory basis as at the reporting date. 
Additionally, all interpretations issued by the International Financial 
Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) – formerly 
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) – were applied insofar as 
their application was mandatory for the financial year under review.

The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial 
statements of SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 
of each financial year (hereinafter also referred to as “Group” or 
“SIMONA Group”).

The Group statement of financial position conforms with the 
presentation requirements of IAS 1. Various items reported in the 

income statement and the statement of financial position have 
been aggregated for the purpose of improving the overall clarity of 
presentation. These items are disclosed and discussed separately 
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts 
of SIMONA AG and its subsidiaries for each financial year ended 
31 December. The financial statements of SIMONA AG and the 
subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting policies for the 
same reporting period.

All intragroup balances (receivables, liabilities, provisions), 
transactions, income and expenses as well as profits and losses 
from transactions between consolidated entities (“intercompany 
profits/losses”) are eliminated as part of consolidation.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated effective from the acquisition 
date, which is the date on which the Group effectively obtains 
control. Inclusion in the consolidated financial statements ends as 
soon as the parent ceases to control the subsidiary. Changes in a 
parent‘s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a 
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Non-controlling interests are disclosed separately in the Group 
income statement and within equity of the Group statement of 
financial position.

Exemption according to Section 264b HGB
Under Section 264b HGB, SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. 
KG, Kirn, and SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, 
Ringsheim, are exempt from their obligation to prepare, have 
audited and disclose a management report in accordance with 
German commercial law pursuant to the provisions applicable to 
corporations.

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



104     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 

[3] New financial reporting standards

3.1 Accounting standards to be applied for the first 
time in the financial year
 
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the IFRS 
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) issued the following Standards 
and Interpretations that have been endorsed by the EU and 
incorporated into European law and must be applied with regard to 
the reporting period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. 

IFRS pronouncement Approval
IASB

EU 
endorsement

EU first-time 
adoption

Amendments to IFRS 3: 
Definition of a Business 22/10/2018 22/04/2020 01/01/2020

Amendments to  
IAS 1 and IAS 8:  
Definition of Material 31/10/2018 10/12/2019 01/01/2020

Amendments to 
References to the 
Conceptual Framework 
in IFRS 29/03/2018 06/12/2019 01/01/2020

Amendments to IFRS 
9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: 
Interest Rate Benchmark 
Reform 26/09/2019 15/01/2020 01/01/2020

 
IFRS 3: Definition of a Business 
The modified IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” may now only 
be applied to the acquisition of businesses if these are already 
generating revenue from goods and service transactions. 
Investment and other income, lower costs and other economic 
benefits will not be taken into account in future. An interest 
acquired in a start-up that has not yet generated revenues from 
goods or services may only be accounted for as a business 
combination if an organised workforce is taken over. In this respect, 
effects on the consolidated financial statements arise above all 
in the accounting for disposal transactions with regard to the 
assessment of whether or not goodwill is allocated to the disposal 
units concerned.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Frame-
work in IFRS
The IASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The 
Conceptual Framework does not constitute an IFRS Standard and 
does not invalidate any provisions set out in Standards. For this 
reason there will be no changes in the short term. However, the 
revised Conceptual Framework will be used in the future when new 
Standards and Interpretations are drawn up. For this reason, it is 
useful to understand the basic concepts it contains and how they 
may affect future regulations.

IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
The amendments clarify the definition of “material” and 
standardise it within IFRS. They also contain clarifications on 
obscuring material information by providing immaterial information. 
No material effect on the preparation of financial statements is 
expected. 

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7:  
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
In accordance with the amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, 
an entity shall assume that the benchmark interest rate on which 
the cash flows of the hedged item, hedging instrument or hedged 
risk are based is not changed by the IBOR reform. No material 
effect on the preparation of financial statements is expected. 

3.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet applicable 
in the financial year
 
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the 
International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations 
Committee (IFRS IC) have issued additional Standards and 
Interpretations. These standards and interpretations are not being 
applied in the financial year under review, as adoption by the EU 
(“endorsement”) remains outstanding at this time for some of 
them, or because their application is not yet mandatory.
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IFRS pronouncement Approval
IASB

EU 
endorsement

EU first-time 
adoption

IFRS 17, Insurance 
Contracts 18/05/2017 25/06/2020

Expected:
01/01/2023

 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 establishes accounting principles for insurance contracts. 
The standard does not cover the aspect of recognition by 
policyholders. Therefore, this standard does not have an impact on 
the consolidated financial statements. 

[4] Material judgements and estimates
 
Judgements
When applying the accounting policies, the management made 
the following judgements with the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. Among other 
aspects, significant estimates relate to the useful lives of assets.

Material judgements relate to the classification of leases, the 
recognition of provisions, the estimation or assessment of 
the recoverability or possible impairment of trade receivables, 
inventories and deferred tax assets, as well as the assessment of 
factors that may indicate an impairment of assets.

Uncertainties relating to estimates
The following section outlines the most important forward-looking 
assumptions as well as other material uncertainty regarding the 
use of estimates, applicable at the end of the reporting period, as a 
result of which there is a significant risk that the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities may require material adjustments within the 
coming financial year.

Impairment of goodwill
The Group performs impairment tests for goodwill at least once per 
year. This requires estimates to be made with regard to the value in 
use of cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which goodwill is allocated. 
For the purpose of estimating the value in use, the Group has to 
determine, on the basis of estimates, the projected cash flows 
associated with the cash-generating unit, as well as selecting an 
appropriate discount rate in order to determine the present value of 
the aforementioned cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether 
there are observable indications that a non-financial asset or group 
of non-financial assets is impaired. For the purpose of determining 
the value in use, the future expected cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. An appropriate valuation model is 
applied for the purpose of determining the fair value. The Group 
bases its impairment tests on detailed budget calculations that are 
prepared separately for each cash-generating unit. Budget planning 
spans a period of four years. As regards periods beyond this time 
frame, long-term growth rates are determined and applied to the 
projection of future cash flows beyond four years.

Determination of the underlying interest rate for 
leases
The Group determines at the beginning of each year whether the 
assumptions regarding the incremental borrowing rate in leases are 
still valid.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carryforward of unused 
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be 
utilised. The process of determining the level of deferred tax assets 
requires significant judgement by the management with regard to 
the timing and amount of future taxable profit as well as the future 
tax planning strategies. For further details, please refer to Note 
[14].
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised in accordance with the accounting 
policies discussed in Note [29]. In determining the level of 
provisions, the management is required to make significant 
judgements as to the timing and the amounts of future outflow of 
resources.

Pensions
Expenses relating to defined benefit plans are determined on the 
basis of actuarial methods. Actuarial valuation is conducted on the 
basis of assumptions that include discount rates, expected salary 
and pension increases as well as mortality rates. The assumptions 
used as a basis of valuations may differ from actual developments 
due to changing market, economic and social conditions. Any 
change in these assumptions will have an impact on the carrying 
amounts of pension obligations. For further details, please refer to 
Note [27] and [29].

Estimates and judgements relating to the COVID-19 
pandemic
Estimates and judgements may affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts 
of revenues and expenses presented in respect of the reporting 
period. Due to the currently unforeseeable global consequences 
of the COVID-19 pandemic, these estimates and judgements are 
subject to heightened uncertainty. The actual amounts may differ 
from the estimates and judgements made; changes may have a 
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. When 
updating the estimates and judgements, information available 
in respect of expected economic trends and country-specific 
government measures were taken into account. This information 
was included in the impairment testing of financial assets, 
especially trade receivables and financial investments accounted 
for using the equity method, as well as inventories. In addition, 
impairment tests were carried out for the cash-generating units, 
which confirmed the recoverability of the respective underlying 
carrying amounts. 

[5] Summary of significant accounting policies
 
Currency translation
The items accounted for in the respective financial statements are 
measured on the basis of the functional currency. Foreign currency 
transactions are translated initially between the functional currency 
and the foreign currency at the arithmetic mean rate applicable 
on the day of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences are 
recognised in the income statement under other income or other 
expenses, unless they relate to currency effects from financing 
activities. These are reported in net finance income/costs. This 
does not include monetary items that have been designated as part 
of a hedge of a net investment by the Group in a foreign operation. 
They are recognised in other comprehensive income until disposal 
of the net investment; the cumulative amount is reclassified in 
profit and loss only upon disposal. Taxes arising from exchange 
differences relating to these monetary items are also recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost of 
purchase or conversion in a foreign currency are translated at the 
foreign exchange rate applicable on the day of the transaction. 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in the foreign 
currency are translated at the rate that was prevailing at the time 
the fair value was determined.

In the consolidated financial statements expenses and income 
associated with financial statements of subsidiaries prepared in 
a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the year-average 
exchange rate, whereas assets and liabilities are translated on the 
basis of the closing rate. Exchange differences arising from the 
translation of equity as well as exchange differences arising from 
the use of exchange rates in the income statement that differ from 
those used for the translation of items presented in the statement 
of financial position are recognised in other reserves.
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Annual financial statements prepared by the consolidated Group 
entities in a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the 
functional currency method. The functional currency is the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the entities operate, 
which in the case of the Group companies of SIMONA AG is the 
respective local currency. The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in euro. 

Those foreign entities whose functional currencies differ from the 
euro have been presented below, together with details of their 
functional currency:

Company Registered office, 
country

Currency

SIMONA UK Ltd. Stafford, United 
Kingdom Pound Sterling

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Wrocław, Poland Polish zloty

DEHOPLAST POLSKA Sp. z o.o. Kwidzyn, Poland Polish zloty

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o.
Prague,  
Czech Republic Czech koruna

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o.
Litvinov,  
Czech Republic Czech koruna

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED Hong Kong, China Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED Hong Kong, China Hong Kong dollar

SIMONA AMERICA Industries 
LLC Archbald, USA US dollar

SIMONA AMERICA Group INC. Archbald, USA US dollar

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE 
HOLDING, LLC Hazleton, USA US dollar

Power Boulevard Inc. Archbald, USA US dollar

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. Newcomerstown, USA US dollar

DANOH, LLC Akron, USA US dollar

SIMONA PMC, LLC Findlay, USA US dollar

Industrial Drive Inc. Findlay, USA US dollar

SIMONA ENGINEERING 
PLASTICS TRADING  
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. Shanghai, China

Chinese renminbi 
yuan

SIMONA ENGINEERING 
PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co., 
Ltd. Jiangmen, China

Chinese renminbi 
yuan

OOO SIMONA RUS Moscow,  
Russian Federation Russian rouble

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE 
LIMITED Mumbai, India Indian rupee

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD. Singapore, Singapore Singapore dollar

SIMONA Stadpipe AS Stadlandet, Norway Norwegian krone

SIMONA Stadpipe Eiendom AS Stadlandet, Norway Norwegian krone
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Business combinations
Business combinations subsequent to 1 January 2010 are 
accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of a 
business combination is calculated as the sum of the consideration 
transferred, measured at the acquisition-date fair value, and 
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. In the case of each 
business combination, the acquirer measures components of 
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the proportionate 
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree‘s identifiable net 
assets. Acquisition-related costs are accounted for as expenses and 
presented as other expenses.

On first-time recognition, goodwill is measured at cost, being the 
excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities 
assumed. If, after a further review of the underlying data, the 
consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net 
assets of the acquired subsidiary, the difference is accounted for in 
profit and loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, as from the date of acquisition goodwill acquired as part 
of a business combination is allocated to those cash-generating 
units of the Group that are expected to benefit from the business 
combination. This method is applied regardless of whether other 
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are allocated to these cash-
generating units.

Intangible assets
Acquired and internally generated intangible assets are capitalised 
in accordance with IAS 38 if it is probable that the intangible 
asset will generate future economic benefits and the costs of the 
intangible asset can be reliably measured. They are measured at 
cost of purchase or conversion. Intangible assets with a finite useful 
life are amortised on the basis of the length of that useful life. 

Amortisation of intangible assets is performed over a useful life of 
between three and fifteen years.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are used for operational purposes 
and are measured at cost less depreciation on a systematic basis. 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is performed on a 
straight-line basis in accordance with the pattern of use of such 
items. To the extent that depreciable assets of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, the respective components 
of these assets are depreciated separately.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment attributable 
to a cash-generating unit are tested for impairment as soon as 
there are indications that the carrying amount of the assets of 
this cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Items 
of property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal. 
Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference 
between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the item; these gains and losses are included in profit or loss when 
the item is derecognised.

The residual values of assets as well as the useful lives and 
depreciation methods are assessed at the end of each financial 
year and are adjusted where necessary.

Leasing
From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use 
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased 
asset is available for use by the Group. The finance cost is charged 
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for 
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the useful life and the term of the lease 
agreement.



Annual Report 2020      109

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on 
a present value basis.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, insofar as it can be determined. If that rate cannot be 
determined, the lessee‘s incremental borrowing rate is used, being 
the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic 
environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. 

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-val-
ue assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in 
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset, which is defined 
as an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to 
get ready for its intended use or sale, form part of the cost of that 
asset and are capitalised accordingly. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Research and development costs
The research and development activities conducted by SIMONA 
AG are directed principally at the optimisation of production and 
manufacturing processes (advancement within the area of process 
engineering), at changes and improvements to formulae, some 
of which have been in existence for an extensive period of time, 
or at fundamental improvements for the purpose of meeting 
specified quality and inspection requirements, including new testing 
procedures and new areas of application.

To the extent that research and development activities provide 
the basis for a product that is technically feasible and from which 
the Group can generate future economic benefits, the period 
attributable to general research activities constitutes the major 

part thereof. The scale of development expenses arising after the 
product has been made marketable is negligible. In consideration 
of the principle of materiality the intangible asset is not capitalised 
in such cases. This approach does not adversely affect the true 
and fair view of the Group‘s state of affairs as regards financial 
performance, financial position and cash flows.

In addition, SIMONA AG does not capitalise development costs to 
the extent that costs (expenditure) cannot be reliably allocated to 
development projects. The costs are recognised as expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

There were no development projects resulting in the capitalisation 
of intangible assets in the financial year under review or the 
previous financial year.

Impairment of assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 
indication that an asset may be impaired. If such indications are 
present or an annual impairment test of an asset is required, 
the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the 
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset, or of all assets of a cash-
generating unit, is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit shall be reduced 
to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether 
there are observable indications that a non-financial asset or group 
of non-financial assets is impaired. If such indications are present 
or if an annual impairment test of an asset or a group of assets is 
required, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount 
of each asset or of the group of assets. The recoverable amount 
of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value 
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Impairment losses 
are recognised in profit or loss within the expense category that 
corresponds to the function of the impaired asset.
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For the purpose of determining the value in use, the future 
expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
The Group bases its impairment tests on detailed budget and 
forecasting calculations that are prepared separately for each of 
the Group‘s cash-generating units to which individual assets are 
assigned. Such budget and forecasting calculations generally cover 
a period of four years. As regards periods beyond this time frame, 
long-term growth rates are determined and applied to the projection 
of future cash flows subsequent to the fourth year.

Investments and other financial assets
In accordance with IFRS 9, the classification and measurement of 
financial assets is determined according to the entity‘s business 
model and the characteristics of the cash flows of the financial 
asset in question. Accordingly, all financial instruments are divided 
into only two categories: Financial instruments measured at 
amortised cost (AC - Amortised Cost) and financial instruments 
measured at fair value: fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). An 
additional measurement category has been introduced for debt 
instruments. In future, these may be classified as fair value in other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) if the conditions in respect of the 
business model and the contractual cash flows have been met. 

The business model condition refers to how financial assets are 
used for the purpose of generating income. A distinction is made 
between collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 
asset. As a third option, a combination of holding and selling is 
also possible. The business model is determined by an entity‘s 
management having considered all relevant information available.

The cash flow condition is met when the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. The payments should therefore have the character of 
a basic lending arrangement. Depending on the characteristics of 

the cash flow and business model conditions, the financial assets 
are allocated to one of three categories; this provides the basis for 
subsequent measurement. Reclassification is only possible when 
an entity changes its business model.

A financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost if the 
cash flow condition has been met and the business model is based 
on the collection of interest and principal payments. Therefore, 
allocation to the amortised cost (AC) category is only possible for 
debt instruments. By contrast, equity instruments will usually not 
meet the cash flow condition.

If the cash flow condition has been met and the business model 
provides for both the sale and collection of contractual payments, 
the financial asset is allocated to the FVOCI category. 

The FVPL category serves as a “catch category” for debt 
instruments if classification in the two classes is not possible. 
Derivatives generally belong to this category unless they are 
designated in a hedging relationship (hedge accounting). This also 
includes equity instruments if the FVOCI option is not exercised.

Additionally, financial assets – as was the case in IAS 39 – can be 
measured at fair value through profit or loss on a voluntary basis 
(fair value option). In future, however, this option will be restricted 
to the elimination of an accounting mismatch. Finally, equity 
instruments can be irrevocably allocated to the FVOCI category 
upon initial recognition, provided they are not held solely for trading 
purposes (FVOCI option).

The classification and measurement of financial liabilities remains 
largely unchanged compared to IAS 39. 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted 
for at the date of settlement. A regular way purchase or sale is a 
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose terms 
require delivery of the asset within the time frame established 
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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Impairment of financial assets
The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets is impaired. If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has 
been incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset‘s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
financial asset‘s original effective interest rate, i.e. the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The carrying amount 
of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The 
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a 
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases 
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed. However, the new carrying amount 
must not exceed the amortised cost at the date the impairment is 
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

If in the case of trade receivables there is objective evidence that 
not all due amounts will be received in accordance with the agreed 
invoicing terms and conditions (e.g. likelihood of an insolvency or 
significant financial difficulties of the obligor), the carrying amount 
is reduced through use of an allowance account. This does not 
affect impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 on the basis of the 
expected credit loss model. Receivables are derecognised when 
they are considered to be uncollectible.

As regards available-for-sale financial assets, the Group determines 
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. When determining the impairment of debt instruments 
classified as available for sale, the same criteria are used as 
those applied to financial assets measured at amortised cost. The 
amount recognised for impairments, however, is the cumulative 
loss determined as the difference between the amortised cost and 
the current fair value less any impairment losses of this instrument 
recognised in profit or loss on an earlier occasion.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Associates are accounted for using the equity method, an associate 
being an entity over which the investor has significant influence. On 
initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at 
cost. On initial recognition any differences between the cost of the 
investment and the entity‘s share of equity has to be determined. 
This then has to be analysed as to whether it is attributable to 
hidden reserves or liabilities. Any excess, i.e. positive difference, 
remaining after the allocation of hidden reserves and assets is to 
be treated as goodwill and presented in the carrying amount of the 
investment. Any negative difference is accounted for in profit and 
loss by increasing the assigned value of the investment.

Based on the cost of purchase, the carrying amount of the 
investment is increased or decreased in the subsequent periods 
by the share of annual profit. Further adjustments to the carrying 
amount of the investment are required if the equity of the investee 
has changed due to circumstances accounted for in the other 
components of profit/loss.

As part of subsequent measurement, write-downs relating to 
hidden reserves realised in the context of initial measurement have 
to be accounted for accordingly and deducted from the share of 
annual profit. To avoid double recognition, dividends received are to 
be deducted from the carrying amount.

If there are circumstances indicating that the investment may be 
impaired, an impairment test is to be conducted in respect of this 
investment. No separate review of pro-rata goodwill is conducted as 
part of this process. The assessment applies to the total carrying 
amount of the investment.
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Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase or conversion cost 
and net realisable value.

The inventories associated with consumables have been capitalised 
at average historical cost. As part of Group accounting, the cost 
of raw materials is assigned mainly by using the weighted average 
cost formula. Finished goods are measured at manufacturing 
cost (cost of conversion) according to item-by-item calculations 
based on current operational accounting; in addition to the directly 
related cost of direct material and units of production, this item 
also includes special production costs as well as production 
and material overheads, including depreciation. Financing costs 
are not accounted for in the cost of conversion. All identifiable 
risks associated with inventories, particularly relating to holding 
periods in excess of average duration, diminished usability and net 
realisable value, are recognised by an appropriate write-down.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price achievable in 
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs incurred 
until completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents recognised in the statement of financial 
position comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short-term 
deposits with original maturities of less than three months.

As regards the Group statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise the aforementioned cash and cash 
equivalents less overdrafts used by the Group.

Financial liabilities
SIMONA measures financial liabilities other than derivative financial 
instruments at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The Group‘s financial liabilities comprise trade payables, other 
financial liabilities, bank overdrafts, loans and derivative financial 
instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings
On initial recognition, loans are measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received, having deducted the transaction costs 
relating to the origination of the loan. After initial recognition 
interest-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method. A financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or when it expires.

Accounting for put and call options from company 
acquisitions
As regards put and call options from company acquisitions, 
financial liabilities are recognised as liabilities that represent the 
interests still outstanding from the acquisitions. The liability is 
recognised on initial recognition at the present value of the exercise 
price. The liability is reclassified from equity at the time of addition 
(IAS 32.23). The market interest rate for comparable financing is 
used for discounting purposes and includes, among other factors, 
the credit rating of SIMONA AG. Subsequent measurement is 
carried out in accordance with IFRS 10.23 without affecting profit 
or loss.

Other provisions
Other provisions are recognised when an obligation exists towards 
a third party, settlement of this obligation is probable and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the required provision. 
Other provisions are measured at aggregate costs. Long-term 
provisions with more than one year to maturity are recognised at 
their discounted settlement value as at the end of the reporting 
period.

Pensions
The Group has direct pension plans as well as one indirect pension 
plan. The indirect pension plan is serviced by SIMONA Sozialwerk 
GmbH, which manages the plan assets. The plan assets are 
accounted for in the Group statement of financial position such 
that the fair value of those assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and 
SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH 
that fulfil the requirements for plan assets are deducted from the 
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benefit obligation of the Group (funding company) when measuring 
the pension provision to be recognised. The fair value of the plan 
assets is based on information regarding the market price; in the 
case of securities traded on public exchanges, it corresponds to 
the published purchase price. As the requirements for plan assets 
specified in IAS 19.8 have been fulfilled, the deduction of the plan 
assets from the obligation of the Group does not give rise to an 
obligation to consolidate on the part of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH 
and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft 
mbH because their sole purpose is to service the pension 
obligations.

Provisions for pensions are accounted for on the basis of the 
Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as the accrued 
benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of 
service method) (IAS 19, Projected Unit Credit Method). As part of 
this process, besides pensions and benefits known as at the end 
of the reporting period, expected future increases in salaries and 
pensions are accounted for with sufficient reliability. The calculation 
is based on actuarial reports that take into account specific 
biometric data.

In accordance with IAS 19, interest expenses and the expected 
return on plan assets are replaced with a net interest amount. It is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure defined 
benefit obligations to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The 
net interest from a net defined benefit liability (asset) includes 
the interest expenses attributable to defined benefit obligations 
and interest income from plan assets. The difference between 
the interest income on plan assets and the return on plan assets 
is included in the remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 
in other comprehensive income for the Group. In accordance with 
IAS 19, the return on plan assets is calculated on the basis of the 
discount rate.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total 
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair 
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled 
directly.

Government grants
A government grant is not recognised until there is reasonable 
assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions attaching 
to it, and that the grant will be received. Grants related to income 
are presented as part of profit or loss under the heading of “other 
income” and are recognised on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for 
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition
The Group manufactures and sells semi-finished plastics as well 
as pipes and fittings. Revenue is recognised when control over 
the separately identifiable products is transferred, i.e. when the 
control associated with ownership of the products sold has been 
transferred to the customer. This is conditional upon the existence 
of a contract with enforceable rights and obligations and, among 
other things, the probability that the consideration will be received, 
taking into account the customer‘s creditworthiness. Revenues 
represent the contractually agreed transaction price that SIMONA is 
expected to be entitled to. 

The Group also provides services centred around its SIMONA 
Academy and the rental of welding machines for plastics. The value 
of such services is less than 0.02 per cent of consolidated revenue 
and is immaterial. The Group‘s business activities also involve 
planning, producing and installing piping systems used in the 
aquaculture industry.

Framework agreements that the Group enters into with individual 
customers mainly include product specifications, purchase 
quantities, contract terms, terms of delivery, payment terms, bonus 
agreements, penalties and, in individual cases, extended warranty 
periods. The standard payment terms are between 30 and 90 
days without deductions and up to 14 days with up to 3 per cent 
discount. In individual cases, SIMONA agrees warranty periods 
of up to five years in general; they are customary in the industry 
and go beyond the statutory warranty period. Transaction prices 
for extended warranties are not customary in the market and are 
therefore not invoiced.

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



114     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 

Taxes 

a) Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities and current tax assets for current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or 
recovered from the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. Where required, tax liabilities are recognised.

b) Deferred taxes
Applying the liability method, deferred taxes are recognised for all 
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset 
or liability in the statement of financial position and its tax base as 
well as in connection with consolidation procedures. Additionally, 
a deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can 
be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.

Deferred taxes are recognised for all taxable and deductible 
temporary differences, with the exception of:

  �Deferred tax liabilities from the initial recognition of goodwill or 
of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
profit nor taxable profit/tax loss.

  �Deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries if the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is 
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the 
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and if they relate to the income taxes of 
the same taxable entity, imposed by the same taxation authority.

c) Value added tax
Sales revenues, expenses and assets are recognised after 
deduction of value added tax.
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[6] Segment reporting 

For company management purposes, the Group is organised 
according to geographic regions and has the three following 
reportable operating segments:

  �Europe
  �Americas
  �Asia and Pacific

As in the previous year, the segments have been allocated on the 
basis of the region in which the revenue-generating business unit 
has its registered office.

All three segments generate their revenues mainly through the sale 
of semi-finished plastics and pipes, including fittings. The segment 
categorised as “Europe” encompasses the production and sale 
of  semi-finished and finished thermoplastics, profiles, pipes and 
fittings as well as the planning, production and installation of piping 
systems for aquaculture. The segment categorised as “Americas” 
mainly covers the production and sale of extruded thermoplastic 
sheets, the emphasis being on aircraft interiors. The segment 
categorised as “Asia and Pacific” includes the production and sale 
of semi-finished thermoplastics.

Management assesses earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 
of these segments for the purpose of making decisions as to the 

distribution of resources and determining the profitability of the 
business units. Segment profitability is determined on the basis 
of operating results from operating activities before the effects of 
financing activities and excluding income tax effects.

As a matter of course, segment information is based on the same 
principles of presentation and the same accounting policies 
as those applied to the consolidated financial statements. 
Receivables, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as profit/
loss between the individual segments are eliminated as part of 
reconciliation. Internal transfer pricing between the business 
segments is determined on the basis of competitive market prices 
charged to unaffiliated third parties (regular way transaction). 
External sales revenue relates to the registered office of the 
revenue-generating business unit. Capital expenditure relates 
to additions to intangible assets as well as property, plant and 
equipment. Segment assets comprise assets that contribute to the 
achievement of operating profit. Depreciation and amortisation of 
non-current assets relate to both intangible assets and property, 
plant and equipment.

The following table includes information relating to segment 
revenues, income and expenses as well as segment results. The 
differences in respect of the consolidated financial statements are 
presented in the reconciliation.

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



116     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 

[7] Sales revenue
 
Sales revenue is attributable mainly to the sale of semi-finished 
plastics, pipes and fittings as well as the planning, production 
and installation of piping systems for aquaculture. There are no 
contractual take-back obligations from product deliveries. Refunds 
are made promptly in the form of credit notes to the customer in 
the event of changes in the transaction price, complaints or other 
reasons. Delivery and service obligations in the Group result mainly 
from the order backlog at the end of the year in the amount of 
€45,100 thousand (previous year: €47,180 thousand).

The classification of sales revenue by region and product area is 
outlined in segment reporting – Note [6].

Contract balances
Contract assets result from completed contracts that have not yet 
been invoiced as at the reporting date. The assets are reclassified 
to trade receivables when the right to consideration becomes 
unconditional. Contract liabilities arise for advance payments 
received for which no work has yet been carried out.

The changes in contract assets and liabilities correspond to the 
natural development of the project portfolio as well as the current 
project mix.

The following assets and liabilities were recognised within the 
Group in connection with revenue from contracts with customers: 

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Trade receivables 56,158 59,702

Contract assets 296 0 

Contract liabilities –148 0 

SEGMENT INFORMATION OF THE SIMONA GROUP 

Europe Americas Asia and Pacific Total

in € ’000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues from  
external customers 256,675 269,724 103,828 131,913 29,247 30,858 389,751 432,494

Revenues from  
other segments 8,652 9,141 322 141 0 0 8,974 9,281

Segment revenues 265,327 278,865 104,150 132,053 29,247 30,858 398,725 441,776

Other income 7,827 4,386 1,039 249 3,286 1,409 12,153 6,044

Cost of materials 128,275 151,787 47,628 60,715 19,662 23,305 195,566 235,808

Staff costs 60,450 57,205 23,189 24,789 3,356 3,710 86,994 85,705

Depreciation, amortisa-
tion and write-downs 10,917 10,255 5,609 5,563 1,616 1,558 18,259 17,377

Other expenses 51,257 50,482 19,187 23,155 3,390 3,858 73,834 77,495

Earnings before interest 
and taxes (EBIT) 22,658 9,787 8,520 19,007 2,782 425 33,960 29,219

Earnings before taxes 
(EBT) 20,483 9,956 8,217 18,063 2,187 –166 30,887 27,853

Segment capital 
expenditure 14,172 15,392 5,045 7,374 1,216 853 20,433 23,619

Non-current assets 97,941 85,225 75,683 83,235 9,373 10,292 182,997 178,752
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The initial recognition of contract assets and contract liabilities in 
2020 results from the subsidiary SIMONA Stadpipe AS, which was 
acquired in 2020.

[8] Other income 

Other income includes the following items:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Income from foreign currency translation 1,790 1,236

Reversal of provisions/Deferrals and accruals 3,866 505

Income from disposal of property, plant  
and equipment 41 42

Income from services and commissions 142 181

Income from rental and lease 28 22

Miscellaneous other income 2,932 2,617

8,800 4,602

The increase in other income is attributable largely to the reversal 
of provisions for complaints. 

[9] Cost of materials 

The cost of materials includes the following items:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Cost of raw materials, consumables 
and supplies 184,971 224,392

Cost of purchased services 1,633 2,142

186,604 226,534
 

[10] Staff costs

Staff costs include the following items:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Wages and salaries 67,608 67,288

of which from long-term employee benefits 1,286 1,216

Expenses relating to social security 14,142 13,815

Expenses relating to pensions 5,244 4,602

86,994 85,705

Reconciliation Group

2020 2019 2020 2019

 
0 0 389,751 432,494

 
–8,974 –9,282 0 0

–8,974 –9,282 389,751 432,494

–3,353 –1,442 8,800 4,602

–8,962 –9,274 186,604 226,534

  86,994 85,705

 
117  18,259 17,377

–3,317 –1,497 70,516 75,998

 
–386 209 33,574 29,428

 
–409 138 30,478 27,991

 
20,433 23,619

182,997 178,752

GERMANY

in € ’000 2020 2019

Domestic revenue 89,147 99,955

Non-current assets 76,734 71,844

SEGMENT INFORMATION BY PRODUCT AREA

in € ’000 2020 2019

Semi-finished products 306,450 344,141

Pipes and fittings 83,301 88,353

Revenues from  
external customers 389,751 432,494
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Staff costs include employment termination indemnities totalling 
€601 thousand (previous year: €235 thousand). 

Expenses relating to social security include defined contribution 
plans governed by German legislation (statutory pension insurance) 
totalling €4,610 thousand (previous year: €4,486 thousand).

[11] Research and development expenses 

Research and development expenses amounted to €4,351 thou-
sand in the period under review (previous year: €4,356 thousand). 
Expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment. No development 
costs were capitalised in the financial year under review.

[12] Other expenses 

Other expenses comprise the following items:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Outward freight 16,474 17,308

Other selling expenses 9,922 13,888

Maintenance expenses 13,174 13,429

Other administrative expenses 12,346 12,125

Expenses for packaging material 7,992 8,951

Other operating costs 3,822 2,486

Rental and lease expenses 694 823

Losses from disposal of assets 479 119

Losses from the derecognition of financial 
assets and impairment losses 790 837

Expenses from foreign currency translation 1,971 1,135

Other 2,852 4,898

70,516 75,998

The decrease in other expenses is mainly due to lower other selling 
expenses as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and lower other 
expenses.

[13] Net finance income/cost

in € ’000 2020 2019

Finance income 1,452 1,023

of which income from the translation 
of financing-related monetary balance 
sheet items 1,263 888

of which interest from loans and receivables 124 117

of which other finance income 64 17

Finance costs 4,720 2,721

of which expenses from the translation 
of financing-related monetary balance 
sheet items 3,175 283

of which interest expenses from 
termination benefits 1,256 2,011

of which interest expenses from 
borrowings and financial liabilities 289 427

Net finance cost –3,268 –1,698

Income and expenses from the translation of financing-related 
monetary balance sheet items mainly result from the exchange rate 
risk of intragroup financing transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies and of cash and cash equivalents denominated in 
foreign currencies.

[14] Income taxes 

The principal elements of income tax expense are as follows:

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

in € ’000 2020 2019

Current tax

Current tax expense 8,880 8,144

Adjustments of current tax attributable  
to previous periods –343 499

Deferred tax   

Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences –1,289 –1,522

Change in loss carryforwards and tax 
credits recognised 73 283

Income tax expense reported in  
Group income statement 7,321 7,404
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Reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of 
profit for the year carried in the statement of financial position and 
the tax rate applicable to the Group is as follows:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Earnings before taxes (EBT) 30,478 27,991

Income tax expense at German tax rate of 
29.48% (prev. year: 29.48%) 8,985 8,252

Adjustments of current tax attributable to 
previous periods –343 499

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to 
tax losses 134 148

Recognised deferred tax assets relating to 
tax losses –214 0

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 784 279

Tax rate differences –1,104 –1,689

Changes to tax rate –3 –3

Tax-free dividend income 25 26

Other tax-free income –625 –3

Tax effects of permanent differences –254 1

Adjustments to carrying amount for loss 
carryforwards and tax credits 0 –191

Other tax effects not attributable to the period 0 67

Other –64 18

Income tax expense at effective tax rate  
of 24.0% (prev. year: 26.5%) 7,321 7,404

Income tax expense reported in  
Group income statement 7,321 7,404

Changes to the tax rates of the consolidated subsidiaries are as 
follows: The gradual reduction in the corporation tax rate in France 
to a range from 15 to 33 per cent with effect from 2018 was 
approved on 27 November 2017. Effective from 2019 to 2022, 
the corporation tax rate is to be lowered in each case to between 
15 and 25 per cent. In the United Kingdom, under the Finance Act 
2016 the UK‘s corporation tax rate will be reduced gradually to 
19 per cent (as from 1 April 2017) and 17 per cent (as from 1 April 
2020). 

Deferred taxes
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities were as follows: 

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Deferred tax assets

Provisions for pensions 32,507 26,489

Other provisions and liabilities 412 890

Lease liabilities IFRS 16  418  278

Inventories 1,332 67

Receivables and other assets 273 208

Loss carryforwards and tax credits 301 374

Property, plant and equipment 868 914

Other items 437 112

36,548 29,332

Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill 124 2,064

Other intangible assets 2,382 0

Right-of-use assets IFRS 16  409  411

Property, plant and equipment 11,646 11,478

Inventories 3,893 4,146

Receivables and other assets 159 866

Other provisions and liabilities 22 146

Other items 1,019 321

19,654 19,432

Set-off –8,782 –9,556

Deferred tax assets 27,768 19,776

Deferred tax liabilities –10,872 –9,876

Net balance sheet position 16,895 9,900

The net balance sheet position of deferred taxes changed as 
follows: 

in € ’000 2020 2019

Beginning of the period 1 January 9,900 756

Income tax expense (income) 1,216 1,239

Amount recognised directly in equity  
(total comprehensive income) 5,800 7,796

Currency translation 539 109

Additions from company acquisitions –559 0

End of period 31 December 16,895 9,900

>  I
nt

ro
du

ct
io

n
>  T

o 
ou

r S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s
>  M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

or
t

>  F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
>  O

th
er

 D
et

ai
ls



120     Annual Report 2020

Grow
Together 

At the end of the reporting period, loss carryforwards amounted 
to €10,120 thousand (prev. year: €2,344 thousand). Deferred tax 
assets of €8,196 thousand (prev. year: €1,678 thousand) were 
recognised for €302 thousand (prev. year: €374 thousand) of the 
loss carryforwards mentioned above. Beyond this, no other deferred 
tax assets were recognised, as the losses may not be used for the 
purpose of set-off with the taxable profit of other Group companies. 

Expiry date of tax loss carryforwards:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Between 3 and 20 years 9,699 1,176

9,699 1,176

Deferred tax assets of around €60 thousand (previous year: €172 
thousand) are expected to be realised in the subsequent financial 
year.

[15] Earnings per share 

For the calculation of basic earnings per share, the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity shares 
is divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. There were no dilutive effects in the 
reporting period or in the prior-year period.

The following table presents the amounts relevant to the calculation 
of basic and diluted earnings per share:

in € ’000 or units of 1,000 2020 2019

Profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders 
of the parent company 22,990 20,477

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  
(without treasury shares) to calculate basic 
earnings per share 600 600

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  
(without treasury shares) to calculate diluted 
earnings per share 600 600

Basic earnings per share (in €) 38.32 34.13

Diluted earnings per share (in €) 38.32 34.13

[16] Paid and proposed dividends 

During the financial year a dividend, attributable to the ordinary 
shares of the parent company, in the amount of €10.00 (previous 
year: €14.00) per share was declared and distributed. The total 
payment made in the financial year under review amounted to 
€6,000 thousand (previous year: €8,400 thousand). A dividend 
proposal of €12.00 per share will be submitted to the Annual 
General Meeting of Shareholders. The proposed total dividend was 
not recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. The 
corresponding payment would total €7,200 thousand (previous 
year: €6,000 thousand).

Notes to the Group statement of financial position

[17] Intangible assets

31/12/2020

in € ’000 Patents and 
licences

Customer 
base

Goodwill Total

Balance at 1 January 
2020 (Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into 
account accumulated 
depreciation/amortisa-
tion and impairments) 3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007

Additions 95 0 0 95

Additions from business 
combinations 783 1,547 4,869 7,199

Transfer 8 46 0 53

Disposals 0 0 0 0

Depreciation/
amortisation during  
the financial year –681 –1,122 –143 –1,946

Effects of changes 
in foreign currency 
exchange rates –195 –239 –2,565 –2,999
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Balance at  
31 December 2020    
(Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into 
account accumulated 
depreciation/amortisa-
tion and impairments)

3,589 3,923 32,897 40,409

Balance at  
1 January 2020

Cost of purchase or 
conversion 12,187 9,483 31,452 53,122

Accumulated deprecia-
tion/amortisation –8,608 –5,792 –715 –15,115

Carrying amount 3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007

Balance at  
31 December 2020     

Cost of purchase or 
conversion 12,635 10,229 33,756 56,620

Accumulated deprecia-
tion/amortisation –9,047 –6,306 –859 –16,212

Carrying amount 3,589 3,923 32,897 40,409

Goodwill was as follows:

in € ’000 01/01/ 
2020

Additi-
ons/

disposals

Amortisa-
tion

Change 
in foreign 
exchange 

rate

31/12/ 
2020

SIMONA Boltaron 
Inc., USA 23,789 0 0 –2,010 21,778

SIMONA America 
Industries LLC / 
Power Boulevard 
Inc., USA 2,309 0 0 –174 2,135

SIMONA PMC LLC, 
USA 4,496 0 0 –380 4,116

SIMONA Stadpipe 
AS, Norway 0 4,869 0 0 4,869

Other 143 0 –143 0 0

30,737 4,869 –143 –2,565 32,897

 
In accordance with the method applied in the previous year, patents 
and licences are amortised systematically over their economic life 
of three to five years by using the straight-line method; customer 
relationships are amortised over an economic life of five to fifteen 
years by using the straight-line method. The residual book value of 
customer relationships resulting from acquisitions is as follows:

31/12/2020

Residual book 
value in € ’000

Remaining period  
of amortisation

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., USA 207 < 1 year

SIMONA America Industries LLC / 
Power Boulevard Inc., USA 429 3 years

SIMONA PMC LLC, USA 1,791 12 years

SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Norway 1,496 10 years

Total 3,923

31/12/2019

Residual book 
value in € ’000

Remaining period  
of amortisation

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., USA 1,131 1 year

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC / 
Power Boulevard Inc., USA 418 4 years

SIMONA PMC, LLC, USA 2,142 13 years

Total 3,691

Impairment of goodwill
The Group conducts the mandatory annual impairment test for 
significant goodwill in the fourth quarter of the financial year, 
applying the method outlined in Note [5] “Impairment of Assets”. 
As part of the impairment test conducted in the financial year 
under review in respect of the cash-generating units (CGU), 
the recoverable amounts on the basis of the value in use were 
estimated to be higher than the carrying amounts. No impairment 
losses were required as part of the goodwill impairment test 
conducted for the financial year under review.

The fundamental assumptions made in connection with the 
impairment test are based primarily on projected market growth 
rates as well as Group estimates/assessments provided by the 
respective sales and purchasing departments. The assumptions 
in the financial year under review are based on the parameters 
presented in the following table. Projections relating to cash flows 
are based on a period of four years, subsequently transitioning into 
perpetuity.

SIMONA Boltaron Inc.
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA Boltaron Inc. comprises the 
entire unit of SIMONA Boltaron Inc. The test was based on the 
following parameters: four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, 
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EBITDA margin and discount rate at end of forecasting period. The 
discount rate after tax is 5.54 per cent (6.76 per cent before tax) 
for the planning period and 4.04 per cent for the period beyond. 
The applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the forecasting 
period is 1.5 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 0.5 
percentage points did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

SIMONA PMC, LLC
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA PMC LLC comprises the 
entire unit of SIMONA PMC LLC. The following parameters were 
applicable: four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, EBITDA 
margin and discount rate at end of forecasting period. The discount 
rate after tax is 5.54 per cent (7.22 per cent before tax) for the 
planning period and 4.04 per cent for the period beyond. The 
applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the forecasting 
period is 1.5 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 0.5 
percentage point did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC /  
Power Boulevard Inc.
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC/
Power Boulevard Inc. comprises the entire unit of SIMONA AMERICA 
Industries LLC as well as Power Boulevard Inc. The following 
parameters were applicable: four-year forecasting period, revenue 
growth, EBITDA margin and discount rate at end of forecasting 
period. The discount rate after tax is 5.54 per cent (6.81 per cent 
before tax) for the planning period and 4.04 per cent for the period 
beyond. The applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the 
forecasting period is 1.5 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin 
by 0.5 percentage point did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

SIMONA Stadpipe AS
The impairment test of CGU SIMONA Stadpipe AS comprises the 
entire unit of SIMONA Stadpipe AS. The following parameters 
were applicable: four-year forecasting period, revenue growth, 
EBITDA margin and discount rate at end of forecasting period. The 
discount rate after tax is 7.7 per cent (9.62 per cent before tax) for 
the planning period and 6.5 per cent for the period beyond. The 
applicable growth rate subsequent to the end of the forecasting 
period is 1.2 per cent. A reduction of the EBITDA margin by 0.5 
percentage point did not result in an impairment of goodwill.

31/12/2019

in € ’000 Patents and 
licences

Customer 
base

Goodwill Total

Balance at  
1 January 2019  
(Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into 
account accumulated 
depreciation/amortisa-
tion and impairments) 4,206 4,690 30,165 39,060

Additions 92 0 0 92

Transfer 5 0 0 5

Disposals 0 0 0 0

Depreciation/amortisa-
tion during the financial 
year –780 –1,093 0 –1,873

Effects of changes 
in foreign currency 
exchange rates 56 94 572 722

Balance at  
31 December 2019  
(Cost of purchase/
conversion, taking into 
account accumulated 
depreciation/amortisa-
tion and impairments)

3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007

Balance at  
1 January 2019

Cost of purchase or 
conversion 12,114 9,303 30,881 52,297

Accumulated depre
ciation/amortisation –7,908 –4,613 –716 –13,237

Carrying amount 4,206 4,690 30,165 39,060

Balance at  
31 December 2019     

Cost of purchase or 
conversion 12,187 9,483 31,452 53,122

Accumulated depre
ciation/amortisation –8,608 –5,792 –715 –15,115

Carrying amount 3,579 3,691 30,737 38,007
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[18] Property, plant and equipment

31/12/2020

in € ’000 Land and  
buildings

Technical equipment,
operating and  

office equipment

Prepayments
and assets under 

construction

Total

Balance at 1 January 2020 (Cost of purchase/conver-
sion, taking into account accumulated depreciation/
amortisation and impairments) 44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

Additions 1,984 8,479 9,876 20,338

Additions from business combinations 1,342 1,466 0 2,808

Transfer 389 13,014 –13,456 –53

Disposals –10 –546 0 –557

Depreciation/amortisation during the financial year –2,425 –13,924 0 –16,348

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates –1,328 –2,446 –324 –4,098

Balance at 31 December 2020   
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and 
impairments)

44,370 84,853 11,585 140,808

 
Balance at 1 January 2020

Cost of purchase or conversion 88,827 280,125 15,491 384,443

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation  
and impairments –44,409 –201,315 0 –245,724

Carrying amount 44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

 
Balance at 31 December 2020     

Cost of purchase or conversion 90,824 289,681 11,585 392,090

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation  
and impairments –46,454 –204,829 0 –251,282

Carrying amount 44,370 84,853 11,585 140,808

 
Prepayments (€5,375 thousand) and assets under construction 
(€6,210 thousand) relate primarily to investments to expand 
operations at the sites in Kirn and Ringsheim, Germany, as well as 
investment projects at the plants in the United States and China.
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31/12/2019

in € ’000 Land and  
buildings

Technical equipment,  
operating and  

office equipment

Prepayments
and assets under 

construction

Total

Balance at 1 January 2019  
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and 
impairments) 44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

Additions 1,045 5,889 16,594 23,528

Transfer 1,043 10,339 –11,387 –5

Disposals 0 –239 –43 –316

Depreciation/amortisation during the financial year –2,301 –12,373 0 –14,647

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 446 629 43 1,118

Balance at 31 December 2019   
(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and 
impairments)

44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

 
Balance at 1 January 2019

Cost of purchase or conversion 86,211 268,151 10,318 364,680

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation  
and impairments –42,026 –193,586 0 –235,612

Carrying amount 44,185 74,565 10,318 129,069

 
Balance at 31 December 2019     

Cost of purchase or conversion 88,827 280,125 15,491 384,443

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation  
and impairments –44,409 –201,315 0 –245,724

Carrying amount 44,418 78,810 15,491 138,719

The useful life of property, plant and equipment was estimated as 
follows:

Buildings 20–40 years

Technical equipment, operating and  
office equipment 5–20 years
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[19] Leases 

The following items are presented in the statement of financial 
position in connection with leases:

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Land 371 501

Buildings 507 857

Machinery 116  0

Operating and office equipment 52 44

Motor vehicles 630 614

Industrial trucks 103 10

1.780 2.026

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Current lease liabilities 752 812

Non-current lease liabilities 1,051 1,230

1,803 2,042

in € ’000
Up to 

1 year
1 to 

5 years

More 
than 

5 years Total

Future lease payments 806 1,127 1 1,934

Discounting 69 62 0 131

Present value 737 1,065 1 1,803

The conclusion of new lease agreements led to additions to right-of-
use assets amounting to €475 thousand in the 2020 financial year.

The income statement shows the following amounts related to 
leases:

Depreciation of right-of-use asset

in € ’000 2020 2019

Land 87 96

Buildings 346 349

Machinery 39 0

Operating and office equipment 10 13

Motor vehicles 350 272

Industrial trucks 28 60

Total 861 790

Expenses from leases

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Interest expense from lease liabilities 37 44

Expense relating to short-term leases 430 560

Expense relating to leases of low-value 
assets 562 422

In the period under review, cash outflows from leases amounted to 
€828 thousand.

The Group‘s leasing activities
The Group leases land, office and warehousing premises, 
equipment, motor vehicles and industrial trucks. Rental agreements 
are typically concluded for fixed periods of one to six years, but 
may include extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an 
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and 
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, 
but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing 
purposes.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset 
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is 
available for use by the Group. The finance cost is charged to profit 
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each 
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
asset‘s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on 
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value 
of the following lease payments:
  �Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any 

lease incentives receivable
  �Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate 
  �Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual 

value guarantees
  �The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is 

reasonably certain to exercise that option
  �Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 

reflects the lessee exercising that option
  �Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension 

options
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There are currently no plans to exercise purchase options; 
extension options are included in the calculation of the present 
value. Lease incentives, residual value guarantees and penalty 
payments are currently not part of the lease arrangements. Variable 
lease payments amount to €82 thousand per annum. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, insofar as it can be determined. If that rate cannot be 
determined, the lessee‘s incremental borrowing rate is used, being 
the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic 
environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
  �the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
  �any lease payments made at or before the commencement date 

less any lease incentives received,
  �any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
  �estimated costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling and 

removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is 
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required 
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The leases entered into do not currently contain any lease 
incentives or initial direct costs or costs for dismantling or removing 
underlying assets.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense 
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 
twelve months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment 
and small items of office furniture.

There were no subleases of right-of-use assets or sale-and-lease-
back transactions in the reporting period. 

[20] Investments accounted for using the equity 
method

This item includes the entities accounted for as associates. 
The investment carrying amount in respect of CARTIERWILSON, 
LLC, which sells products of the US subsidiaries in the United 
States on a commission/agency basis in its capacity as a 
sales representative, was €978 thousand (previous year: €977 
thousand). The investment carrying amount in respect of 
Sandusky Technologies LLC, was €141 thousand (previous year: 
€165 thousand). The company operates in the area of plastics 
thermoforming. The profit from investments accounted for using the 
equity method was €172 thousand (previous year: €261 thousand) 
in total.

Associates  Ownership interest in %

CARTIERWILSON, LLC, Marietta, USA  25.0

Sandusky Technologies LLC, Fremont, USA  25.0

[21] Inventories

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Raw materials and consumables used 31,500 34,001

Work in progress 730 766

Finished goods and merchandise 52,371 54,687

Prepayment for inventories 293 201

84,893 89,655

The amount relating to inventory impairments recognised in cost of 
material rose by €407 thousand year on year to €9,584 thousand 
in the period under review; of this amount, write-downs relating to 
the net realisable value of finished goods totalled €268 thousand 
(previous year: €276 thousand).
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[22] Trade receivables

Trade receivables result from the sale of products to customers as 
part of the operating business model. The items are due primarily 
in 30 to 90 days. On initial recognition, they are recognised at 
the amount of unconditional consideration and held with the aim 
of collecting the contractual cash flow. Subsequently, they are 
measured at amortised cost.

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Gross carrying amount 58,638 62,012

Of which past due within the following  
time ranges   

Not overdue 50,908 52,811

up to 30 days 5,432 4,624

between 31 and 60 days 1,024 2,160

between 61 and 90 days –144 713

more than 91 days 1,417 1,704

The impairment losses in respect of financial assets relate 
exclusively to trade receivables and were as follows:

in € ’000 2020 2019

1 January 2,310 2,450

Exchange differences 126 –17

Increase in impairment in financial year 
(recognised in profit and loss) 82 –90

Written off as uncollectible –12 –147

Not used and reversed –26 –100

31 December 2,480 2,310

Net carrying amount  56,158  59,702

EXPECTED LOSS RATES

in per cent 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Country risks 0.0–13.0 0.0–22.4

Industry risks 1.0–3.5 0.45–3.0

As regards the trade receivables that were neither impaired nor 
past due, there were no indications at the end of the reporting 
period that customers will fail to meet their payment obligations.

The following table includes expenses attributable to the 
derecognition of trade receivables as well as income from amounts 
received in connection with derecognised trade receivables. 
Expenses attributable to the derecognition of trade receivables are 
reported as other expenses, while income attributable to amounts 
received in connection with derecognised trade receivables is 
accounted for as other income.

in € ’000 2020 2019

Expenses attributable to the derecognition 
of trade receivables 138 296

Income attributable to amounts received 
in connection with derecognised trade 
receivables 69 23

[23] Other assets and tax assets

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Receivables from value-added tax 845 1,895

Prepayments 269 270

Advance payments for future periods 899 690

Receivables from energy tax 1,191 1,252

Other receivables 2,546 1,643

5,750 5,749

At the end of the reporting period, other assets were neither 
impaired nor past due.

Tax assets amount to €2,805 thousand (previous year: €4,607 
thousand) and are attributable primarily to the Americas segment.

[24] Cash and cash equivalents

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Bank balances and cash on hand 85,349 68,399

85,349 68,399
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Bank balances bear interest on the basis of floating interest rates 
applicable to deposits payable on demand. No restraints on use 
are known apart from the local statutory restrictions applicable to 
the subsidiaries in China. At the end of the reporting period cash 
attributable to the Chinese entities amounted to €1,090 thousand 
(previous year: €2,923 thousand).

At the end of the year, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities 
of €28,559 thousand (previous year: €18,975 thousand).

[25] Equity
 
Changes in equity are presented in a separate Group statement of 
changes in equity.

Issued capital
At the end of the reporting period, the share capital of SIMONA AG 
was divided into 600,000 no-par-value shares. These shares are 
classified as ordinary bearer shares. Each no-par-value share has 
a notional interest of €25.83 in the company‘s share capital. The 
ordinary shares have been issued and fully paid in.

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Share capital 15,500 15,500

Issued capital 15,500 15,500

As was the case in the previous financial year, SIMONA AG has no 
treasury shares.

Capital reserves 

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Share premium from the issuance of stock  15,274 15,274

Capital reserves  15,274 15,274

 
Capital reserves mainly include the share premium from the 
issuance of SIMONA AG stock. There was no increase in capital 
reserves in the period under review. 

Retained earnings
This item essentially contains retained earnings of previous years, 
profit for the current period and profit recognised directly in equity. 
In addition, the legal and statutory reserve as well as the IAS 
revaluation surplus of the parent company are presented here. The 
changes in this item are shown in the Group statement of changes 
in equity.

Other reserves

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Currency translation effects  818  11,206

Other reserves  818  11,206

Other reserves include currency translation effects attributable to 
exchange differences occurring upon translation of the financial 
statements of foreign subsidiaries as well as the foreign exchange 
effects (accounted for in equity) of translating net investments in 
foreign subsidiaries. In the year under review, other reserves were 
reduced in particular by the recognition of a financial liability in the 
amount of €8.2 million arising from a put option granted as part of 
the acquisition of the subsidiary SIMONA Stadpipe AS in 2020.

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Exchange differences on translating  
financial statements of subsidiaries –9,030 1,843

Exchange differences on translating  
net investments –1,968 539

Exchange differences on translating 
foreign operations –10,998 2,382

Deferred taxes from currency translation 610 –132

Exchange differences –10,388 2,250

Non-controlling interests
This item relates to non-controlling interests in DEHOPLAST POLSKA 
Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland. The non-controlling interests correspond 
to the applicable voting rights and amount to 49 per cent. Revenue 
generated by this entity amounted to €3,277 thousand in the period 
under review (previous year: €3,077 thousand). The total payment 
made in the financial year under review amounted to €57 thousand 
(previous year: €40 thousand). The company‘s balance sheet total 
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stands at €1,391 thousand and is mainly composed of current 
assets (€1,377 thousand) and current liabilities (€14 thousand).

In addition, the item includes non-controlling interests in SIMONA 
Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway. The non-controlling interests 
correspond to the applicable voting rights and amount to 25.07 
per cent. Revenue generated by this entity amounted to €5,028 
thousand in the period under review. No distributions were made 
in the financial year. The company‘s balance sheet total stands 
at €11,203 thousand and is mainly composed of current assets 
(€3,454 thousand) and current liabilities (€7,749 thousand).

There are no restraints in place as regards the right of SIMONA AG 
to access or use assets of the aforementioned subsidiaries and to 
meet contractual obligations.

[26] Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are comprised of the following items:

in € ’000 Due date 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Non-current financial liabilities

Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229 
thousand (nominal amount), 
(principal repayments due after 
31/12/2021)

2022–
2024 8,430 11,855

 8,430 11,855

Current financial liabilities    

Pro-rata bank loan of €26,229 
thousand (nominal amount), 
(principal repayments due 
up to 31/12/2021) principal 
repayments due

01/2021–
12/2021 3,425 3,425

3,425 3,425

As regards loans from banks, fixed interest rates of between 1.8 per 
cent and 2.1 per cent have been agreed in respect of KfW funds. 
Interest is computed either on the basis of the nominal amount of 
the loan or the remaining amount of the loan. As in the previous 
financial year, the overdraft facility of SIMONA AG, with its floating 
interest rate calculated on the basis of EONIA (Euro OverNight Index 
Average), had not been utilised at the end of the year.

Other financial liabilities comprise the following items:

in € ’000 Due date 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Non-current other  
financial liabilities

Put/call options from  
company acquisitions until 2025 8,196 0

Other Immediately 463 644

8,659 644

Current other financial 
liabilities

Accounts receivable  
with credit balances Immediately 1,989 2,412

1,989 2,412

Accounting for put and call options from company 
acquisitions
As part of the acquisition of SIMONA Stadpipe AS, the seller 
granted the buyer SIMONA AG a contractual right to purchase; 
correspondingly, SIMONA AG granted the seller a contractual 
right to sell. As these two rights are not separable, they were both 
included in the valuation of the liability. 

In this context, both parties have the right to acquire/dispose of 
the 25.07 per cent of interests in SIMONA Stadpipe AS held by the 
seller. This right can be exercised in the future based on specifics 
agreed today. Accordingly, a synthetic liability was recognised 
for the put option in accordance with IAS 32.23, the value of 
which is determined on the basis of the contractual parameters 
using mathematical methods. In accordance with IAS 32.23, this 
was reclassified accordingly from equity at the time of addition; 
non-controlling interests continue to be presented accordingly. 
Subsequent measurement is carried out in accordance with IFRS 
10.23 without affecting profit or loss.
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[27] Pensions
The majority of employees of SIMONA AG, SIMONA Produktion Kirn 
GmbH & Co. KG and SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. 
KG are entitled to post-employment benefits attributable to pension 
plan agreements. The aforementioned plans are structured as 
final salary pension plans in the case of both personnel employed 
on the basis of collective wage agreements and managerial staff 
as well as for former members of the Management Board. These 
relate to benefits in respect of retirement, disability and surviving 
dependants.

In order to mitigate the risks associated with defined benefit plans, 
particularly as regards longevity, inflation and salary increases, 
SIMONA introduced multifinanced defined contribution plans for 
employees joining the company on or after 1 January 2009.

The pension scheme for active members of the Management Board 
was converted to defined contribution and congruently reinsured 
pension plans in 2019.

The underlying expert opinions were prepared on 10 January 2021.

With the exception of payments to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, no 
contributions are made to funds, cf. Note [28].

The following table includes a breakdown of the expense items 
recognised in the Group income statement in connection with 
retirement benefits as well as the amounts carried in the statement 
of financial position for the respective plans.

The changes in the liabilities of defined benefit obligations (DBO) 
are as follows:

in € ’000 2020 2019

DBO at beginning of reporting period 69,718 60,512

Service cost 1,314 1,418

Interest cost 626 1,131

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses	 4,441 8,284

due to changes in financial assumptions 5,666 11,690

due to changes in the entitlement base –1,234 –3,406

due to other changes in value 9 0

Benefits paid –1,824 –1,627

Employer contribution –257 0

DBO at end of reporting period 74,018 69,718

   of which non-current liability 72,245 67,930

   of which current liability 1,773 1,788

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,773 thousand 
(previous year: €1,788 thousand) in connection with defined 
benefit pension plans for the 2021 financial year.

The assumptions made for the purpose of determining the pension 
obligations are as follows:

Parameters 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Discount rate 0.50 % 0.91 %

Salary increase 2.50 % 2.50 %

Pension increases 1.87 % 1.87 %

Mortality (mortality tables published 
by Prof. Dr. K. Heubeck) 2018 G 2018 G

A change of half a percentage point each in the above-mentioned 
basic assumptions used for the purpose of determining the DBO 
as at 31 December 2020 would increase or decrease the DBO as 
outlined below. This was determined on the basis of the projected 
unit credit method as well as the parameters mentioned:
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Change in DBO if parameters are changed  
by half a percentage point as at 31/12/2020  

in € ’000 (previous year)

Parameters Increase Decrease

Discount rate –6,822 (–6,313) 7,917 (7,310)

Salary increase 1,026 (972) –964 (–914)

Pension increase 5,732 (5,266) –5,135 (–4,726)

The decline in mortality rates by 10 per cent results in an increase 
in life expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each 
participant. The DBO at the end of the reporting period would 
increase by €3,064 thousand (previous year: €2,738 thousand) 
following a reduction in the mortality rate by 10 per cent and would 
decrease by €–2,682 thousand (previous year: €–2,406 thousand) 
following a 10 per cent increase in the mortality rate.

The weighted average duration of the DBO attributable to defined 
benefit pension plans is 19.4 years (previous year: 19.2 years).

As regards the internal multifinanced defined contribution plan, the 
total expense for SIMONA AG was €30 thousand (previous year: 
€30 thousand) in the period under review.

[28] Company welfare institutions 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is structured as a long-term employee 
benefit fund within the meaning of IAS 19.8. Under the Articles of 
Association, the entity operates solely for the purpose of ensuring 
that former employees of SIMONA AG, SIMONA Produktion Kirn 
GmbH & Co. KG and SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. 
KG as well as their dependants receive retirement benefits. The 
beneficiaries of pensions are entitled to all the assets belonging 
to the entity as well as all income derived from these assets while 
the entity is in existence as well as in the case of liquidation or 
insolvency of the entity. The aforementioned SIMONA companies 
have no access rights to assets held by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH. 
In the event of liquidation of the entity, the entity‘s assets are to be 
allocated to the recipients of benefits or are to be secured for the 
purpose of providing future benefits for said recipients. Thus, even 
in the event that the aforementioned SIMONA companies become 
insolvent, the creditors identified in connection with insolvency have 
no rights in respect of the assets of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.

The assets of SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der 
Belegschaft mbH may be utilised solely for benefit-related purposes 
relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH.

The agreed plans relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH are 
structured as final salary pension plans in the case of both 
personnel employed on the basis of collective wage agreements 
and managerial staff. The defined benefit plans are associated 
in particular with risks in respect of longevity, inflation and salary 
increases.

Funding of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is performed in observance 
of tax regulations.

in € ’000 2020 2019

DBO at beginning of reporting period 110,403 87,428

Service cost 3,669 2,955

Interest cost 997 1,645

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses 10,232 19,819

due to changes in financial assumptions 11,323 21,883

due to changes in the entitlement base –1,091 –2,064

Benefits paid –1,517 –1,444

DBO at end of reporting period 123,785 110,403

Fair value of plan assets  
at the beginning of the year 42,183 41,922

Returns on plan assets 377 783

Remeasurement –829 921

Benefits paid –1,517 –1,444

Fair value of plan assets  
at the end of the year 40,213 42,183

Deficit –83,572 –68,220

The Group anticipates benefit payments of €1,701 thousand 
(previous year: €1,598 thousand) in connection with indirect 
defined benefit pension plans for the 2021 financial year.

As regards the basic assumptions for determining the pension 
obligations, please refer to the details in Note [27].
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A possible surplus relating to plan assets is not accounted for in the 
consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG, as SIMONA AG 
has no control over these assets. In accordance with the provisions 
set out in IAS 19.8, the plan assets are available to be used only to 
pay or fund employee benefits.

The change in the deficit as at 31 December 2020 is attributable 
primarily to the remeasurement implemented due to the 
impairment of plan assets.

A change of half a percentage point each in the above-mentioned 
basic assumptions used for the purpose of determining the DBO 
as at 31 December 2020 would increase or decrease the DBO as 
follows (cf. also Note [27]):

Change in DBO if parameters are changed  
by half a percentage point as at 31/12/2020 

 in € ’000 (prev. year)

Parameters Increase Decrease

Discount rate –13,612 (–11,913) 16,090 (14,049)

Salary increase 4,971 (4,387) –4,541 (–4,009)

Pension increase 9,637 (8,368) –11,323 (–7,567)

The decline in mortality rates by 10 per cent results in an increase 
in life expectancy dependent on the individual ages of each 
participant. The DBO at the end of the reporting period would 
increase by €5,307 thousand (previous year: €4,520 thousand) 
following a reduction in the mortality rate by 10 per cent and would 
decrease by €–4,664 thousand (previous year: €–3,989 thousand) 
following a 10 per cent increase in the mortality rate.

The composition of plan assets is presented below:

FAIR VALUE AT

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Category of assets   

Shares in SIMONA AG 28,440 29,880

Time deposits 2,814 2,814

Investment funds 8,549 7,362

Cash and cash equivalents 410 2,127

Total plan assets 40,213 42,183

The shares in SIMONA AG and the interests in investment funds are 
quoted in an active market. A concentration of risk exists in respect 
of SIMONA AG shares.

The weighted average duration of the DBO relating to defined 
benefit pension plans of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is 23.5 years 
(prev. year: 23.1 years).

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position with 
regard to this pension plan changed as follows:

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Liability at beginning of reporting period 68,220 45,506

Service cost 3,669 2,955

Gain on plan settlements   

Net interest expense 620 862

Remeasurement actuarial gains/losses 10,232 19,819

due to changes in financial assumptions 11,323 21,883

due to changes in the entitlement base –1,091 –2,064

Remeasurement from plan assets 829 –921

Liability at end of reporting period 83,572 68,220
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[29] Other provisions

in € ’000 Personnel-
related

obligations

Guaran-
tees/ 

warranties

Other Total

Balance at  
1 January 2020 1,290 3,526 758 5,574

Allocated 162 1,781 181 2,124

Used 58 684 735 1,477

Reversed 0 132 0 132

Exchange differences 0 –56 –64 –120

Effect of time value  
of money 0 –6 0 –6

Reclassified to other 
balance sheet items 0 0 –180 –180

Balance at  
31 December 2020 1,394 4,430 –40 5,784

Current provisions 224 1,538 –40 1,723

Non-current provisions 1,169 2,892 0 4,061

Balance at  
31 December 2020 1,394 4,430 –40 5,784

in € ’000 Personnel-
related

obligations

Guaran-
tees/ 

warranties

Other Total

Balance at  
1 January 2019 1,251 3,942 282

 
5,475

Allocated 135 1,137 762  2,034

Used 115 1,570 304  1,989

Reversed 0 0 0  0

Exchange differences 0 17 18  35

Effect of time value  
of money 19 0 0

 
19

Balance at  
31 December 2019 1,290 3,526 758

 
5,574

Current provisions 206 868 16  1,091

Non-current provisions 1,084 2,658 742  4,484

Balance at  
31 December 2019 1,290 3,526 758

 
5,574

Personnel-related provisions encompass obligations in connection 
with agreements regarding part-time employment of staff 
approaching retirement and provisions relating to anniversaries. 
Personnel-related provisions are measured on the basis of actuarial 
figures.

Provisions for guarantees are recognised in connection with 
warranties for products sold in preceding years. The calculation 
is based on historical claims from guarantees and warranties. 
Guarantee-related provisions are recognised for ongoing, regularly 
occurring warranty cases as well as for individual cases that occur 
on an irregular basis and are associated with the risk of above-
average claims.

As regards regularly occurring warranty cases, a provision is 
calculated on the basis of experience over what is adjudged to 
be a probable average claim period of five years. For the purpose 
of measuring the provision, the expenses actually incurred in 
connection with customer credits/refunds from warranty obligations 
as well as the thus resulting direct costs of processing a complaint 
are analysed in detail. Within this context, the weighted average 
warranty expense of the past five years is used for calculation 
purposes.

The portion of warranty provisions calculated in respect of 
individual cases occurring on an irregular basis is recognised only 
when the utilisation of the provision is considered likely, a payment 
relating thereto is deemed probable and a reliable estimate can be 
made. The portion of the warranty provision whose utilisation is not 
due within one year after the reporting date is discounted.

[30] Other liabilities 

Other liabilities comprise the following items:

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Payables to workforce  8,451 9,007

Payables relating to social security  1,536 1,400

Liabilities relating to credit notes  
and commissions

 
501 1,287

Tax payables  1,040 717

Liabilities from contracts with customers  148 0

Other  7,186 6,458

 18,862 18,868
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The item “Other” mainly includes government liquidity assistance 
in the amount of €4,011 thousand in the Americas segment, 
which was paid out via banks in the reporting year as part of the 
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). In addition, the item includes 
deferrals/accruals for outstanding invoices, complaints and 
advance payments received.

[31] Statement of cash flows 

The statement of cash flows presents changes to cash and cash 
equivalents during the financial year by outlining cash inflows and 
outflows. In accordance with IAS 7, the statement of cash flows 
includes information relating to cash flows from operating activities, 
investing activities and financing activities.

As at 31 December, total cash and cash equivalents were as follows:

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Cash and cash equivalents 85,349 68,399

85,349 68,399

The effects of changes to cash and cash equivalents attributable to 
exchange rates were €–2,286 thousand (prev. year: €401 thousand) 
at Group level.

Cash flows from investing and financing activities are accounted 
for directly, i.e. on a payments basis. Cash flows from operating 
activities are determined indirectly on the basis of earnings before 
taxes, i.e. via changes to operating items in the Group statement 
of financial position, having eliminated changes relating to 
acquisitions and currency translation.

[32] Related-party disclosures 

Entities and persons with control over the SIMONA Group or who 
are exposed to the significant influence of SIMONA AG, as well as 
associated entities and persons, including close members of the 
family and intermediate entities, with significant influence over the 
financial and operating policies of the SIMONA Group are to be 
disclosed in accordance with IAS 24. The Management Board and 
the Supervisory Board are considered to be management in key 
positions.

Management Board
  �Matthias Schönberg, Chairman of the Management Board, 

Oberursel
  �Dr. Jochen Hauck, Mainz
  �Michael Schmitz, Sprendlingen

Supervisory Board
  �Dr. Rolf Goessler, Bad Dürkheim, Diplom-Kaufmann 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board 
Member of the Supervisory Board of J. Engelsmann AG, 
Ludwigshafen

  �Roland Frobel, Isernhagen, 
Tax Consultant 
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board 
Member of the Supervisory Board (Deputy Chairman) of 
Hannover 96 GmbH & Co. KGaA, Hannover 
Member of the Supervisory Board of GBK Beteiligungen AG, 
Hannover

  �Dr. Roland Reber, Stuttgart 
Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen

  �Martin Bücher, Biberach  
Chairman of the Executive Board of Kreissparkasse Biberach, 
Biberach 
Member of the Advisory Board of BW Global Versicherungsmakler 
GmbH 
Deputy Supervisory Board Member of BW Bank 
Member of the Supervisory Board of Öchsle Bahn AG

  �Andy Hohlreiter, Becherbach 
Employee Representative 

  �Markus Stein, Mittelreidenbach 
Employee Representative 

Matthias Schönberg performs supervisory duties within the 
following companies of the SIMONA Group: 
  �SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland
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Michael Schmitz performs supervisory duties within the following 
companies of the SIMONA Group: 
  �SIMONA S.A.S., Domont, France
  �SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain
  �SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland
  �SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc., Archbald, USA
  �POWER BOULEVARD INC., Archbald, USA
  �SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway

Dr. Jochen Hauck performs supervisory duties within the following 
companies of the SIMONA Group: 
  �SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI), 

Italy
  �SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain
  �SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland
  �SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway

Dr. Roland Reber, member of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG, 
is also the Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH; Nufringen. In the 
financial year under review, product sales amounting to €3,644 
thousand (previous year: €3,792 thousand) were transacted 
between SIMONA AG and the entities of the Ensinger Group. 

Dean Li, CEO of SIMONA Boltaron Inc., is also the owner of 
Techniform Industries LLC (formerly Sandusky Technologies LLC, 
Ohio). SIMONA Boltaron Inc. generated revenue from product sales 
of €228 thousand to Techniform Industries LLC in the year under 
review. 

Beyond this, companies of the SIMONA Group entered into no 
transactions with members of the Management Board or the 
Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG and/or entities to which these 
persons have been appointed in an executive or controlling 
capacity. This also applies to close family members of the 
aforementioned persons.

Receivables from related parties relate to trade receivables from 
the Ensinger Group totalling €579 thousand (previous year: €597 
thousand).

Payables to related parties consist of compensation to Supervisory 
Board members of SIMONA AG and amount to €135 thousand in 
the period under review (previous year: €145 thousand). There 
are no other outstanding balances or obligations towards related 
parties.

As part of its ordinary operating activities, SIMONA AG provides 
various services for the subsidiaries included in the consolidated 
financial statements. Conversely, the respective Group companies 
render services within the SIMONA Group in the context of their 
business purpose.

Business relationships exist with associates on a commission/
agency basis in respect of the sale of products in the United States; 
this business totals €2,750 thousand (previous year: €3,447 
thousand).

The supply and business relations between the respective persons 
and companies are conducted on arm‘s length terms.

Compensation of members of the Management Board 
and Supervisory Board
MANAGEMENT BOARD COMPENSATION 
ACCORDING TO IAS 24.17:

in € ’000 2020 2019

Short-term benefits   

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 926 1,140

Annual bonus 622 959

 1,548 2,099

Other long-term benefits 582 1,146

Total compensation 2,130 3,245

COMPENSATION DISCLOSURE PURSUANT  
TO SECTION 314(1) NO. 6 HGB

in € ’000 2020 2019

Fixed compensation   

Fixed salary and fringe benefits 926 1,140

Variable compensation   

Annual bonus 622 959

Long-term incentive programme 119 958

Total compensation 1,667 3,057
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The variable component of Management Board compensation 
is based on earnings performance within the Group and a long-
term incentive programme. As regards the performance periods 
2019 to 2021, average Group NOPAT (net operating profit after 
tax) is used as the key performance indicator, calculated on the 
basis of a three-year performance period. The first performance 
period encompasses the financial years 2019 to 2021, the second 
performance period comprises the financial years 2020 to 2022 
and the third performance period covers the financial years from 
2021 to 2023. Payment occurs subsequent to the adoption of the 
consolidated financial statements for the final year of the respective 
performance period. Members of the Management Board do not 
receive grants in respect of state-managed defined contribution 
plans, nor do they receive share-based payments or loans.

Post-employment benefits of €18,692 thousand (previous year: 
€17,393 thousand), after netting of plan assets, have been 
provisioned for active members of the Management Board, 
former members of the Management Board and their surviving 
dependants. Due to a changeover to defined contribution plans for 
active members of the Management Board, there is no longer an 
allocation to pension provisions. Full allocations have been made to 
pension provisions for former members of the Management Board. 
At the end of the reporting period, these amounted to €18,443 
thousand (previous year: €17,393 thousand).

Compensation of former Management Board members and their 
surviving dependants amounted to €466 thousand (previous year: 
€304 thousand).

Supervisory Board compensation for the financial year under review 
amounted to €158 thousand (previous year: €156 thousand). 
Supervisory Board compensation encompasses no variable 
components. Alongside their Supervisory Board compensation, 
staff representatives appointed to the Supervisory Board received 
remuneration in the form of wages and salaries during the financial 
year under review, which included retirement benefit obligations in 
the generally applicable amount in respect of work performed for 
the company. The company does not grant share-based payments 
or loans to members of the Supervisory Board.

[33] Financial risk management
 
Principles and objectives of financial risk 
management
The SIMONA Group operates at an international level. Parts of the 
assets, liabilities and planned transactions are exposed to risks 
arising from foreign currency market risk, interest rate market risk 
and default and liquidity risks.

The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks 
attributable to ongoing operating and finance-related transactions.

Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict associated risks by 
means of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative 
hedging instruments where required. All hedging instruments are 
used solely for the purpose of hedging cash flows.

Currency risks
The SIMONA Group is exposed to risks associated with exchange 
rate fluctuations within the area of investing and financing activities. 
Risks attributable to foreign currencies are hedged to the extent 
that they affect significant cash flows of the Group. The risk of 
exchange rate fluctuations associated solely with the translation of 
assets and liabilities into the reporting currency of the consolidated 
financial statements (euros) remains unhedged.

At an operating level, the respective entities within the Group 
conduct the majority of their business transactions in their 
functional currency. The parent company essentially manages the 
foreign currency transactions within the Group and hedges them 
within the defined ranges as part of treasury management. As 
at the reporting date, no foreign exchange forward contracts and 
currency options were used for the purpose of hedging currency 
risks associated with operating activities. The risk concentrations 
of the currencies result primarily from the following sensitivity 
analysis.

IFRS 7 requires entities to present risk on the basis of sensitivity 
analyses. These analyses show how profit or loss and equity 
would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable 
that were reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date. 
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Exchange rate movements may occur in the case of primary 
financial instruments that are beyond the hedged parameters or 
that are hedged by means of financial derivatives in the form of 
forward foreign exchange transactions or currency options.

If, as at 31 December 2020, the euro had appreciated 
(depreciated) by 10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings 
before taxes would have been €3,154 thousand lower (€3,855 
thousand higher). The hypothetical effect on profit of minus €3,154 
thousand (plus €3,855 thousand) is attributable to the following 
sensitivity to exchange rates:

in € ’000 Effect on profit before taxes

EUR/USD –1,215 (1,484)

EUR/GBP –25 (30)

EUR/CHF –292 (357)

EUR/CZK 743 (–908)

EUR/PLN –63 (77)

EUR/HKD –854 (1,044)

EUR/CNY –1,131 (1,383)

EUR/RUB –151 (184)

EUR/SGD –31 (–38)

EUR/NOK –3 3

EUR/INR –195 (9)

–3,154 (3,855)

If, as at 31 December 2019, the euro had appreciated 
(depreciated) by 10 per cent against all other currencies, earnings 
before taxes would have been €3,623 thousand lower (€4,428 
thousand higher). The hypothetical effect on profit of minus €3,623 
thousand (plus €4,428 thousand) is attributable to the following 
sensitivity to exchange rates:

in € ’000 Effect on  profit before taxes

EUR/USD –1,051 (1,284)

EUR/GBP –60 (74)

EUR/CHF –365 (447)

EUR/CZK 572 (–699)

EUR/PLN –101 (124)

EUR/HKD –836 (1,022)

EUR/CNY –1,504 (1,838)

EUR/RUB –88 (107)

EUR/INR –178 (218)

EUR/SGD –4 (5)

EUR/JPY –8 (9)

–3,623 (4,428)

Interest-rate risk
In accordance with IFRS 7, interest-rate risks are addressed in the 
form of sensitivity analyses. These present the effects of changes 
in market interest rates on interest income, interest expense 
and items in the statement of financial position. The company‘s 
short-term bank overdrafts are the financial instruments generally 
exposed to interest-rate risk. They remained undrawn at the end 
of the reporting period. Therefore, a sensitivity analysis of interest 
rates was of no relevance.

Option rights arose within the scope of the acquisition of interests 
in SIMONA Stadpipe AS in the financial year under review (see 
Note 30). The purchase prices calculated for the respective 
remaining and exercisable interests in SIMONA Stadpipe A.S. were 
discounted on an accrual basis. The discount rate corresponds to 
the incremental borrowing rate of SIMONA AG. This is subject to the 
usual interest rate risk.

Credit risk
The default risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents 
as well as outstanding customer receivables, which are reported 
in the consolidated statement of financial position under 
trade receivables. Customer receivables are monitored on a 
decentralised basis in each legally independent Group company 
and reported as part of the monthly financial statements. 
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Depending on the credit rating of the customer, receivables are 
subject to the risk of default, which is mitigated primarily with the 
help of trade credit insurance. On average, around 70 per cent 
of sales revenue generated by SIMONA AG, having factored in a 
deductible, is safeguarded by a trade credit insurance policy.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group mainly has one type of financial asset that is subject to 
the new model of expected credit losses: trade receivables from the 
sale of goods. Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the 
impairment provisions of IFRS 9, but the identified impairment loss 
is immaterial. 

Customer receivables exposed to a probable default risk are 
regularly monitored and the associated default risk is accounted 
for by impairment losses. The basis for determining impairment is 
primarily assumptions about the customer‘s country and industry 
risk, overdue receivables (more than 90 days) and available 
information about payment-related difficulties in individual cases. 
The country or sector risk is determined on the basis of the 
available S&P country ratings or historical S&P default data for 
sectors. The maximum potential credit risk is limited to the net 
carrying amount (less value-added tax) of the financial assets. The 
default risks mainly relate to impaired customer receivables in the 
Europe segment amounting to €2,108 thousand (previous year: 
€2,052 thousand). 

Trade receivables are derecognised when it is no longer probable 
that they will be realised. This is indicated by the debtor‘s failure 
to commit to an instalment payment plan and its failure to 
make contractual payments after more than 90 days of default. 
Impairment losses are recognised in operating profit under “Other 
expenses” (losses from the derecognition of financial assets and 
impairment losses).

Previous accounting policy for the impairment of trade receivables: 
in the previous year, the basis for the impairment was essentially 
considerable financial difficulties of the debtor, payment default or 
default (more than 90 days overdue) and increased probability that 
insolvency proceedings will be opened against the debtor‘s assets.

As in the previous year, there are no significant risk concentrations 
in the Group, given the various international sales markets and 
diversified customer structure.

Liquidity risk
In order to ensure solvency and financial flexibility, the Group 
continuously monitors liquidity from operating activities as well as 
payment expectations from commitments for capital investment 
orders placed by Group companies. The liquidity status is reported 
regularly. Risk concentrations result from the following issuer rating.

Alongside cash and cash equivalents amounting to €85.3 million 
(previous year: €68.4 million), the SIMONA Group has undrawn 
borrowing facilities of €28.6 million (previous year: €19.0 million). 
The Group‘s objective is to maintain a well-judged balance between 
ongoing coverage of cash requirements and sustained flexibility 
through the utilisation of bank overdrafts and loans.

Credit risk relating to cash exists solely as a result of business 
relationships with banks, which have the following long-term rating:

ISSUER RATING CASH

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

A1 3,735 8,213

A2 2,867 4,363

Aa2 10,241 8,285

Aa3 17,654 6,627

Baa3 13,585 22,758

No rating 37,267 18,153

85,349 68,399
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The maturity structures of payment obligations relating to the 
financial liabilities of the Group were as follows.

in € ’000 Up to 
1 year

2–5 years More than 
5 years

Total

Financial liabilities 3,425 8,430 0 11,855

Other financial liabilities 1,989 8,659 0 10,648

Trade payables 17,426 0 0 17,426

Financial liabilities 
31/12/2020 22,840 17,089 0 39,929

in € ’000 Up to 
1 year

2–5 years More than 
5 years

Total

Financial liabilities 3,425 11,855 0 15,280

Other financial liabilities 2,412 644 0 3,056

Trade payables 18,738 0 0 18,738

Financial liabilities 
31/12/2019 24,575 12,499 0 37,074

As in the previous financial year, at the end of the reporting period 
there were no foreign exchange forward contracts or currency 
options that would result in amounts due to the entity or payment 
obligations.

Capital management
Among the key financial goals of the SIMONA Group are objectives 
to raise enterprise value in a sustainable manner, ensure solvency 
and sufficient liquidity reserves and achieve an equity ratio of at 
least 50 per cent.

The Group manages its capital structure primarily on the basis of 
the equity ratio and makes adjustments in response to changing 
economic conditions where such action is deemed appropriate. 
External financing is mainly conducted via short- and long-term 
bank borrowings and bank loans. Additionally, the return on 
operating assets is reviewed annually as part of the forecasting 
process and is an important criterion when it comes to managing 
the Group‘s investment budget. Return on capital employed (ROCE) 
is used as a performance indicator with regard to profitability.

As at 31 December 2020, the equity ratio was 46 per cent 
(previous year: 50 per cent). The level of debt stood at 105 per cent 
(previous year: 95 per cent).

34 Financial instruments
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values 
of all financial instruments recognised by the Group.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Non-current financial assets Financial assets 340 340 340 340

Investments accounted for using the  
equity method

1,119 1,143 1,119 1,143

Current financial assets Trade receivables 56,158 59,702 56,158 59,702

Other financial assets 1,298 2,036 1,298 2,036

Cash and cash equivalents 85,349 68,399 85,349 68,399

Non-current financial liabilities 
and other financial liabilities

Loans –8,430 –11,855 –8,430 –11,855

Other financial liabilities –8,659 –644 –8,659 –644

Current financial liabilities and 
other financial liabilities

Loans –3,425 –3,425 –3,425 –3,425

Trade payables –17,426 –18,738 –17,426 –18,738

Other financial liabilities –1,989 –2,412 –1,989 –2,412

Total by measurement category AC – Amortised Cost assets 144,264 131,620 144,264 131,620

AC – Amortised Cost liabilities –39,929 –37,074 –39,929 –37,074
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The non-current financial assets classified as “AC - Amortised Cost” 
are interests in affiliated companies. No active market exists for 
these instruments and the fair value cannot be otherwise reliably 
determined. These interests are measured at cost of purchase. 
There are no plans to dispose of interests in the near future. 

The aforementioned financial instruments predominantly have 
short residual terms to maturity. Therefore, their carrying amounts 
at the reporting date approximate their fair values.

The cash and cash equivalents held as “AC - Amortised Cost” 
include time deposits with a maximum term of three months.

The fair value of loans was determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows on the basis of the prevailing market rate of 
interest as well as by applying option pricing models. Within this 
context, the calculation takes into account that the loans are 
subject to floating or fixed interest rates on the basis of standard 
market terms and conditions.

The following table presents the net gains and losses from 
subsequent measurement of financial instruments recognised 
in the statement of financial position, listed according to the 
respective measurement categories.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for the purpose of 
determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments 
per measurement method:

  �Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities

  �Level 2: methods for which all inputs with a significant effect 
on the recognised fair value are observable either directly or 
indirectly; and

  �Level 3: methods that use inputs which have a significant effect 
on the recognised fair value and are not based on observable 
market data.

With the exception of derivative financial instruments, no fair value 
hierarchy is disclosed for financial assets and liabilities, as the 
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Hedging transactions
Cash flow hedging instruments 
At the end of the reporting period, as was the case in the previous 
financial year, the Group held no forward currency contracts or 
currency options or interest rate swaps.

NET GAINS AND LOSSES BY MEASUREMENT CATEGORY

in € ’000 Interest Fair Value Currency 
translation

Impairment loss / 
Disposal

Total  
2020

AC assets 146 0 –1,348 –562 –1,764

AC liabilities –190 0 49 –25 –166

–44 0 –1.299 –587 –1.930

in € ’000 Interest Fair Value Currency 
translation

Impairment loss / 
Disposal

Total  
2019

AC assets 133 0 38 –575 –404

AC liabilities –230 0 –59 1 –288

–97 0 –22 –574 –693
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[35] Other Information 
 
Subsidiaries
Alongside SIMONA AG as the parent, the consolidated financial 
statements include the following entities. Unless otherwise 
specified, the ownership interest in the previous year was identical 
to that of the financial year under review. 

OWNERSHIP INTEREST

in %

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim, 
Germany 100.0

SIMONA Ringsheim Management GmbH, Ringsheim, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA Immobilien Management GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0

SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford, United Kingdom 100.0

SIMONA S.A.S., Domont, France 100.0

SIMONA S.r.l. Società UNIPERSONALE, Cologno Monzese (MI), Italy 100.0

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain 100.0

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wrocław, Poland 100.0

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ s.r.o., Prague, Czech Republic 100.0

SIMONA FAR EAST LIMITED, Hong Kong, China 100.0

SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc., Archbald, USA 100.0

Power Boulevard Inc., Archbald, USA 100.0

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., Newcomerstown, USA 100.0

DANOH, LLC, Akron, USA 100.0

SIMONA PMC, LLC, Findlay, USA 100.0

Industrial Drive Inc., Findlay, USA 100.0

SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC, Archbald, USA 100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD. 
Shanghai, China 100.0

SIMONA ASIA LIMITED, Hong Kong, China 100.0

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS (Guangdong) Co. Ltd., Jiangmen, 
China 100.0

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE HOLDING, LLC, Hazleton, USA 100.0

DEHOPLAST POLSKA, Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland 51.0

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic 100.0

OOO SIMONA RUS, Moscow, Russian Federation 100.0

SIMONA INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, Mumbai, India 100.0

SIMONA ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD., Singapore, Singapore 100.0

SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway 74.93

SIMONA Stadpipe Eiendom AS, Stadlandet, Norway 100.0

The following entities were fully consolidated for the first time in the 
2020 financial year: SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, Norway, and 
SIMONA Stadpipe Eiendom AS, Stadlandet, Norway. There were 
no changes to the ownership interests held in subsidiaries in the 
financial year under review.

Financial assets
SIMONA AG holds at least a one-fifth interest in the following 
entities, without being able to control or significantly influence the 
financial and operating policies of the entities in question. Unless 
otherwise specified, the ownership interest in the previous year was 
identical to that of the financial year under review.

COMPANY

Ownership 
interest

Equity  
31/12/2019

Profit/loss 
2019

% € ’000 € ’000

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, Kirn, 
Germany 50.0 12,427 235

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungs-
gesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH, 
Kirn, Germany 50.0 747 759

Owing to its classification as a pension fund, SIMONA Sozialwerk 
GmbH is not included in the consolidated financial statements, as 
specified in IAS 19.8.

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH 
is not included in the consolidated financial statements because 
the assets of this entity may be utilised solely for funding purposes 
in respect of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and thus remain outside 
SIMONA AG‘s scope of economic control.

The interests in SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA 
Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH are 
accounted for at book value, as the fair value is not reliably 
determinable. The book values of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and 
SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH 
are €10 thousand and €13 thousand respectively.
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Corporate acquisitions
Effective from 1 July 2020, the Group acquired 74.93 per cent 
of the voting equity interests in Stadpipe AS, a non-listed entity 
headquartered in Stadlandet, Norway. In 2020, the company 
was renamed SIMONA Stadpipe AS. SIMONA Stadpipe AS plans, 
produces and installs piping systems for aquaculture applications. 
The acquisition was transacted for the purpose of gaining access 
to project companies and end customers in the fish farming and 
fishing industry and to sharpen the industry focus in the growth 
market of aquaculture. 

The consideration (purchase price) amounts to a total of NOK 
62,134 thousand (translated into €5,767 thousand) and was paid 
in full in cash. There are no outstanding or contingent purchase 
price payments. The payment for the acquisition less net cash 
acquired and plus repaid bank loans amounts to €6,150 thousand.

The following information pertaining to purchase price allocation 
details the values of the principal groups of identifiable assets 
and liabilities acquired at the date of purchase: intangible assets 
€6,997 thousand, property, plant and equipment €696 thousand, 
inventories €541 thousand, trade receivables from customers 
€2,783 thousand and other assets €178 thousand, cash and cash 
equivalents €577 thousand, trade and other payables €4,075 
thousand. The gross value of the acquired customer receivables 
amounts to €2,783 thousand; no impairments or uncollectible 
receivables were identified on the date of acquisition. Intangible 
assets were attributable mainly to customer relationships as well as 
production technology and brands. 

The Group applies the full goodwill method and therefore 
recognises the entire goodwill resulting from the purchase price 
allocation in the amount of €4,732 thousand. It includes non-
separable intangible assets such as expertise relating to personnel 
as well as anticipated synergy effects from the product portfolio 
and sales. Goodwill is not tax-deductible in Norway.

The equity share of the non-controlling interests amounts to 
€1,930 thousand at the time of acquisition.

In the period from 1 July to 31 December 2020, the acquired 
company generated consolidated revenues of €5,028 thousand 
and a loss for the period (including the effects of purchase price 
allocation) of €167 thousand. If the acquired company had been 
included in the consolidated financial statements since 1 January 
2020, Group sales revenue would have been €10,087 thousand 
and the profit for the period would have been €100 thousand. 

The costs associated with the business combination total €153 
thousand and are recognised in the income statement under other 
expenses.

With effect from 6 November 2020, SIMONA AG acquired 100 per 
cent of the voting equity interests in SIMONA Stadpipe Eiendom AS, 
Stadlandet, Norway. This is an unlisted company. SIMONA Stadpipe 
Eiendom AS leases buildings and land to SIMONA Stadpipe AS, 
Stadlandet, Norway. From a Group perspective, no business 
operations were acquired in accordance with IFRS 3. Within the 
scope of an asset acquisition, the assets and liabilities were 
acquired in accordance with IFRS 3. 

The consideration amounts to a total of €1,284 thousand and 
was paid in full in cash. There are no outstanding or contingent 
purchase price payments. The payment for the acquisition less 
net cash acquired amounts to €1,284 thousand. No cash was 
acquired.

The following information pertaining to purchase price allocation 
details the values of the principal groups of identifiable assets and 
liabilities acquired at the date of purchase: property, plant and 
equipment €1,271 thousand, trade receivables from customers 
€38 thousand. The gross value of the acquired customer 
receivables amounts to €38 thousand; no impairments or 
uncollectible receivables were identified at the date of acquisition. 
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In the period from 6 November to 31 December 2020, the acquired 
company generated other income of €23 thousand and a loss for 
the period (including the effects of purchase price allocation) of 
€–2 thousand. If the acquired company had been included in the 
consolidated financial statements since 1 January 2020, other 
income within the Group would have been €61 thousand and profit 
for the period would have been €18 thousand. 

The costs associated with the business combination total €21 
thousand and have been added to the interests pursuant to IFRS 3.

Average number of staff employed during the  
financial year
GROUP

2020 2019

Industrial staff 870 852

Clerical staff 526 518

Employees 1,396 1,370

School-leavers (apprentices) 60 60

Total number of employees 1,456 1,430

 
Contingent liabilities 
Contingent liabilities relate in particular to extended warranty 
periods regarding the sale of plastic products. No information on 
the financial implications and uncertainties relating to the amount 
or timing of any outflow has been disclosed as it is not practicable 
to do so. At present, SIMONA does not expect any outflow from 
contingent liabilities.

ORDER COMMITMENTS

in € ’000 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Investment projects 7,924 9,417

Raw material orders 17,243 13,188

25,167 22,605

 
The share of intangible assets in total commitments is negligible.

Declaration of Conformity regarding the German 
Corporate Governance Code
In accordance with Section 161 AktG, the company filed a 
Declaration of Conformity for 2020 on 3 April 2020. It has been 
made permanently available to shareholders on its corporate 
website at www.simona.de.

Disclosures under Section 313(2) HGB
SIMONA Kirn Management GmbH, Kirn, is the general partner of 
SIMONA Produktion Kirn GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn. SIMONA Ringsheim 
Management GmbH, Ringsheim, is the general partner of SIMONA 
Produktion Ringsheim GmbH & Co. KG, Ringsheim. SIMONA 
Immobilien Management GmbH, Kirn, is the general partner of 
SIMONA Immobilien GmbH & Co. KG, Kirn.

SIMONA AG, Kirn, prepares the consolidated financial statements 
for the largest and smallest group of companies. The consolidated 
financial statements have been filed with the District Court Bad 
Kreuznach, Commercial Register No. HRB 1390.

Disclosures relating to the COVID-19 pandemic
Group companies benefited from funding measures or government 
assistance within the following segments:

Asia and Pacific: €184 thousand. This includes grants for payments 
to pension, unemployment, accident and health insurance schemes 
as well as grants towards energy and wage costs. These grants 
were recognised as other income. No repayment is envisaged. 

Americas: €4,011 thousand. These are grants for wage payments, 
rental costs, mortgage interest or other operating equipment. The 
grants do not have to be paid back if, among other factors, the 
headcount is not scaled back and the grant is used for at least 60 
per cent of wage payments. As it was not yet foreseeable at the 
reporting date whether the US government was likely to waive the 
repayment at the reporting date, the grants were reported as loans.
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The application for loan forgiveness was submitted for SIMONA 
Boltaron Inc. in February 2021 and has since been confirmed 
by the executing bank. The applications for SIMONA AMERICA 
Industries LLC, SIMONA AMERICA Group Inc. and SIMONA PMC, 
LLC have not yet been submitted.

Revenue expectations take into account the Group‘s growth 
strategy centred around a sharpened focus on the market together 
with the prospect of economic recovery following the more 
widespread roll-out of COVID-19 vaccination programmes and the 
subsequent lifting of restrictions. 

The development of earnings will mainly depend on the direction 
taken by commodity prices, which will in turn have an influence 
on the gross profit margin. The direct effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic on the general economy continue to be mixed. The 
impact on the industrial sector is becoming increasingly smaller, 
while the caravan and interiors sectors are seeing more buoyant 
demand. By contrast, the aviation sector is still suffering from the 
decline in air traffic and is not expected to return to pre-coronavirus 
levels until 2025 at the earliest.

Directors‘ holdings – Shares held by members of 
the Management Board and Supervisory Board of 
SIMONA AG
Members of the Management Board did not report any 
shareholdings in SIMONA AG as at 5 June 2020 (date of the Annual 
General Meeting).

As at 5 June 2020 (date of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders) the members of the Supervisory Board reported a 
total holding of 1,300 shares; this corresponds to approx. 0.22 per 
cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG.

In accordance with Section 15a of the Securities Trading Act 
(Wertpapierhandelsgesetz – WpHG), the members of the 
Supervisory Board and the Management Board, as well as related 
parties, are legally obliged to disclose all significant acquisitions or 
disposals of shares in SIMONA AG.

Audit fees
The total fees invoiced by the independent auditor of SIMONA 
AG and subsidiaries were €484 thousand. These fees were 
attributable to the following items: year-end audit services €313 
thousand, tax consulting €91 thousand and other confirmation 
services €80 thousand. Tax consultancy services provided by our 
independent auditor encompass the preparation of tax returns and 
the tax treatment of specific circumstances. The other assurance 
services relate to reviews in connection with the acquisitions and 
ESEF reporting.

Events after the reporting period
Effective from 1 February 2021, SIMONA AG, Kirn, acquired 70.00 
per cent of the voting equity interests in MT Plastik AS, a non-listed 
entity headquartered in Dücze, Turkey. The acquisition was made 
for the purpose of expanding market share in the PVC foam sheet 
sector. MT Plastik AS has total annual revenue of approximately 
€18 million.

SIMONA Boltaron Inc. received public grants of US$1.8 million in 
2020 towards wage payments, rental costs, mortgage interest 
or other operating equipment. The grants do not have to be paid 
back if, among other factors, the headcount is not scaled back 
and the grant is used for at least 60 per cent of wage payments. 
As it was not yet foreseeable at the reporting date whether the US 
government was likely to waive the repayment at the reporting date, 
the grants were reported as loans.

The application for loan forgiveness was submitted for SIMONA 
Boltaron Inc. in February 2021 and has since been confirmed 
by the executing bank; however, final confirmation by the US 
government is still pending.

Beyond this, no significant events occurred as at the end of the 
reporting period that would necessitate a change to measurements 
or recognised amounts.
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Responsibility Statement
To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable 
reporting principles, the consolidated financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and 
profit or loss of the Group, and the Group management report 
that has been combined with the management report of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, includes a fair review of the development 
and performance of the business and the position of the Group, 
together with a description of the principal opportunities and risks 
associated with the expected development of the Group.

Kirn, 31 March 2021

SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft 
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg	 Dr. Jochen Hauck� Michael Schmitz
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The following copy of the auditor‘s report also includes a “Report 
on the audit of the electronic renderings of the financial statements 
and the management report prepared for disclosure purposes in 
accordance with § 317 Abs. 3b HGB“ („Separate report on ESEF 
conformity”). The subject matter (ESEF documents) to which the 
Separate report on ESEF conformity relates is not attached. The 
audited ESEF documents can be inspected in or retrieved from the 
Federal Gazette.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial 
statements and Group management report

Opinions
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, and its subsidiaries (the Group), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2020, the consolidated income statement (statement 
of profit or loss), the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and 
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the financial year 
from 1 January to 31 December 2020 as well as the notes to 
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. In addition, we have audited the 
Group management report of SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft, which 
has been combined with the Company’s management report, 
for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2020. In 
accordance with German statutory requirements, we have not 
audited the content of those parts of the Group management 
report specified under “Other Information” in this Independent 
Auditor’s Report.

In our opinion, based on our audit findings,

  �the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in 
all material respects, with the IFRS as adopted by the EU and 
the supplementary requirements of German commercial law 
pursuant to Section 315e(1) HGB and give a true and fair view 
of the net assets and financial position of the Group as at 31 
December 2020 and of its results of operations for the financial 
year from 1 January to 31 December 2020, in accordance with 
these requirements, and

  �the accompanying Group management report as a whole 
provides a suitable view of the Group’s position. In all material 
respects, the Group management report is consistent with 
the consolidated financial statements, complies with German 
statutory requirements, and suitably presents the opportunities 
and risks of future development. Our opinion on the Group 
management report does not cover the content in respect of 
those parts of the Group management report specified under 
“Other Information” in this Independent Auditor’s Report.

Pursuant to Section 322(3) sentence 1 HGB, we state that our 
audit has not led to any reservations with respect to compliance of 
the consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
and Group management report in accordance with Section 317 
HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014; hereinafter 
referred to as “EU Audit Regulation”) and the generally accepted 
standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the 
German Institute of Public Auditors (Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer 
– IDW). Our responsibilities under those regulations and guidelines 
are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements and Group management 

Reproduction of the Auditor’s Report
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report” section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
companies in accordance with the requirements of European 
Union law as well as German commercial law and the rules of 
professional conduct, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities under German professional law in accordance with 
these requirements. In addition, pursuant to Article 10(2)(f) EU 
Audit Regulation, we hereby declare that we did not provide any 
of the prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) EU 
Audit Regulation. We believe that the audit evidence we obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements and Group management report.

Key audit matters in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the financial year from 1 
January to 31 December 2020. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters.

In our view, the matters of most significance in our audit were as 
follows:
1. Recoverability of goodwill
2. Measurement of inventories
Our presentation of these key audit matters has been structured in 
each case as follows:
1. Matter and issue 
2. Audit approach and findings
3. Reference to further information

Hereinafter we present the key audit matters:

1. Recoverability of goodwill
1. �Goodwill totalling €32.9 million (representing 7.3% of total assets 

and 15.9% of equity) is reported under the “Intangible assets” 
item in the Company’s consolidated statement of financial 
position. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the Company 
once a year, and when there are indications of impairment, to 

determine any possible need for write-downs. Impairment testing 
is carried out at the level of the groups of cash-generating units 
to which the relevant goodwill has been allocated. The carrying 
amount of the relevant cash-generating units, including goodwill, 
is compared with the corresponding recoverable amount in 
the context of the impairment test. The recoverable amount is 
generally calculated on the basis of the value in use. The present 
value of the future cash flows from the respective group of 
cash-generating units normally serves as the basis of valuation. 
The present values are calculated using discounted cash flow 
models. For this purpose, the Group’s one-year financial plan 
prepared by the Legal Representatives and adopted by the 
Supervisory Board forms the starting point for future projections; 
it is supplemented by detailed forecasts for a further three 
planning years based on assumptions about long-term rates 
of growth. They also take into consideration expectations 
regarding future market development and assumptions relating 
to the macroeconomic influences. The discount rate used is 
the weighted average cost of capital for the relevant group of 
cash-generating units. The impairment test determined that no 
write-downs were necessary. The outcome of this assessment is 
dependent to a large extent on the estimates made by the Legal 
Representatives with respect to the future cash inflows from 
the respective group of cash-generating units, the discount rate 
used, the rate of growth and other assumptions, and is therefore 
subject to considerable uncertainty. Against this background and 
due to the complex nature of the valuation, this matter was of 
particular significance in the context of our audit.

2. �As part of our audit, we reviewed the methodology employed 
for the purposes of performing the impairment test, among 
other things. After cross-checking the future cash inflows used 
for the calculation with the Group’s approved one-year plan 
and the forecasts for the second to fourth planning year, we 
assessed the appropriateness of the calculation, in particular 
by comparing it with general and sector-specific market 
expectations. We discussed supplementary adjustments to the 
planning projections for the purposes of the impairment test with 
the members of the Company’s staff responsible, and reviewed 
these. We also assessed whether the basis for including the 
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costs of Group functions was accurate. In the knowledge that 
even relatively small changes in the discount rate can have a 
material impact on the value of the entity calculated by applying 
this method, we also focused our testing on the parameters 
used to determine the discount rate applied and evaluated 
the Company’s calculation procedures. We reproduced the 
sensitivity analyses performed by the Company in order to reflect 
the uncertainty inherent in the projections. Taking into account 
the information available, we determined that the carrying 
amounts of the cash-generating units, including the allocated 
goodwill, were adequately covered by the discounted future 
net cash inflows. We verified that the necessary disclosures 
were made in the notes. Overall, the measurement inputs and 
assumptions used by the Legal Representative are in line with 
our expectations and are also within the ranges considered by us 
to be reasonable.

3. �The Company’s disclosures on goodwill have been included in 
point 17 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2. Measurement of inventories
1. �The company’s consolidated financial statements show 

inventories of €84.9 million as at 31 December 2020, 
representing 18.9% of total assets. Inventories are measured 
at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The assessment 
of the recoverability of inventories is influenced by significant 
judgement made by the legal representatives, which take into 
account the expectations regarding the saleability of the various 
products within the respective sales markets of the SIMONA 
Group. Write-downs are made in particular for an above-average 
storage period, for reduced realisability or for other reasons that 
have an influence on a lower net realisable value, which can also 
be attributed to potentially higher risk due to the ongoing effects 
of the coronavirus crisis worldwide as at the reporting date. 
Against this backdrop and due to the quantity and turnover rate 
of inventories, which, moreover, are stored at various locations 
and in various markets of the SIMONA Group, and the complex 
structure of the various write-down procedures to be applied 
uniformly throughout the Group and the associated considerable 

time required for the audit, this matter was of particular 
significance within the scope of our audit.

2. �As part of our audit, we verified the Group’s approach to 
assessing the recoverability of inventories and assessed its 
appropriateness. In doing so, we also considered the complex 
procedures and controls for determining write-downs in respect 
of length of storage, realisability and other reasons that impact 
on a lower net realisable value, in addition to assessing the 
suitability of the IT-based write-down procedures used by the 
Group to capture inventory risks. We assessed the write-down 
rates used in the write-down routines against the background 
of past experience through analytical comparisons with write-
downs carried out in previous years and critically evaluated their 
appropriateness on the basis of new findings relating to the 
effects of the coronavirus crisis. We arithmetically verified the 
computational logic of the applied models on a test basis. In 
addition, we ensured the consistent assessment of the Group-
wide uniform approach to the measurement of inventories 
by issuing corresponding instructions to the local auditors of 
significant foreign Group companies. On the basis of our audit 
procedures, we were able to satisfy ourselves that the estimates 
applied and assumptions made by the Company’s Legal 
Representatives in respect of the recoverability of inventories are 
substantiated and sufficiently documented.

3. �The Company’s disclosures on inventories are included in 
the sections “4 Material judgements and estimates” and “5 
Summary of significant accounting policies” in the notes to the 
consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information
The Company’s Legal Representatives are responsible for the Other 
Information. The Other Information comprises the following non-
audited parts of the Group management report that we obtained 
prior to the date of our auditor’s report:
  �The declaration of corporate governance pursuant to Section 

289f HGB and Section 315d HGB, as presented in section 5.1 of 
the Group management report

  �The non-financial statement pursuant to Section 289b(1) HGB 
and Section 315b(1) HGB, as presented in section 6 of the Group 
management report.

The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of the auditor’s report.

Our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on 
the Group management report do not cover the Other Information, 
and consequently we do not express an audit opinion or any other 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In the context of our audit, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information and, in so doing, to consider whether the Other 
Information
  �is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 

statements, the Group management report or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or

  �otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Legal Representatives and 
Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial 
statements and the Group management report
The Legal Representatives are responsible for the preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements which, in all material 
respects, comply with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the 
supplementary requirements of German commercial law pursuant 
to Section 315e (1) HGB, and that the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial 
position, and results of operations of the Group in accordance with 
these requirements. Furthermore, the Legal Representatives are 

responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Legal 
Representatives are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility 
for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 
In addition, the Legal Representatives are responsible for using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the intention is to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or there is no realistic 
alternative to do so.

Moreover, the Legal Representatives are responsible for preparing 
the Group management report, which as a whole provides a 
suitable view of the Group’s position, and, in all material respects, 
is consistent with the consolidated financial statements, complies 
with German statutory requirements and suitably presents the 
opportunities and risks of future development. Furthermore, the 
Legal Representatives are responsible for such arrangements and 
measures (systems) as they determine are necessary to enable the 
preparation of the Group management report in compliance with 
the applicable requirements of German commercial law and for 
providing sufficient and appropriate evidence for the assertions in 
the Group management report.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s 
financial reporting process for the preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements and the Group management report.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements and the  
Group management report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and whether 
the Group management report as a whole provides a suitable 
view of the Group’s position, as well as, in all material respects, 
is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and our 
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audit findings, complies with German statutory requirements, and 
suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Section 317 
HGB and the EU Audit Regulation, as well as in compliance with 
the German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial 
statements promulgated by the German Institute of Public Auditors 
(Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer – IDW), will always detect a material 
misstatement. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements 
and this Group management report.

As part of our audit we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

  �Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the 
consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

  �Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements, and of the 
arrangements and measures relevant to the audit of the Group 
management report, in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of these systems of 
the Company.

  �Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Management Board.

  �Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Board’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and Group 
management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our particular opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

  �Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a 
true and fair view of the net assets, financial position, and results 
of operations of the Group in accordance with IFRS, as adopted 
by the EU, and the supplementary requirements of German 
commercial law pursuant to Section 315e (1) HGB.

  �Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements and the Group management report. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance 
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

  �Evaluate consistency of the Group management report with the 
consolidated financial statements, its legal compliance, and 
presentation of the Group’s position.
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  �Perform audit procedures on the prospective information 
presented by the Legal Representatives in the Group 
management report. Based on sufficient and appropriate 
audit evidence, we hereby in particular trace the significant 
assumptions used by the Legal Representatives as a basis for the 
prospective information and assess the appropriate derivation of 
the prospective information from these assumptions. We are not 
issuing a separate audit opinion on the prospective information 
as well as the underlying assumptions. There is a significant, 
unavoidable risk that future events will deviate significantly from 
the prospective information.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Supervisory Board with a statement that 
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Supervisory Board, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter.

OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
 
Report on the assurance in accordance with Section 317(3b) of the 
German Commercial Code (HGB) of the electronic reproduction of 
the consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report prepared for the purpose of publication

Assurance conclusion
Pursuant to Section 317(3b) HGB, we have performed a reasonable 
assurance engagement to determine whether the reproductions of 
the consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report (hereinafter also referred to as “ESEF documents”) 
contained in the attached file “simona 187903.zip” and prepared 
for publication purposes comply in all material respects with the 
requirements of Section 328(1) HGB on the electronic reporting 
format (“ESEF format”). In accordance with German legal 
requirements, this assurance only covers the conversion of the 
information in the consolidated financial statements and the Group 
management report into the ESEF format and therefore relates 
neither to the information contained in these reproductions nor to 
any other information contained in the above-mentioned file.

In our opinion, the reproductions of the consolidated financial 
statements and the Group management report contained in the 
aforementioned attached file and prepared for the purpose of 
publication comply in all material respects with the requirements 
of Section 328(1) HGB regarding the electronic reporting format. 
Beyond this reasonable assurance opinion and our audit opinions 
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the 
accompanying Group management report for the financial year 
from 1 January to 31 December 2020 contained in the preceding 
“Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 
the Group management report”, we do not express any opinion on 
the information contained in these reproductions or on the other 
information contained in the aforementioned file.
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Basis for opinion
We conducted our assurance work on the reproductions of the 
consolidated financial statements and the Group management 
report contained in the above-mentioned attached file in 
accordance with Section 317(3b) of the German Commercial Code 
(HGB) and in compliance with the draft IDW Auditing Standard: 
Assurance in Accordance with Section 317(3b) HGB on the 
Electronic Reproduction of Financial Statements and Management 
Reports Prepared for Publication Purposes (IDW EPS 410) and 
the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 
(Revised). Our responsibilities under that standard are further 
described in the “Group auditor’s responsibilities for the assurance 
work on the ESEF documents” section. Our audit firm applied the 
standards for the quality assurance system set forth in IDW Quality 
Control Standard: “Anforderungen an die Qualitätssicherung in der 
Wirtschaftsprüferpraxis” [Requirements for Quality Control in the 
Practice of Public Auditors] (IDW QS 1).

Responsibilities of the Legal Representatives and 
Supervisory Board for the ESEF documents
The Legal Representatives of the Company are responsible 
for the preparation of the ESEF documents with the electronic 
reproductions of the consolidated financial statements and the 
Group management report in accordance with Section 328(1) 
sentence 4 no. 1 HGB and for the tagging of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with Section 328(1) sentence 4 
no. 2 HGB. 

Furthermore, the Company’s Legal Representatives are responsible 
for the internal controls as they deem necessary to enable the 
preparation of the ESEF documents that are free from material 
non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error, with the electronic 
reporting format requirements of Section 328(1) HGB.

The Legal Representatives of the Company are also responsible for 
submitting the ESEF documents together with the auditor’s report 
and the attached audited consolidated financial statements and 
audited Group management report as well as other documents to 
be disclosed to the operator of the German Federal Gazette.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation 
of the ESEF documents as part of the financial reporting process.

Group auditor’s responsibilities for the assurance work 
on the ESEF documents
Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
ESEF documents are free from material non-compliance, whether 
due to fraud or error, with the requirements of Section 328(1) 
HGB. As part of our audit we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

  �Identify and assess the risks of material non-compliance with 
the requirements of Section 328(1) HGB, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain assurance evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our assurance opinion. 

  �Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the 
assurance on the ESEF documents in order to design assurance 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an assurance opinion on the 
effectiveness of these controls.

  �Evaluate the technical validity of the ESEF documents, i.e. 
whether the electronic file containing the ESEF documents meets 
the requirements of Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815, 
in the version valid as at the reporting date, on the technical 
specification for this electronic file.

  �Evaluate whether the ESEF documents enable an XHTML 
reproduction with content equivalent to the audited consolidated 
financial statements and to the audited Group management 
report. 

  �Evaluate whether the tagging of the ESEF documents with Inline 
XBRL technology (iXBRL) enables an appropriate and complete 
machine-readable XBRL copy of the XHTML reproduction.
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Other disclosures pursuant to Article 10 of the 
EU Audit Regulation 
We were elected as auditor at the annual general meeting held 
on 5 June 2020. We were engaged by the Supervisory Board on 
4 November 2020. We have been the Group auditor of SIMONA 
Aktiengesellschaft, Kirn, without interruption since the 2013 
financial year.

We declare that the audit opinions in this auditor’s report are 
consistent with the additional report to the audit committee 
referred to in Article 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (audit report).

German public auditor responsible for the 
engagement
The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is 
Michael Rohkämper.

Frankfurt am Main, 31 March 2021

PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH 
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Michael Rohkämper	 ppa. Roman Woll 
German Public Auditor	 German Public Auditor
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SIMONA AMERICA Industries LLC, Archbald, PA

SIMONA PMC LLC, Findlay, OH

SIMONA Boltaron Inc., Newcomerstown, OH

Products:
n	 Sheets
J	 Welding rods

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Coextrusion

Products:
n	 Sheets

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Coextrusion 
n	 Laminating

Products:
n	 Sheets

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Press laminating
n	 Calendering

	 Corporate headquarters

 	 Plant and subsidiary

 	 Subsidiary

 	 Sales office

Grow
Together 
SIMONA worldwide
Global Thermoplastic Solutions 
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SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS 
TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO. LTD.

OOO „SIMONA RUS“

SIMONA 
FAR EAST 
LIMITED

Hongkong

SIMONA INDIA 
PRIVATE LIMITED

SIMONA S.A.S. 
FRANCE

SIMONA IBERICA
SEMIELABORADOS S.L.

SIMONA UK Ltd.

SIMONA AG
SCHWEIZ

SIMONA
POLSKA Sp. z o.o.

SIMONA S.r.l. 
ITALIA

SIMONA Produktion Ringsheim, DE

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o. 

Products:
n	 Pipes
n	 Fittings

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Coextrusion 
n	 Injection moulding
n	 Machining
n	 Plastics workshop SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS 

(Guangdong) Co. Ltd., Jiangmen, CN

Products:
n	 Sheets
n	 Welding rods

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Coextrusion

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvínov, CZ

Products:
n	 Sheets
n	 Pipes
n	 Fittings

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
n	 Thermoforming
n	 Plastics workshop

SIMONA Stadpipe AS, Stadlandet, NO

Products and Services:
n	 Engineering, production and 

installation of piping systems 
used in the field of aquaculture

Processing methods:
n	 Plastics workshop

Products:
n	 Sheets
n	 Solid/hollow rods
n	 Profiles
n	 Welding rods

Processing methods:
n	 Monoextrusion, coextrusion, RAM extrusion
n	 Compression moulding
n	 Foaming
n	 Research and Development
n	 Technology Centre

SIMONA AG, Kirn, DE

SIMONA PLASTECH Lev. San. A.Ş, Düzce, TR

Products:
n	 Sheets

Processing methods:
n	 Extrusion
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“To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the 
applicable reporting principles, the consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit or loss of the SIMONA Group, and the 
Group management report, which has been combined with the 
management report of SIMONA AG, includes a fair review of the 
development and performance of the business and the position of 
the SIMONA Group, together with a description of the principal 
opportunities and risks associated with the expected develop-
ment of the SIMONA Group.” 

Kirn, 31 March 2021 

SIMONA Aktiengesellschaft
The Management Board

Matthias Schönberg	 Dr. Jochen Hauck	 Michael Schmitz

2021

21 April Annual Press Conference 

SIMONA Group Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Financial Statements 
of SIMONA AG for FY 2020

Press Release on the First Quarter 
of 2021

02 June Virtual Annual General Meeting 2021

04 August Group Interim Report for the First Half 
of 2021

27 October Press Release on the Third Quarter 
of 2021

Financial Calendar 2021Other Information
 
Responsibility Statement pursuant to  
Sections 297(2), 315(1) HGB

Grow
Together 
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Grow
Together 
Business EMEA

SIMONA AG
Teichweg 16
55606 Kirn
Germany

Phone	 +49 (0) 675214-0
Fax	 +49 (0) 675214-211
mail@simona.de
www.simona.de

Follow us on:

This document is published in German and 
as an English translation. Only the German 
original shall be deemed authoritative.
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